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SECTION I: GENERAL 
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

 
DEFINITIONS 
 
TERMS DESCRIPTION 
"Our Company", "the Company", "THL", “Tejnaksh”  
"we", "us" or "the Issuer" 

Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited, a Public Limited Company 
incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 

 
CONVENTIONAL/GENERAL TERMS 
 

TERMS DESCRIPTION 
AOA/Articles/ Articles of 
Association 

Articles of Association of Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited 

Banker to the Issue  HDFC Bank Limited, I Think Techno Campus, Level 0-3, Next to Kanjur Marg Railway 
Station, Kanjur Marg (E), Mumbai – 400 042  

Board of Directors / 
Board/Director(s) 

The Board of Directors of Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited 

BSE BSE Limited (the Designated Stock Exchange) 
Companies Act Unless specified otherwise, this would imply to the provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (to the extent notified) and / or Provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 
w.r.t. to the sections which have not yet been replaced by the Companies Act, 
2013 through any official notification.    

Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996 as amended from time to time 
CIN  Company Identification Number 
DIN  Directors Identification Number 
Depositories  NSDL and CDSL 
FIPB  Foreign Investment Promotion Board 
FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investor registered under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regulations, 2000, as amended 
from time to time. 

Director(s) Director(s) of Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited, unless otherwise specified 
Equity Shares / Shares Equity Shares of our Company of face value of Rs. 10 each unless otherwise 

specified in the context thereof 
EPS Earnings Per Share 
GIR Number General Index Registry Number 
GoI/ Government Government of India 
Statutory Auditor / Auditor  M/s. P.D. Dalal and Co., Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of our 

Company.  
Promoters Promoters of the Company being Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 
Promoter Group Companies 
/Group Companies / Group 
Enterprises 

Unless the context otherwise specifies, refers to those entities mentioned in the 
section titled “Our Promoter Group / Group Companies / Entities” on page 99 of 
this Prospectus.  

Peer Review Auditors M/s. Randhir Jhunjhunwala and Co., Chartered Accountants, the Peer View 
Auditors of our Company. 

HUF  Hindu Undivided Family 
Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India 
IPO Initial Public Offerings  
Key Managerial Personnel / Key 
Managerial Employees 

The officers vested with executive powers and the officers at the level immediately 
below the Board of Directors as described in the section titled “Our Management” 
on page 95 of this Prospectus. 

MOA/ Memorandum/ 
Memorandum of Association 

Memorandum of Association of Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited 
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TERMS DESCRIPTION 
Non Resident A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA 
Non-Resident Indian/ NRI A person resident outside India, who is a citizen of India or a Person of Indian Origin 

as defined under FEMA Regulations 
Overseas Corporate Body / OCB A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or 

indirectly to the extent of at least 60% by NRIs, including overseas trusts in which 
not less than 60% of beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or 
indirectly as defined under the Foreign Exchange Management (Deposit) 
Regulations, 2000. OCBs are not allowed to invest in this Issue. 

Person or Persons Any individual, sole proprietorship, unincorporated association, unincorporated 
organization, body corporate, corporation, company, partnership, limited liability 
partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, or trust or any other entity or 
organization validly constituted and/or incorporated in the jurisdiction in which it 
exists and operates, as the context requires 

Registered office of our 
Company 

Unit No.11, Ground Floor, Town Centre, Andheri Kurla Road, Marol, Andheri (East), 
Mumbai-400 059 

SEBI The Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act 
SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
SEBI Regulation/ SEBI 
(ICDR) Regulations 

The SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 as 
amended from time to time. 

SEBI Takeover Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeover) Regulations, 2011, as amended from time to time. 

SICA  Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 
SME Platform of BSE/Stock 
Exchange  

The SME platform of BSE for listing of Equity Shares offered under Chapter X-B of 
the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations  

SWOT Analysis of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats 
RoC Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra 

 
ISSUE RELATED TERMS 
 

TERMS DESCRIPTION 
Allotment/Allot Issue of Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue to the successful applicants as the 

context requires. 
Allottee The successful applicant to whom the Equity Shares are being / have been issued 
Applicant 
 

Any prospective investor who makes an application for Equity Shares in terms of this 
Prospectus 

Application Form The Form in terms of which the applicant shall apply for the Equity Shares of the 
Company 

Application Supported by 
Blocked Amount (ASBA) 

Means an application for subscribing to an issue containing an authorization to block 
the application money in a bank account 

ASBA Account Account maintained with SCSBs which will be blocked by such SCSBs to the extent of 
the appropriate application Amount of the ASBA applicant, as specified in the ASBA 
Application Form 

ASBA Applicant(s) Prospective investors in this Issue who apply through the ASBA process. Pursuant to 
SEBI circular no. CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011, non- retail Investors i.e. 
QIBs and Non-Institutional Investors participating in this Issue are required to 
mandatorily use the ASBA facility to submit their Applications.  

ASBA Location(s)/Specified 
Cities 

Location(s) at which ASBA Application can be uploaded by the Brokers, namely 
Mumbai, Chennai, Kolkata, Delhi, Ahmedabad, Rajkot, Jaipur, Bangalore, 
Hyderabad, Pune, Baroda and Surat 

ASBA Public Issue Account An Account of the Company under Section 40 of the Act, where the funds shall be 
transferred by the SCSBs from the bank accounts of the ASBA Investors 

Basis of Allotment The basis on which Equity Shares will be allotted to the Investors under the Issue 
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TERMS DESCRIPTION 
and which is described in “Issue Procedure–Basis of Allotment” on page 151 of the 
Prospectus 

Designated Market Maker Alacrity Securities Limited  
Eligible NRI NRIs from jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful to make an issue or 

invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom the Prospectus constitutes an 
invitation to subscribe to the Equity Shares Allotted herein 

Issue/Issue size/ initial public 
issue/Initial Public Offer/Initial 
Public Offering 

Public Issue of 3,04,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (“Equity Shares”) of Tejnaksh 
Healthcare Limited  (“THL” or the “Company” or the “Issuer”) for cash at a price of 
Rs. 80/- per share (the “Issue Price”), aggregating to Rs. 243.20 Lacs (“the Issue”) 

Issue Opening date The date on which the Issue opens for subscription 
Issue Closing date The date on which the Issue closes for subscription 
Issue Period The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date inclusive of 

both days and during which prospective Applicants may submit their application  
Lead Manager/LM Lead Manager to the Issue being First Overseas Capital Limited 
Listing Agreement 
 

Unless the context specifies otherwise, this means the Equity Listing Agreement to 
be signed between our Company and the SME Platform of BSE. 

Market Maker Reservation 
Portion 
 

The Reserved portion of 16,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 80/- per Equity Share 
aggregating to Rs 12.80 Lacs for Designated Market Maker in the Initial Public Issue 
of Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited 

Net Issue 
 

The Issue (excluding the Market Maker Reservation Portion) of 2,88,000 Equity 
Shares of Rs.80/- per Equity Share aggregating to Rs. 230.40 Lacs by Tejnaksh 
Healthcare Limited 

Business Day Any day on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for the business 
FOCL First Overseas Capital Limited 
Depository Act The Depositories Act, 1996 
Depository A Depository registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Depositories and Participant) 

Regulations, 1996 
Depository Participant A Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1956 
Escrow Account Account opened/to be opened with the Escrow Collection Bank(s) and in whose 

favour the Applicant (excluding the ASBA Applicant) will issue cheques or drafts in 
respect of the Application Amount when submitting an Application 

Escrow Agreement Agreement entered / to be entered into amongst the Company, Lead Manager, the 
Registrar, the Escrow Collection Bank(s) for collection of the Application Amounts 
and for remitting refunds (if any) of the amounts collected to the Applicants 
(excluding the ASBA Applicants) on the terms and condition thereof 

Escrow Bankers to the Issue / 
Escrow Collection Bank (s) 

HDFC Bank Limited, I Think Techno Campus, Level 0-3, Next to Kanjur Marg Railway 
Station, Kanjur Marg (E), Mumbai – 400 042  

Escrow Collection Bank(s) The banks, which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as Bankers to the 
Issue at which bank the Escrow Account of our Company, will be opened 

Issue Price The price at which the Equity Shares are being issued by our Company under this 
Prospectus being Rs. 80/- 

Mutual Funds A Mutual Fund registered with SEBI under SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 
Memorandum of Understanding The arrangement entered into on 20th March, 2015 between our Company, and Lead 

Manager pursuant to which certain arrangements are agreed in relation to the Issue 
Non – resident A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA including eligible NRIs and 

FIIs 
Prospectus 
 

The Prospectus, filed with the RoC containing, inter alia, the Issue opening and 
closing dates and other information. 

Issue Account / Public Issue 
Account 

Account opened with Bankers to the Issue for the purpose of transfer of monies from 
the Escrow Account on or after the Issue Opening Date 

Qualified Institutional Buyers or 
QIBs 

The term "Qualified Institutional Buyers" or "QIBs" shall have the meaning ascribed 
to such term under the SEBI ICDR Regulations and shall mean and include (i) a 
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TERMS DESCRIPTION 
Mutual Fund, VCF and FVCI registered with SEBI; (ii) an FII and sub-account (other 
than a sub-account which is a foreign corporate or foreign individual), registered 
with SEBI; (iii) a public financial institution as defined in Section 4A of the 
Companies Act; (iv) a scheduled commercial bank; (v) a multilateral and bilateral 
development financial institution; (vi) a state industrial development corporation; 
(vii) an insurance company registered with the Insurance Regulatory and 
Development Authority; (viii) a provident fund with minimum corpus of Rs. 250 
million; (ix) a pension fund with minimum corpus of Rs. 250 million; (x) National 
Investment Fund set up by resolution no. F. No. 2/3/2005-DDII dated November 23, 
2005 of the Government of India published in the Gazette of India; (xi) insurance 
funds set up and managed by army, navy or air force of the Union of India; and (xii) 
insurance funds set up and managed by the Department of Posts, India eligible for 
applying in this Issue. 

Registrar/Registrar to the Issue Registrar to the Issue being Cameo Corporate Services Limited, Submaramanian 
Building, 1 Club House Road, Chennai 600 002 

Retail Individual Investor(s) Individual investors (including HUFs, in the name of Karta and Eligible NRIs) who 
apply for the Equity Shares of a value of not more than Rs. 2,00,000 

Refund Account The account opened / to be opened with Escrow Collection Bank(s), from which 
refunds, if any, of the whole or part of application Amount (excluding to the ASBA 
Applicants) shall be made. 

Refund bank HDFC Bank Limited, I Think Techno Campus, Level 0-3, Next to Kanjur Marg Railway 
Station, Kanjur Marg (E), Mumbai – 400 042  

Refunds through electronic 
transfer of funds 

Refunds through ECS, Direct Credit, RTGS or the ASBA process, as applicable 

Self Certified Syndicate Banks 
or SCSBs 

The banks which are registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 1994 and offer services in relation to 
ASBA, including blocking of an ASBA Account in accordance with the SEBI 
Regulations and a list of which is available on www.sebi.gov.in/pmd/scsb.pdf or at 
such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time. 

SEBI The Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act 
SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
SEBI Regulation/ SEBI 
(ICDR) Regulations 

The SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 as 
amended 

Underwriters First Overseas Capital Limited 
Underwriting Agreement The Agreement among the Underwriters and our Company 

Working Days All days on which banks in Mumbai are open for business except Sunday and public 
holiday, provided however during the Application period a working day means all 
days on which banks in Mumbai are open for business and shall not include a 
Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday 

Market Maker  A market maker is a company, or an individual, that quotes both a buy and a sell 
price in a financial instrument or commodity held in inventory, hoping to make a 
profit on the bid-offer spread, or turn. Market makers are net sellers of an option to 
be adversely selected at a premium proportional to the trading range at which they 
are willing to provide liquidity.  

 
COMPANY/INDUSTRY RELATED TERMS/TECHNICAL TERMS 
 

TERM DESCRIPTION 
Hospital / Institute Our Kidney Care Hospital situated at Sakri Road, Dhule-424 001, Maharashtra 
IC Intensive Care Unit 
IPD Impatient Department 
OPD Outpatient Department 
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TERM DESCRIPTION 
WHO World Health Organisation  
HMSA Hospital and Medical Services Agreement 
ESWL Extra Corporeal Shock Wave Lithotripsy 
OT Operation Theaters 
Urology A branch of medicine that focuses on the surgical and medical diseases of the male 

and female urinary tract system. 
 
ABBREVIATIONS 
 

ABBREVIATION FULL FORM 
ACS Associate Company Secretary 
AGM Annual General Meeting 
AS Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
A.Y. Assessment Year 
B.A Bachelor in Arts 
B.Com Bachelor of Commerce 
BG/LC  Bank Guarantee / Letter of Credit  
B. Tech Bachelor in Technology 
CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate 
C. A. Chartered Accountant 
CAIIB Certified Associate of the Indian Institute of Bankers 
CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
CFO Chief Financial Officer 
C.S. Company Secretary 
DP Depository Participant 
DNB Diplomat of National Board 
ECS  Electronic Clearing System  
EGM / EOGM Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the shareholders 
EPS Earnings per Equity Share 
ESOP Employee Stock Option Plan 
FCNR Account Foreign Currency Non Resident Account 

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as amended from time to time and the 
regulations issued there under. 

FII 
Foreign Institutional Investor (as defined under SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investors) 
Regulations, 1995, as amended from time to time) registered with SEBI under 
applicable laws in India.  

FIs Financial Institutions. 
FIPB Foreign Investment Promotion Board, Department of Economic Affairs, Ministry of 

Finance, Government of India 
FY / Fiscal Financial Year 

FVCI 
Foreign Venture Capital Investors registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Foreign Venture 
Capital Investor) Regulations, 2000.   

GDP Gross Domestic Product 
GIR Number General Index Registry Number 
GoI/ Government Government of India 
HUF Hindu Undivided Family 
MBA Masters in Business Administration  
INR / Rs./ Rupees Indian Rupees, the legal currency of the Republic of India 
SME  Small And Medium Enterprises 
MBBS Bachelor of Medicine & Bachelor of Surgery 
M.S  Masters in Surgery 
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ABBREVIATION FULL FORM 
 M.Ch  Master of Chirurgiae 
NAV Net Asset Value 
No. Number 
NR Non Resident 
NSDL National Securities Depository Limited 
P/E Ratio Price/Earnings Ratio 
PAN Permanent Account Number 
RBI The Reserve Bank of India 
RBI Act The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as amended from time to time 
RoC/Registrar of Companies The Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra 
RONW Return on Net Worth 
USD/ $/ US$ The United States Dollar, the legal currency of the United States of America 
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL, INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA 
 
FINANCIAL DATA 
 
Unless stated otherwise, the financial data in this Prospectus is extracted from the financial statements of our 
Company for the fiscal years 2015, 2014, 2013, 2012 and 2011 the restated financial statements of our Company 
for Fiscal Years 2015, 2014, 2013, 2012 and 2011 prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act and Indian GAAP and restated in accordance with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009, as stated in the 
report of our Auditors and the SEBI Regulations and set out in the section titled ― Financial Information on page 
104. Our restated financial statements are derived from our audited financial statements prepared in accordance 
with Indian GAAP and the Companies Act, and have been restated in accordance with the SEBI Regulations. Our 
fiscal years commence on April 1 and end on March 31. In this Prospectus, any discrepancies in any table between 
the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding off. All decimals have been rounded off to two 
decimal points. 
 
There are significant differences between Indian GAAP, US GAAP and IFRS. Our Company has not attempted to 
explain those differences or quantify their impact on the financial data included herein and we urge you to 
consult your own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our financial data. Accordingly, the 
degree to which the Indian GAAP financial statements included in this Prospectus will provide meaningful 
information is entirely dependent on the reader‘s level of familiarity with Indian Accounting Practices. Any 
reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial disclosures presented in this 
Prospectus should accordingly be limited. 
 
CURRENCY OF PRESENTATION 
 
All references to "Rupees" or "Rs." or "INR" are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India. All 
references to "$", "US$", "USD", "U.S.$" or "U.S. Dollar(s)" are to United States Dollars, if any, the official currency 
of the United States of America. This Prospectus contains translations of certain U.S. Dollar and other currency 
amounts into Indian Rupees (and certain Indian Rupee amounts into U.S. Dollars and other currency amounts). 
These have been presented solely to comply with the requirements of the SEBI Regulations. These translations 
should not be construed as a representation that such Indian Rupee or U.S. Dollar or other amounts could have 
been, or could be, converted into Indian Rupees, at any particular rate, or at all. 
 
In this Prospectus, throughout all figures have been expressed in Lacs, except as otherwise stated. The word 
"Lacs", "Lac", "Lakhs" or "Lakh" means "One Hundred Thousand". 
 
Any percentage amounts, as set forth in "Risk Factors", "Our Business", "Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Conditions and Results of Operation" and elsewhere in this Prospectus, unless otherwise indicated, have 
been calculated based on our restated financial statement prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP. 
 
INDUSTRY & MARKET DATA 
 
Unless otherwise stated, Industry & Market data used throughout this Prospectus has been obtained from Internal 
Company Reports and Industry Publications and the Information contained in those publications has been obtained 
from sources believed to be reliable but their accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed and their reliability 
cannot be assured. Although we believe that industry data used in this Prospectus is reliable, it has not been 
independently verified. Similarly, internal Company reports, while believed by us to be reliable, have not been 
verified by any independent sources. 
 
The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Prospectus is meaningful depends on the reader’s 
familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data.  
 
For additional definitions, please refer the section titled "Definitions and Abbreviations" on page 1 of this 
Prospectus. 
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 

Our Company has included statements in this Prospectus, that contain words or phrases such as "will", "aim", "will 
likely result", "believe", "expect", "will continue", "anticipate", "estimate", "intend", "plan", "project", "shall", 
"contemplate", "seek to", "future", "objective", "goal", "project", "should", "will continue", "will pursue" and similar 
expressions or variations of such expressions that are "forward-looking statements". However, these words are not 
the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements. All statements regarding our Company objectives, 
plans or goals, expected financial condition and results of operations, business plans and prospects are also 
forward-looking statements. 
 
These forward-looking statements include statements as to business strategy, revenue and profitability, planned 
projects and other matters discussed in this Prospectus regarding matters that are not historical fact. These 
forward-looking statements contained in this Prospectus (whether made by us or any third party) involve known 
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results, performance or achievements to 
be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such 
forward-looking statements. 
 
Further the actual results may differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements due to 
risks or uncertainties associated with our expectations with respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes 
pertaining to the Healthcare industry in India and overseas in which we have our businesses and our ability to 
respond to them, our ability to successfully implement our strategy, our growth and expansion, technological 
changes, our exposure to market risks, general economic and political conditions in India and overseas which have 
an impact on our business activities or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies of India and other 
jurisdictions in which we operate, inflation, deflation, unanticipated volatility in interest rates, foreign exchange 
rates, equity prices or other rates or prices, the performance of the financial markets in India and globally, 
changes in domestic laws, regulations and taxes, changes in competition in our industry and incidence of any 
natural calamities and/or acts of violence. Other important factors that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from our expectations include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

•   Our inability to manage our growth effectively; 
•  Our inability to retain the services of our senior management, key managerial personnel and capable 

employees / faculties; 
•  Our inability to renew rents/ arrangements for our Properties used for business activities or conduct new 

rent arrangements on commercially acceptable terms; 
•  Changes in technologies; 
•  Failure to successfully upgrade our services, from time to time;  
•  Failure to obtain any applicable approvals, licenses, registrations and permits in a timely manner; 
• Any adverse development in our Hospital 
• Negative Publicity of our Hospital 
• Conflicts of Interest with Affiliated Companies, the Group Entities and Other Related Parties; 
• Other factors beyond our control; and 
• Our ability to manage risks that arise from these factors. 

 
For further discussion of factors that could cause Company’s actual results to differ, see the section titled "Risk 
Factors" on page 9 of this Prospectus. By their nature, certain risk disclosures are only estimates and could be 
materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual future gains or losses could 
materially differ from those that have been estimated. Our Company, the Lead Manager, and their respective 
affiliates do not have any obligation to, and do not intend to, update or otherwise revise any statements 
reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if 
the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition. In accordance with SEBI requirements, our Company and the 
Lead Manager will ensure that investors in India are informed of material developments until such time as the 
grant of listing and trading permission by the Stock Exchange. 
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SECTION II 
 

RISK FACTORS 
 
An Investment in equity involves higher degree of risks. Prospective investors should carefully consider the 
risks described below, in addition to the other information contained in this Prospectus before making any 
investment decision relating to the Equity Shares. The occurrence of any of the following events could have 
a material adverse effect on the business, results of operation, financial condition and prospects and cause 
the market price of the Equity Shares to decline and you may lose all or part of your investment. 
 
Prior to making an investment decision, prospective investors should carefully consider all of the 
information contained in this Prospectus, including the sections titled "Our Business", "Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and the "Financial Information" 
included in this Prospectus beginning on pages 68, 118 & 104 respectively. The occurrence of any of the 
following events could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operation, financial 
condition and prospects and cause the market price of the Equity Shares to fall significantly. 
 
Unless otherwise stated in the relevant risk factors set forth below, we are not in a position to specify or 
quantify the financial or other implications of any of the risks mentioned herein. 
 
INTERNAL RISK FACTORS 
 

1. We are dependent on our management team for success whose loss could seriously impair the ability 
to continue to manage and expand business efficiently. 
 
Our success largely depends on the continued services and performance of our management and other key 
personnel. The loss of service of the Promoters and other senior management could seriously impair the 
ability to continue to manage and expand the business efficiently. Further, the loss of any of the senior 
management or other key personnel may adversely affect the operations, finances and profitability of our 
Company. Any failure or inability of our Company to efficiently retain and manage its human resources 
would adversely affect our ability to implement new projects and expand our business. 
 

2. Our Hospital in Dhule generate entire of our income and EBITDA, and any adverse developments with 
respect to that hospital could negatively impact our financial condition and results of operations. 
 
For the fiscal year ended 31st March, 2014 and 31st March, 2015 our Hospital i.e. Institute of Urology, 
Dhule has generated entire revenue of our Company. Any negative economic, regulatory, competitive or 
other developments concerning that hospital may adversely impact our financial condition and results of 
operations. 

 
3. We operate in a fragmented industry and face increasing competition from other hospitals and 

healthcare services providers, which may have adverse effects on our competitive position, expansion 
plans and results of operations. 
 
We compete with other private hospitals, government-owned hospitals, smaller clinics, hospitals owned or 
operated by non-profit and charitable organizations and hospitals affiliated with medical colleges. We will 
also have to compete with any future healthcare facilities located in the regions in which we operate. 
Moreover, some of these competitors may be more established and may have greater financial, personnel 
and other resources than our Hospital. In particular, our competitors include hospitals owned or managed 
by government agencies and trusts, which may be able to obtain financing or make expenditures on more 
favorable terms than private hospitals owned and managed by for profit interests, such as ourselves. New 
or existing competitors may price their services at a significant discount to ours or offer greater 
convenience or better than we provide. Smaller hospitals, stand-alone clinics and other hospitals may 
exert pricing pressures on some or all of our services and also compete with us for doctors and other 
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medical professionals. Some of our competitors also have plans to expand their hospital networks, which 
may exert further pricing and recruiting pressures on us. If we are forced to reduce the price of our 
services or are unable to attract patients and doctors and other healthcare professionals to our hospital, 
our business and financial results may be adversely affected.  

 
4. We are highly dependent on our doctors, nurses and other healthcare professionals and the loss of, or 

inability to attract or retain, such persons could adversely affect our business and results of 
operations. 

 
Our performance and the execution of our growth strategy depend substantially on our ability to attract 
and retain doctors and other healthcare professionals in the fields and regions relevant to our growth 
plans. We compete for these personnel with other healthcare services providers. The market for doctors is 
highly competitive. The factors that doctors consider important before deciding where they will work 
include the level and structure of compensation, the reputation of the hospital and its owner, the quality 
of other medical staff, the quality and location of the facilities, research opportunities and community 
relations. We may not compare favorably with other healthcare services providers on these factors.  Our 
performance also depends on our ability to identify, attract and retain other healthcare professionals, 
including resident doctors and nurses, to support the multi-specialty and super specialty practices at our 
Hospital. In particular, the nursing shortage in India and worldwide makes it difficult for us to attract and 
retain nurses who may choose to pursue positions at other institutions in India or overseas with more 
competitive compensation packages and may also cause salaries and wages for nurses to rise.  If we are 
unable to attract or retain skilled consultants, the number of our patients and our income may decrease, 
as the quality of consultants is an important factor in patients' choices of hospitals. Our inability to attract 
and retain consultants and other medical personnel could result in a decrease in the quality of our 
services and we could be forced to admit fewer patients to our Hospital.  

 
5. We do not own the Registered Office of our Company.  

 
We operate from our registered office situated at Unit No.11, Ground Floor, Town Centre, Andheri Kurla 
Road, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai-400 059, which is a rented premises. Any discontinuance of rent 
agreement / facility will lead us to locate any other premises. Our inability to identify the new premises 
may adversely affect the operations, finances and profitability of our Company. 

 
6. Our Hospital and Corporate Office is not owned by us.  

 
We do not own the land or building pertaining to our Hospital & Corporate office situated at Sakri Road, 
Dhule-424 001, Maharashtra. Our Hospital & Corporate office is owned by our Promoters Dr. Ashish Vishwas 
Rawandale, who has granted us to use the same till 31.03.2020 for without any rent. Any discontinuance of 
such arrangement will lead us to locate any other premises. Our inability to identify the new premises may 
adversely affect the operations, finances and profitability of our Company.  

 
7. We have reported negative cash flows.  

 
The detailed break up of cash flows is summarized in below mentioned table and our Company has 
reported negative cash flow in certain financial years and which could affect our business and growth: 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 

Net Cash flow from Operating activities  176.06   8.03   10.77   8.54   61.68  
Net Cash Flow from Investing activities  (157.90)  (17.17)  (7.49)  (30.70)  (35.68) 
Net Cash Flow from Financing activities  (10.60)  11.35   (0.99)  (0.32)  (5.21) 
Net Cash Flow for the Year  7.56   2.21   2.29   (22.48)  20.79  
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8. In the 12 months prior to the date of filing the Prospectus, the Company had issued Equity Shares at a 
price, which is lower than the Issue Price. 
 
In the 12 months prior to the date of filing of the Prospectus, the We have allotted 7,90,000 Equity Shares 
of face value of Rs. 10 as bonus in the ratio of 79:1 to our existing Equity shareholders pursuant to a Board 
resolution dated 31st January, 2015 by capitalization of free reserves. 

 
9. Our business is subject to extensive regulation, and compliance with applicable safety, health, 

environmental and other governmental regulations may be costly and adversely affect our 
competitive position and results of operations. 

 
We are subject to central and local laws, rules and regulations governing, among other things, the: 
 

1. conduct of our operations; 
2. additions to facilities and services; 
3. adequacy of medical care; 
4. quality of medical equipment and services; 
5. discharge of pollutants to air and water and handling and disposal of bio-medical, radioactive and 

other hazardous waste; 
6. qualifications of medical and support personnel; 
7. confidentiality, maintenance and security issues associated with health-related information and 

medical records; and 
8. screening, stabilization and transfer of patients who have emergency medical conditions. 

 
Safety, health and environmental laws and regulations in India are stringent and it is possible that they 
will become significantly more stringent in the future. If we are held to be in violation of such regulatory 
requirements, including conditions in the permits required for our operations, by courts or governmental 
agencies, we may have to pay fines, modify or discontinue our operations, incur additional operating costs 
or make additional capital expenditures. Any public interest or class action litigation related to such 
safety, health or environmental matters could also result in the imposition of financial or other obligations 
on us. Any such costs could adversely affect our competitive position and results of operations. 

 
10. Our arrangements with some of our doctors may give rise to conflicts of interest and time allocation 

constraints and adversely affect our operations. 
 

Our contracts and other arrangements with our visiting consultants permit them to maintain their own 
private practices, as well as positions at a limited number of other hospitals. Certain of our senior doctors 
may also maintain positions at local clinics or affiliations with teaching hospitals. These arrangements may 
give rise to conflicts of interest, and such conflicts may adversely affect our operations. 

 
11. Our income is dependent on inpatient income and occupancy rates, and if we are unable to maintain 

and increase such rates, our results could be adversely affected. 
 

Our primary source of income is from inpatient treatments. Growth in inpatient income and occupancy 
rates at our hospitals is highly dependent on brand recognition, wider acceptance in the communities in 
which we operate, our ability to attract and retain well known and respected doctors, our ability to offer 
the most desired services in the communities in which we operate, our ability to maintain and develop 
“super specialty” practices and our ability to compete effectively with other hospitals and clinics. Growth 
in inpatient income and occupancy rates may be impaired by the absence of a developed health insurance 
sector and lack of adequate government programs. We have made significant amount of capital 
expenditures to our Hospitals.  
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We need to constantly improve occupancy rates and operating margins and decrease average length of 
stay in order to recoup our investments. Our inability to increase occupancy rates, improve profitability 
and decrease average length of stay may adversely affect our business and results of operations.  
 

12. The Company may not be able to obtain adequate funding required to carry out its future plans for 
growth. 
 
Disruptions in global credit and financial markets and the resulting governmental actions around the world 
could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s ability to meet its funding needs. The Company, 
in order to carry out its hospital operations and planned capital expenditure towards modernization etc. 
requires continuous access to large quantities of capital. 
 

13. We may not be successful in implementing our business strategies. 
 

The success of our business depends substantially on our ability to implement our business strategies 
effectively or at all. Even though we have successfully executed our business strategies in the past, there 
is no guarantee that we can implement the same on time and within the estimated budget going forward. 
Changes in regulations applicable to us may also make it difficult to implement our business strategies. 
Failure to implement our business strategies would have a material adverse effect on our business and 
results of operations. 

 
14. Our operations are geographically located in one area and any localized social unrest, natural 

calamities, etc. could have material adverse effect on business and financial operations. 
 
Our operations are based in Dhule, Maharashtra. As a result, any localized social unrest, natural disaster 
or breakdown of services and utilities in and around Dhule, Maharashtra could have material adverse 
effect on our business, financial position and results of operations.  

 
15. We have taken unsecured loan of Rs. 42.99 Lacs as on 31st March, 2015, which is repayable on 

demand. In case of untimely demand, we will have to arrange these funds, which may carry higher 
cost of funding, which may have an impact on our financial operations. 
 
We have taken unsecured loan of Rs. 42.99 Lacs as on 31st March, 2015 which can be recalled at any time 
and in that event, it may affect the financial operations of our Company to that extent. 

 
16. Our Promoters and members of the Promoter Group will continue jointly to retain majority control 

over our Company after the Issue, which will allow them to determine the outcome of matters 
submitted to shareholders for approval. 

 
Post this Issue, our Promoters and Promoter Group will collectively own substantial portion of our Equity 
Share Capital. As a result, our Promoters, together with the members of the Promoter Group, will 
continue to exercise a significant degree of influence over us and will be able to control the outcome of 
any proposal that can be approved by a majority shareholder vote, including, the election of members to 
our Board, in accordance with the Companies Act and our Articles of Association. Such a concentration of 
ownership may have the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in control of our Company. 
 
In addition, our Promoters will continue to have the ability to cause us to take actions that may not in, or 
may conflict with, our interests or the interests of some or all of our creditors or other shareholders, and 
we cannot assure you that such actions will not have an adverse effect on our future financial 
performance or the price of our Equity Shares. 
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17. We have entered into certain related party transactions and may continue to do so. 
 
We have entered into related party transactions with our Promoters and Directors. While we believe that 
all such transactions have been conducted on the arms length basis, however it is difficult to ascertain 
whether more favorable terms would have been achieved had such transactions been entered with 
unrelated parties. Furthermore, it is likely that we will enter into related party transactions in the future. 
For details of these transactions, please refer to section titled “Related Party Transactions” at page 102 
of this Prospectus. 
 

18. There is no monitoring agency appointed by our Company and the deployment of funds are at the 
discretion of our Management and our Board of Directors, though it shall be monitored by the Audit 
Committee. 
 
As per SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009 appointment of monitoring agency is required only for Issue size 
above Rs. 50,000 Lacs. Hence, we have not appointed a monitoring agency to monitor the utilization of 
Issue proceeds. However, the audit committee of our Board will monitor the utilization of Issue proceeds. 
Further, our Company shall inform about material deviations in the utilization of Issue proceeds to the BSE 
Limited and shall also simultaneously make the material deviations / adverse comments of the audit 
committee public. 

 
19. Delay in raising funds from the IPO could adversely impact the implementation schedule. 

 
The proposed expansion, as detailed in the section titled “Objects of the Issue” is to be entirely funded 
from the proceeds of this IPO. We have not identified any alternate source of funding and hence any 
failure or delay on our part to mobilize the required resources or any shortfall in the Issue proceeds may 
delay the implementation schedule. We therefore, cannot assure that we would be able to execute the 
expansion process within the given time frame, or within the costs as originally estimated by us. Any time 
overrun or cost overrun may adversely affect our growth plans and profitability. 
 

20. The Objects of the Issue for which funds are being raised, are based on our management estimates 
and any bank or financial institution or any independent agency has not appraised the same. The 
deployment of funds in the project is entirely at our discretion, based on the parameters as 
mentioned in the chapter titles “Objects of the Issue”.  

 
The fund requirement and deployment, as mentioned in the “Objects of the Issue” on page 44 of this 
Prospectus is based on the estimates of our management and has not been appraised by any bank or 
financial institution or any other independent agency. These fund requirements are based on our current 
business plan. We cannot assure that the current business plan will be implemented in its entirety or at 
all. In view of the highly competitive and dynamic nature of our business, we may have to revise our 
business plan from time to time and consequently these fund requirements. The deployment of the funds 
as stated under chapter “Objects of the Issue” is at the discretion of our Board of Directors and is not 
subject to monitoring by any external independent agency. Further, we cannot assure that the actual 
costs or schedule of implementation as stated under chapter “Objects of the Issue” will not vary from the 
estimated costs or schedule of implementation. Any such variance may be on account of one or more 
factors, some of which may be beyond our control. Occurrence of any such event may delay our business 
plans and/or may have an adverse bearing on our expected revenues and earnings. 

 
21. We have not identified any alternate source of financing the ‘Objects of the Issue’. If we fail to 

mobilize resources as per our plans, our growth plans may be affected. 
 

We have not identified any alternate source of funding and hence any failure or delay on our part to raise 
money from this Issue or any shortfall in the Issue proceeds may delay the implementation schedule and 
could adversely affect our growth plans. For further details please refer to the chapter titled “Objects of 
the Issue” on page no. 44 of this Prospectus. 
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EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS 
 

22. Political, economic and social changes in India could adversely affect our business. 
 
Our business, and the market price and liquidity of our Company’s shares, may be affected by changes in 
Government policies, including taxation, social, political, economic or other developments in or affecting 
India could also adversely affect our business. Since 1991, successive governments have pursued policies 
of economic liberalization and financial sector reforms including significantly relaxing restrictions on the 
private sector. In addition, any political instability in India may adversely affect the Indian economy and 
the Indian securities markets in general, which could also affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.  

 
23. Our business is subject to a significant number of tax regimes and changes in legislation governing the 

rules implementing them or the regulator enforcing them in any one of those jurisdictions could 
negatively and adversely affect our results of operations.  

 
The revenues recorded and income earned is taxed on differing bases, including net income actually 
earned, net income deemed earned and revenue-based tax withholding. The final determination of the 
tax liabilities involves the interpretation of local tax laws as well as the significant use of estimates and 
assumptions regarding the scope of future operations and results achieved and the timing and nature of 
income earned and expenditures incurred. Changes in the operating environment, including changes in tax 
laws, could impact the determination of the tax liabilities of our Company for any year.  
 

24. Natural calamities and force majeure events may have an adverse impact on our business. 
 
Natural disasters may cause significant interruption to our operations, and damage to the environment 
that could have a material adverse impact on us. The extent and severity of these natural disasters 
determines their impact on the Indian economy. Prolonged spells of deficient or abnormal rainfall and 
other natural calamities could have an adverse impact on the Indian economy, which could adversely 
affect our business and results of operations. 

 
25. Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by a domestic or international rating agency could negatively 

impact our business. 
 

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings for domestic and international debt by domestic or 
international rating agencies may adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing, and the 
interest rates and other commercial terms at which such additional financing is available. This could have 
an adverse effect on our financial results and business prospects, ability to obtain financing for capital 
expenditures and the price of our Equity Shares. 

 
26. A slowdown in economic growth in India could cause our business to suffer. 

Our performance and growth is directly related to the performance of the Indian economy. The   
performance of the Indian Economy is dependent among other things on the interest rate, political and 
regulatory actions, liberalization policies, commodity and energy prices etc. A change in any of the 
factors would affect the growth prospects of the Indian economy, which may in turn adversely influence 
our results of operations, and consequently the price of our Equity Shares. 

 
27. Hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence could adversely affect the financial 

markets and our business. 
 

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may adversely affect the Indian markets on which our 
Equity Shares will trade. These acts may result in a loss of business confidence, make travel and other 
services more difficult and have other consequences that could have an adverse effect on our business. In 
addition, any deterioration in international relations, especially between India and its neighboring 
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countries, may result in investor concern regarding regional stability, which could adversely affect the 
price of our Equity Shares. In addition, India has witnessed local civil disturbances in recent years and it is 
possible that future civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic or political events in India could 
have an adverse impact on our business. Such incidents could also create a greater perception that 
investment in Indian companies involves a higher degree of risk and could have an adverse impact on our 
business and the market price of our Equity Shares. 

 
28. Third party statistical and financial data in this Prospectus may be incomplete or unreliable. 

 
We have not independently verified any of the data from industry publications and other sources 
referenced in this Prospectus and therefore cannot assure you that they are complete or reliable. 
Discussions of matters relating to India, its economies or the industries in which we operate in this 
Prospectus are subject to the caveat that the statistical and other data upon which such discussions are 
based may be incomplete or unreliable. 

 
RISKS RELATING TO THE EQUITY SHARES 
 

29. Any future issue of Equity Shares may dilute your shareholding and sales of our Equity Shares by our 
Promoters or other major shareholders may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. 
 
Any future equity issues by us, including in a primary offering, may lead to the dilution of investors' 
shareholdings in us. Any future equity issuances by us or sales of its Equity Shares by the Promoters may 
adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. In addition, any perception by investors that such 
issuances or sales might occur could also affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. 
 

30. Our ability to pay any dividends in the future will depend upon future earnings, financial         
condition, cash flows, working capital requirements and capital expenditures.  

 
The amount of our future dividend payments, if any, will depend upon our Company’s future earnings, 
financial condition, cash flows, working capital requirements, capital expenditures, applicable Indian 
legal restrictions and other factors. There can be no assurance that our Company will be able to pay 
dividends. 
 

31. The price of our Equity Shares may be volatile, and you may be unable to resell your Equity Shares at 
or above the Issue Price, or at all. 

 
Prior to the offer, there has been no public market for our Equity Shares, and an active trading market on 
the SME Platform of BSE. The Issue Price of the Equity Shares may bear no relationship to the market price 
of the Equity Shares after the Issue. The market price of the Equity Shares after the Issue may be subject 
to significant fluctuations in response to, among other factors, variations in our operating results, market 
conditions specific to the fire fighting industry, crushing industry, developments relating to India and 
volatility in the Exchange and securities markets elsewhere in the world. However, the LM will arrange for 
compulsory market making for a period of 3 years from the date of listing as per the regulations 
applicable to the SME Platforms under SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009. 
 

32. There is no guarantee that the Equity Shares issued pursuant to the Issue will be listed on the SME 
Platform of BSE in a timely manner, or at all. 

 
In terms of Chapter XB of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009, as amended from time to time, we are not 
required to obtain any in-principle approval for listing of shares issued. We have only applied to BSE 
Limited to use its name as the Stock Exchange in this offer document for listing our shares on the SME 
Platform of BSE. In accordance with Indian law and practice, permission for listing and trading of the 
Equity Shares issued pursuant to the Issue will not be granted until after the Equity Shares have been 
issued and allotted. Approval for listing and trading will require all relevant documents authorizing the 
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issuing of Equity Shares to be submitted. There could be a failure or delay in listing the Equity Shares on 
the SME Platform of BSE. Any failure or delay in obtaining the approval would restrict your ability to 
dispose of your Equity Shares. 
 

33. The price of our Equity Shares may be volatile, or an active trading market for our Equity Shares may 
not develop. 

 
Prior to this Issue, there has been no public market for our Equity Shares. Alacrity Securities Limited is 
acting as Designated Market Maker for the Equity Shares of our Company. However, the trading price of 
our Equity Shares may fluctuate after this Issue due to a variety of factors, including our results of 
operations and the performance of our business, competitive conditions, general economic, political and 
social factors, the performance of the Indian and global economy and significant developments in India’s 
fiscal regime, volatility in the Indian and global securities market, performance of our competitors, the 
Indian Capital Markets, changes in the estimates of our performance or recommendations by financial 
analysts and announcements by us or others regarding contracts, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint 
ventures, or capital commitments. In addition, if the stock markets experience a loss of investor 
confidence, the trading price of our Equity Shares could decline for reasons unrelated to our business, 
financial condition or operating results. The trading price of our Equity Shares might also decline in 
reaction to events that affect other companies in our industry even if these events do not directly affect 
us. Each of these factors, among others, could materially affect the price of our Equity Shares. There can 
be no assurance that an active trading market for our Equity Shares will develop or be sustained after this 
Issue, or that the price at which our Equity Shares are initially offered will correspond to the prices at 
which they will trade in the market subsequent to this Issue. For further details of the obligations and 
limitations of Market Makers please refer to the section titled “General Information – Details of the 
Market Making Arrangement for this Issue” on page 31 of this Prospectus. 
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PROMINENT NOTES: 
 
1) SIZE OF THE ISSUE: 

Public Issue of 3,04,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (the “Equity Shares”) for cash at a price of Rs. 80/- 
per Equity Share aggregating to Rs. 243.20 Lacs (“the Issue”) by Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited (“THL” or 
the “Company” or the “Issuer”). Out of the Issue, 16,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each at a price of Rs. 
80/- each per Equity Share aggregating to Rs. 12.80 Lacs, which will be reserved for subscription by 
Market Makers to the issue (the “market maker reservation portion”) and Net Issue to the Public of 
2,88,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each at a price of Rs. 80/- each per Equity Share aggregating to Rs. 
230.40 Lacs (hereinafter referred to as the “Net Issue”). The Issue and the Net Issue will constitute 27.54% 
and 26.09%, respectively, of the post issue paid up Equity Share capital of the Company. 

 
2) The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by the Promoters: 

 
Name of the Promoter No. of Shares held Average cost of Acquisition 

(in Rs.) 
Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 4,08,000 0.13 

 
*The average cost of acquisition of our Equity Shares by our Promoters has been calculated by taking into account 
the amount paid by them to acquire, by way of fresh issuance or transfer, the Equity Shares, including the issue 
of bonus shares to them. The average cost of acquisition of our Equity Shares by our Promoters has been reduced 
due to the issuance of bonus shares to them, if any. For more information, please refer to the section titled 
“Capital Structure” on page 34. 
 
3) Our Net worth as on 31st  March, 2015 is Rs. 242.48 Lacs as per Restated Financial Statements. 

 
4) The Book - Value per share as on 31st March, 2015 is Rs. 30.31 as per Restated Financial Statements. 

 
5) There was no change in the name of the Company at any time during last three years immediately 

preceding the date of filing of this offer document except the fact that constitution of our company has 
been changed to a Public Limited Company and consequently the name was changed to “Tejnaksh 
Healthcare Limited " vide fresh certificate of incorporation dated 10th March, 2015 issued by the Registrar 
of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. 

 
6) Investors may please note that in the event of over subscription, allotment shall be made on 

proportionate basis in consultation with the BSE Limited, the Designated Stock Exchange. For more 
information, please refer to "Basis of Allotment" on 140 of the Prospectus. The Registrar to the Issue shall 
be responsible to ensure that the basis of allotment is finalized in a fair and proper manner as set out 
therein. 

 
7) Investors are advised to refer to the paragraph on "Basis for Issue Price" on page 48 of this Prospectus 

before making an investment in this Issue.  
 
8) No part of the Issue proceeds will be paid as consideration to Promoters, Promoter Group, Directors, key 

management employee, associate companies, or Group Companies. 
 
9) Investors may contact the Lead Manager or the Compliance Officer for any 

complaint/clarifications/information pertaining to the Issue. For contact details of the Lead Manager and 
the Compliance Officer, refer the front cover page.  

 
10) Other than as stated in the section titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page 34 of this Prospectus, our 

Company has not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash. 
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11) Except as mentioned in the sections titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page 34 of this Prospectus, 
we have not issued any Equity Shares in the last twelve months. 

 
12) Except as disclosed in the sections titled “Our Promoters” or “Our Management” beginning on pages 97 

and 88 respectively of this Prospectus, none of our Promoters, our Directors and our Key Managerial 
Employees have any interest in our Company except to the extent of remuneration and reimbursement of 
expenses and to the extent of the Equity Shares held by them or their relatives and associates or held by 
the companies, firms and trusts in which they are interested as directors, member, partner and/or trustee 
and to the extent of the benefits arising out of such shareholding.  

 
13) Any clarification or information relating to the Issue shall be made available by the LM and our Company 

to the investors at large and no selective or additional information would be available for a section of 
investors in any manner whatsoever. Investors may contact the LM for any complaints pertaining to the 
Issue. Investors are free to contact the LM for any clarification or information relating to the Issue who 
will be obliged to provide the same to the investor.  

 
14) For transactions in Equity Shares of our Company by the Promoter Group and Directors of our Company in 

the last six (6) months, please refer to paragraph under the section titled "Capital Structure" on page 34 
of this Prospectus. 

 
15) There are no contingent liabilities as on 31st March, 2015. 
 
16) For details of any hypothecation, mortgage or other encumbrances on the movable and immovable 

properties of our Company please refer to the section titled "Financial Information"on page 104 of this 
Prospectus. 
 

17) Except as disclosed in the section titled "Our Promoter Group / Group Companies / Entities" on page 99, 
none of our Group Companies have business interest in our Company.  

 
18) For interest of Promoters/Directors, please refer to the section titled “Our Promoters” beginning on page 

97 of this Prospectus. 
 

19) The details of transactions with the Group Companies/ Group Enterprises and other related party 
transactions are disclosed as Annexure 14 of restated financial statement under the section titled 
“Financial Information” on page 117 of the Prospectus. 
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SECTION III: INTRODUCTION 
SUMMARY 
 
This is only the summary and does not contain all information that you shall consider before investing in Equity 
Shares. You should read the entire Prospectus, including the information on “Risk Factors” and related notes on 
page 9 of this Prospectus before deciding to invest in Equity Shares. 
 
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 
 
Overview of the Indian Economy 
 
The Indian economy is ranked fourth in the world, on purchasing power parity basis, after United States, China 
and Japan (Source: https://www.cia.gov/library/publications/the-world factbook/geos/in.html). For the fiscal 
year 2015, the forecast for real GDP growth rate in India is estimated at 6.3% - 6.5% by the National Council of 
Applied Economic Research (“NCAER”) in their ‘Quarterly Review of the Economy’ on September 30, 2014. 
(Source: NCAER’s Quarterly Review of the Indian Economy 2014-15 and Forecast for 2015-16). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Growth in the Indian economy had been shifting down from 9.6 per cent in Q4 of 2010-11. It troughed around 4.4 
per cent for three quarters from Q3 of 2012-13 to Q1 of 2013-14. Since then there are signs of growth bottoming 
out with marginal improvement recorded during Q2 and Q3 of 2013-14 to 4.8 and 4.7 per cent respectively. 
However, this improvement has been feeble and clear signs of recovery are yet to emerge, even as the economy 
seems to be gearing for a modest recovery during 2014-15. 

 
OVERVIEW OF HEALTHCARE INDUSTRY IN INDIA 
 
The Indian healthcare sector, one of the fastest growing industries, is expected to grow at a compound annual 
growth rate (CAGR) of 17 per cent during 2011-2020 to touch US$ 280 billion. There is immense scope for 
enhancing healthcare services penetration in India, this presents ample opportunity for development of the 
healthcare industry. 
 
Strong Fundamentals: 
Rising income levels, ageing population, growing health awareness and changing attitude towards preventive 
healthcare is expected to boost healthcare services demand in future. 
 
The private sector has emerged as a vibrant force in India's healthcare industry, lending it both national and 
international repute. Its share in healthcare delivery is expected to increase from 66 per cent in 2005 to 81 per 
cent by 2015. In India, private healthcare accounts for almost 72 per cent of the country's total healthcare 
expenditure. 
 
Per capita healthcare expenditure is estimated to grow at a CAGR of 15.4 per cent during 2008-2015E to reach US$ 
88.7 on the back of rising incomes, easier access to high-quality healthcare facilities and greater awareness of 
personal health and hygiene. 
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The Government of India aims to develop India as a global healthcare hub. It has created the National Health 
Mission (NHM) for providing effective healthcare to both the urban and rural population. 
 
India has an advantage over its peers in the West and Asia in terms of cost of high-quality medical services 
offered. It offers a huge patient pool, favourable regulatory environment and cost advantage for conducting 
clinical trials. 
 
Cost Advantage: 
The low cost of medical services has resulted in a rise in the country’s medical tourism, attracting patients from 
across the world. Moreover, India has emerged as a hub for R&D activities for international players due to its 
relatively low cost of clinical research. 
 
ADVANTAGES OF HEALTHCARE INDUSTRY TO INDIA 
 
Strong demand  

ü Healthcare revenue in India is set to reach USD280 billion by 2020; expenditure is likely to expand at a 
CAGR of 17 per cent over 2011–20. 

ü Rising incomes, greater health awareness, ifestyle diseases and increasing access to insurance will 
contribute to growth. 

 
Attractive opportunities  

ü Investment in healthcare infrastructure is set to rise, benefiting both ‘hard’ (hospitals) and ‘soft’ (R&D, 
education) infrastructure. 

ü Medical tourism is emerging as one of the most lucrative investment areas in the country. 
 
Quality and affordability  

ü Availability of a large pool of well-trained medical professionals in the country. 
ü India has an advantage over its peers in the West and Asia in terms of cost of high-quality medical services 

offered. 
 
Policy support  

ü The government aims to develop India as a global healthcare hub. 
ü Policy support in the form of reduced excise and customs duty, and exemption in service tax. 
ü Initiatives like NRHM would boost healthcare in rural areas. 

 
BUSINESS OVERVIEW 
 
We are incorporated in Mumbai as “Tejnaksh Healthcare Private Limited” as on 18th February, 2008 as a private 
limited company under provision of companies Act 1956. Company was converted in to a Public Limited Company 
and consequently the name was changed to “Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited" vide fresh certificate of incorporation 
dated 10th March, 2015 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. 
 
We run an Institute of Urology, an ISO certified the international level Urology hospital, located in the heart of 
Dhule city, Maharashtra, India. The 24000 Sq. Ft. campus has a four storey building which houses the complete 
Urology setup. It provides a comprehensive range of services from consultations and investigations to treatment 
for Urology.  
 
We are equipped with all latest equipment and provide the whole range of services, the patients from local area 
do not feel the need to go to metropolitan areas for urological problems. The Institute is recognized by National 
board of examinations for DNB (Urology). The Institute boasts of 150 research publications and 23 innovations.  
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We are a professionally managed and growing organization which aims at strengthening and establishing itself as 
the foremost provider of healthcare services. We also aim at achieving greater and long-term growth. 
 
Our Managing Director and Promoter Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale is listed in Guinness World Records (twice), 
Ripley’s believe it or not, Limca book of records, India book of records (multiple records), Asia book of records, 
World amazing records and World record academy for various achievements and innovations in urology.  
 
The objective of our Hospital namely Institute of Urology is to provide the people of Khandesh region of 
Maharashtra, the services of a super specialty hospital at an affordable rate.  
 
We are an integrated healthcare delivery service provider, committed to delivering quality healthcare services to 
our patients in modern facilities. Our operations are divided across four key vertical streams in healthcare 
delivery, namely – “Pediatric Urology”, “Adult Urology (Male, Female)”, “Andrology and Sexual Dysfunction” and 
“Nephrology, Dialysis and Renal Transplant”.  
 
We offer a gamut of more than 65 healthcare services under these streams. A base of over 65 employees and 
consultants supports our healthcare facility network. 
 
Our healthcare facilities use advanced technology and our doctors, nurses and other healthcare professionals 
follow treatment protocols that match international standards. A majority of our healthcare facilities provide 
secondary, tertiary and quaternary healthcare services to patients. Some of our healthcare facilities provide super 
speciality quaternary healthcare to patients in key specialty areas such as Pediatric Urology and Adult Urology 
(Male, Female). 
 
SWOT:- 
 
Strengths 
 

Ø Able Guidance of our Experienced Promoter 
Ø Specialty Focus 
Ø Highly-skilled clinical staff. 
Ø Quality Patient Care 
Ø Ability to attract, retain and educate skilled doctors, nurses and other personnel 
Ø Strong experienced managerial capability 
Ø Cordial relations with Patients 
Ø Adaptability of company in the fast changing treatment rechnologies 
Ø Sound structured national network facilitates and the boom of healthcare industry 

 
Weaknesses 

Ø Not enough staff time to plan more events 
Ø Management or staff problems 
Ø Gaps in service areas 
Ø Own known vulnerability 

 
Opportunities 
 

Ø Large Potential 
Ø Rapid urbanization 
Ø Availability of new technology 
Ø Changes in population profile or need 
Ø Competitor vulnerabilities 
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Threats 
 

Ø Economic shifts 
Ø Competitors have superior access to channels of distribution 
Ø Adverse changes in reimbursement or regulations 
Ø Government & regulatory norms 
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL DATA 

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, AS RESTATED 
                               (Rs. In Lacs) 

 
Particulars  31.03.15   31.03.14   31.03.13   31.03.12   31.03.11  
Equity & Liabilities           
Shareholders' Funds           
Share Capital  80.00   1.00   1.00   1.00   1.00  
Reserve & Surplus  168.77   188.00   130.80   99.64   69.64  
Total (A)  248.77   189.00   131.80   100.64   70.64  
            
Non Current Liabilities           
Share Application Money pending allotment  -   -     -     -     -    
Long Term Borrowings  42.99   47.30   35.95   36.30   37.26  
Other Long-term Liabilities -  -     -     -     -    
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)  14.00   13.50   11.92   9.98   7.15  
Total (B)  56.99   60.80   47.87   46.28   44.41  
            
Current Liabilities           
Short Term Borrowings -  -     -     0.64   -    
Trade Payables  39.34   32.57   16.07   17.54   17.70  
Other Current Liabilities -  -     -     -     -    
Short Term Provisions  7.88   15.80   5.45   2.89   28.68  
Total (C)  47.22   48.37   21.52   21.07   46.38  
            
Total (D=A+B+C)  352.98   298.17   201.19   167.99   161.43  
            
Assets           
Fixed Assets:           
Tangible Assets  286.03   142.57   136.84   140.31   119.13  
Intagible Assets  0.80   -     -     -     -    
Long Term Loans & Advances  -     -     -     -     -    
Non Current Investments  -     -     -     -     -    
Deferred Tax Assets  -     -     -     -     -    
Preliminary Expenses to the extent not 
Written Off  6.29     -     -     -     0.05  

Other Non Current Assets  -     -     -     -     -    
Total (E)  293.12   142.57   136.84   140.31   119.18  
            
Current Assets           
Current Investments  -     -     -     -     -    
Inventories  13.67     -     -     -     -    
Trade Receivables  -     -     -     -     -    
Cash & Bank Balances  20.71   13.15   10.94   8.65   31.13  
Short Term Loans & Advances  25.48   142.45   53.41   19.03   11.12  
Other Current Assets -  -     -     -     -    
Total (F)  59.86  155.60   64.35   27.68   42.25  
            
Total (G=E+F)  352.98   298.17   201.19   167.99   161.43  
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS, AS RESTATED 

           (Rs. In Lacs) 
Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
Income           
Revenue from Operations  200.58   143.77   114.17   130.02   136.31  
Other Income 4.85  1.35   0.05   1.91   1.68  
Total 205.43  145.12   114.22   131.93   137.99  
            
Expenditure           
Purchases of Stock in Trade 22.54 - - - - 
Changes in Inventories (13.67) - - - - 
Direct Expenses  17.66   10.29   9.86   9.63   8.07  
Employees Benefit Expenses  46.62   9.59   20.24   44.96   43.23  
Administrative & Other Expenses  31.33   28.99   20.80   23.47   28.33  
Preliminary Expenses Written Off  -     -     -     0.05   0.05  
Total 104.48   48.87   50.90   78.11   79.68  
Profit before Depreciation, Interest and Tax  100.95   96.25   63.32   53.82   58.31  
Depreciation  13.64   11.44   10.96   9.52   7.90  
Profit before Interest & Tax  87.31   84.81   52.36   44.30   50.41  
Interest & Finance Charges 0.04  0.03   0.03   0.67   0.71  
Net Profit before Tax 87.27  84.78   52.33   43.63   49.70  
Less: Provision for Taxes:           
Current Tax 27.00  26.00   14.55   10.80   12.60  
Deferred Tax 0.50  1.58   1.94   2.83   2.85  
Net Profit After Tax & Before Extraordinary 
Items 59.77  57.20   35.84   30.00   34.25  

Extra Ordinary Items (Net of Tax)  -     -     4.68   -     -    
Net Profit 59.77  57.20   31.16   30.00   34.25  
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW, AS RESTATED 

                       (Rs. In Lacs) 
Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES           
Net profit after taxes  59.77   57.20   31.16   30.00   34.25  
Adjustment for:           
Add:   Depreciation  13.64   11.44   10.96   9.52   7.90  
Add:   Preliminary Expenses Written Off  -   -     -     0.05   0.05  
Add:   Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets -  -     -     -     -    
Operating Profit before Working capital changes  73.41   68.64   42.12   39.57   42.20  
Adjustments for:           
Decrease (Increase) in Current Investments -  -     -     -     -    
Decrease (Increase) in Inventories  (13.67)  -     -     -     -    
Decrease (Increase) in Trade Receivables -  -     -     -     -    
Decrease (Increase) in Short Term Loans & 
Advances 

 116.97   (89.04)  (34.38)  (7.91)  (6.26) 

Decrease (Increase) in Other Current Assets -  -     -     -     -    
Increase (Decrease) in Trade Payables  6.77   16.50   (1.47)  (0.16)  2.09  
Increase (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  -   -     -     -     -    
Increase (Decrease) in Short Term Provisions  (7.92)  10.35   2.56   (25.79)  20.80  
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Tax Liabilities  0.50   1.58   1.94   2.83   2.85  
Net Changes in Working Capital  102.65   (60.61)  (31.35)  (31.03)  19.48  
Net Cash Flow from  Operating Activities (A) 176.06  8.03   10.77   8.54   61.68  
            
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES           
(Purchase) of Fixed Assets  (157.90)  (17.17)  (7.49)  (30.70)  (35.68) 
Sale of Fixed Assets  -     -     -     -     -    
Decrease (Increase) in Non Current Investments  -     -     -     -     -    
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B)  (157.90)  (17.17)  (7.49)  (30.70)  (35.68) 
            
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES           
Issue of Share Capital  -     -     -     -     -    
Increase / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings  (4.31)  11.35   (0.35)  (0.96)  (5.21) 
Increase / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings  -     -     (0.64)  0.64   -    
Preliminary Expenses Incurred  (6.29)     -     -     -     -    
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C)  (10.60)  11.35   (0.99)  (0.32)  (5.21) 
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash 
Equivalents  7.56   2.21   2.29   (22.48)  20.79  

            
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
year / Period  13.15   10.94   8.65   31.13   10.34  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/ 
Period  20.71   13.15   10.94   8.65   31.13  
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ISSUE DETAILS IN BRIEF 
 

PRESENT ISSUE IN TERMS OF THIS PROSPECTUS 
 

Equity Shares Offered: 
Fresh Issue of Equity Shares by our Company 

Issue of 3,04,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each at a 
price of Rs. 80 per Equity Share aggregating Rs. 
243.20 Lacs. 

Of Which:  
Issue Reserved for the Market Makers 
 

16,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each at a price of 
Rs. 80 per Equity Share aggregating Rs. 12.80 Lacs. 

Net Issue to the Public 
 

2,88,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each at a price of 
Rs. 80 per Equity Share aggregating Rs. 230.40 
Lacs. 

Equity Shares outstanding prior to the Issue 8,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each 
Equity Shares outstanding after the Issue 11,04,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 

each 
Objects of the Issue 
 

Please refer section titled “Objects of the Issue” 
on page 44 of this Prospectus. 

 
This Issue is being made in terms of Chapter XB of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009, as amended from time to 
time. For further details please refer to “Issue Structure” on page 142 of this Prospectus. 
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GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

TEJNAKSH HEALTHCARE LIMITED  
 
Our Company was originally incorporated at Mumbai as “Tejnaksh Healthcare Private Limited” on 18th February, 
2008 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Our Company was converted in to a Public Limited 
Company and consequently the name was changed to “Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited " vide fresh certificate of 
incorporation dated 10th March, 2015 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. 
 
REGISTERED OFFICE: 
Unit No.11, Ground Floor,  
Town Centre ,  
Andheri Kurla Road,  
Marol, Andheri (East),  
Mumbai-400 059; 
Tel: 91-22- 4005 1526 
Email: instituteofurology@gmail.com 
Website: www.tejurology.com  
 
HOSPITAL & CORPORATE OFFICE: 
Institute of Urology 
Sakri Road,  
Dhule-424 001,  
Maharashtra; 
Tel: 91-2562- 245995/245322;  
Fax: 91-2562-248332 
Email: instituteofurology@gmail.com 
Website: www.tejurology.com  
 
COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER: 179034 
 
COMPANY IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: U85100MH2008PLC179034 
 
ADDRESS OF REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES 
 
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra 
100, Everest, Marine Drive, 
Mumbai – 400 002 
Tel: +91-22-2284 6955, 2281 2627, 2281 2645 
Fax: +91-22-22811977 
Email: roc.mumbai@mca.gov.in 
Website: www.mca.gov.in  
 
DESIGNATED STOCK EXCHANGE: BSE Limited  
 
LISTING OF SHARES OFFERED IN THIS ISSUE: SME platform of BSE  
 
For details in relation to the changes to the name of our Company, please refer to the section titled “Our History 
and Corporate Structure” beginning on page 86 of this Prospectus. 
 
CONTACT PERSON: Ms. Ritika Agarwal, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer; Unit No.11, Ground Floor, Town 
Centre, Andheri Kurla Road, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai-400 059 Email: instituteofurology@gmail.com  
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
Our Board of Directors comprise of the following members:  
 

NAME DESIGNATION DIN ADDRESS 
Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale Managing director 02005733 Sunderprabha Pramod Nagar, 

Sector No.2 Nakane Road, Dhule-
424001, Maharashtra, India 

Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale Non Executive Non 
Independent Director 

02021400 Institute of Urology, Sakri Road, 
Dhule-424001, Maharashtra, India 

Mr. Kiran Madhavrao Pawar Independent director 07078045 4, Kanad Apptt., Deopur, Dhule-
424002, Maharashtra, India 

Mr. Vikramsinh Satish Khatal 
Patil 

Independent director 01979626 12, Harshanil Society, 81 Rambaug 
Colony, Paud Road, Pune-411058, 

Maharashtra, India  
 
For further details of Management of our Company, please refer to section titled "Our Management" on page 88 of 
this Prospectus. 
 
COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
 
Ms. Ritika Agarwal,  
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer;  
Unit No.11, Ground Floor, 
Town Centre,   
Andheri Kurla Road,   
Marol, Andheri (East),  
Mumbai-400 059  
Tel: 91-22- 4005 1526 
Email: instituteofurology@gmail.com  
 
Investors can contact our Compliance Officer in case of any pre-Issue or post-Issue related matters such as non-
receipt of letters of allotment, credit of allotted shares in the respective beneficiary account, refund orders etc. 
 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
Mr. Ramesh Daulat Kuwar 
Chief Financial Officer, 
Institute of Urology 
Sakri Road,  
Dhule-424 001,  
Maharashtra; 
Tel: 91-2562- 245995/245322;  
Fax: 91-2562-248332 
Email: instituteofurology@gmail.com 
 
STATUTORY AUDITORS 
 
M/S. P.D. DALAL & CO.,  
Chartered Accountants 
102, B Wing, Lake Florence ABCDEF&G CHS, 
Phase-I, Adi Shankaracharya Road,  
Near Gopal Sharma High School, 
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Powai, Mumbai-400 076 
Firm Registration No. – 102047W 
Tel : +91-22-2857 3379 
Email: askakaria@gmail.com  
Website: www.pddalalco.in  
Contact Person: Mr. Aashish Kakaria 
 
PEER REVIEW AUDITORS 
 
M/S. RANDHIR JHUNJHUNWALA & CO.,  
Chartered Accountants 
232, Udyog Bhavan, 2nd Floor, 
Sonawala Road, Goregaon (East), 
Mumbai-400 063  
Firm Registration No. – 113675W 
Tel : +91-22-4096 7232 / 2686 7232 
Telefax : +91-22-4226 5100 
Email: info@cajhunjhunwala.com  
Contact Person: Mr. Randhir Kumar Jhunjhunwala 
 
LEAD MANAGER 
 
FIRST OVERSEAS CAPITAL LIMITED  
1-2 Bhupen Chambers, Ground Floor,  
Dalal Street, Mumbai-400-001 
Tel No. +91 22 4050 9999  
Fax No. +91 22 4050 9900 
Email id: rushabh@focl.in 
Investor Grievance Email: investorcomplaints@focl.in 
Website:www.focl.in 
SEBI Registration No: INM000003671 
Contact person: Mr. Rushabh Shorff 
 
LEGAL ADVISORS TO THE ISSUE 
 
SUNIL SHUKLA 
4, Shanti Sadan, 
Opp. Haweli Poddar Road, 
Malad (E), 
Mumbai – 400 097 
 
REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE 
 
CAMEO CORPORATE SERVICES LTD. 
Submaramanian Building, 
1 Club House Road, Chennai 600 002. 
Tel No.: +91-44-2846 0390/1989 
Fax No.: +91-44-2846 0129 
Website: www.cameoindia.com  
E-mail ID: cameo@cameoindia.com 
Contact Person: Mr. R. D. Ramasamy 
SEBI Registration No: INR000003753 
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ESCROW COLLECTION BANK / BANKER TO THE ISSUE AND REFUND BANKER 
 
HDFC BANK LIMITED 
I Think Techno Campus 
Level 0-3, Next to Kanjur Marg Railway Station 
Kanjur Marg (E), Mumbai – 400 042 
Attn: Uday Dixit  
Email: uday.dixit@hdfcbank.com 
Contact No.: +91-22 3075 2927 
Fax No.: +91-22 2579 9801 
 
ADVISORS TO COMPANY 
 
NAVIGANT CORPORATE ADVIORS LTD. 
Office No.6, Ground Floor, Bandukwala Building, 
British Hotel Lane, Off. Bombay Samachar Marg,  
Fort, Mumbai-400 001 
Tel No.: +91-22-6560 5550 
Website: www.navigantcorp.com   
E-mail ID: info@navigantcorp.com  
Contact Person: Mr. Sarthak Vijlani 
 
SELF CERTIFIED SYNDICATE BANKS 
 
The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSB for the Applications Supported by Blocked Amount 
(“ASBA”) Process are provided on http://www.sebi.gov.in/pmd/scsb.pdf. For details on designated branches of 
SCSBs collecting the ASBA Application Form, please refer to the above-mentioned SEBI link. 
 
CREDIT RATING 
 
As the Issue is of Equity shares, credit rating is not mandatory. 
 
TRUSTEES 
 
As the Issue is of Equity Shares, the appointment of Trustees is not mandatory. 
 
IPO GRADING 
 
Since the Issue is being made in terms of Chapter XB of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, there is no requirement of 
appointing an IPO Grading agency. 
 
BROKERS TO THE ISSUE 
 
All members of the recognized stock exchanges would be eligible to act as Brokers to the Issue. 
 
APPRAISAL AND MONITORING AGENCY 
 
As per Regulation 16(1) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009 the requirement of Monitoring Agency is not 
mandatory if the Issue size is below Rs. 500.00 Crores. Since the Issue size is only of Rs. 243.20 Lacs, our Company 
has not appointed any monitoring agency for this Issue. However, as per the Clause 52 of the SME Listing 
Agreement to be entered into with BSE upon listing of the Equity Shares and the Corporate Governance 
requirements, the Audit Committee of our Company, would be monitoring the utilization of the proceeds of the 
Issue. 
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DETAILS OF THE APPRAISING AUTHORITY 
 
The objects of the Issue and deployment of funds are not appraised by any independent agency/ bank/ financial 
institution. 
 
INTER-SE ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
Since First Overseas Capital Limited is the sole Lead Manager to this Issue, a statement of inter se allocation 
responsibilities among Lead Manager’s is not required. 
 
EXPERT OPINION  
 
Except the report of the Statutory Auditor of our Company on the financial statements and statement of tax 
benefits included in the Prospectus, our Company has not obtained any other expert opinion.  
 
UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT 
 
Underwriting 
 
This Issue is 100% Underwritten. The Underwriting Agreement is dated 20th March, 2015. Pursuant to the terms of 
the Underwriting Agreement, the obligations of the Underwriters are several and are subject to certain conditions 
specified therein. The Underwriters have indicated their intention to underwrite the following number of 
specified securities being offered through this Issue: 
 

Name and Address of the Underwriters Number of Equity 
shares Underwritten 

Amount Underwritten 
(Rupees In Lacs) 

 
FIRST OVERSEAS CAPITAL LIMITED  
1-2 Bhupen Chambers, Ground Floor,  
Dalal Street, Mumbai-400-001 
Tel No. +91 22 4050 9999  
Fax No. +91 22 4050 9900 
Email id: rushabh@focl.in 
Investor Grievance Email: investorcomplaints@focl.in 
Website:www.focl.in 
SEBI Registration No: INM000003671 
Contact person: Mr. Rushabh Shorff 

54,000 43.20 

ALACRITY SECURITIES LIMITED 
101, 1st Floor, Hari Dharshan, 
B Wing, Bhogilal Fadia Road, 
Kandivali (West), 
Mumbai - 400 067 
Tel: +91-22-28073882/28073982 
Fax: +91-22-28073967 
Email : alacritysec@gmail.com  
Website: www.alacritysec.com 
Contact Person: Mr. Hiten Mehta 
Investor Grievance e-mail: alacritysec@gmail.com 
SEBI Registration No.: INB010909837 

2,50,000 200.00 

TOTAL 3,04,000 243.20 
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DETAILS OF THE MARKET MAKING ARRANGEMENT FOR THIS ISSUE 
 
Our Company has entered into an agreement dated 20th March, 2015 with the Lead Manager and Market Maker to 
fulfill the obligations of Market Making. 
 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE MARKET MAKER 
 
ALACRITY SECURITIES LIMITED 
101, 1st Floor, Hari Dharshan, 
B Wing, Bhogilal Fadia Road, Kandivali (West), 
Mumbai - 400 067 
Tel: +91-22-28073882/28073982; Fax: +91-22-28073967 
Investor Grievance e-mail: alacritysec@gmail.com 
Website: www.alacritysec.com 
SEBI Registration No.: INB010909837 
 
The Market Maker shall fulfill the applicable obligations and conditions as specified in the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 
and its amendments from time to time and the circulars issued by the BSE, and SEBI regarding this matter from 
time to time.  
 
Following is a summary of the key details pertaining to the Market Making arrangement: 
 

1. The Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) shall be required to provide a 2-way quote for 75% of the 
time in a day. The same shall be monitored by the Stock Exchange. Further, the Market Maker(s) shall 
inform the exchange in advance for each and every black out period when the quotes are not being 
offered by the Market Maker(s). 

 
2. The minimum depth of the quote shall be Rs. 1,00,000/-. However, the investors with holdings of value 

less than Rs.1,00,000/- shall be allowed to offer their holding to the Market Maker(s) (individually or 
jointly) in that scrip provided that he sells his entire holding in that scrip in one lot along with a 
declaration to the effect to the selling broker. 

 
3. After a period of three (3) months from the market making period, the market maker would be exempted 

to provide quote if the Shares of market maker in our Company reaches to 25 %. (Including the 5% of Issue 
Size of Equity Shares out to be allotted under this Issue.) Any Equity Shares allotted to Market Maker 
under this Issue over and above % of Issue Size of Equity Shares Equity Shares would not be taken in to 
consideration of computing the threshold of 25%. As soon as the Shares of market maker in our Company 
reduce to 24%, the market maker will resume providing 2-way quotes.  
 

4. There shall be no exemption/threshold on downside. However, in the event the market maker exhausts 
his inventory through market making process, the concerned stock exchange may intimate the same to 
SEBI after due verification  
 

5. Execution of the order at the quoted price and quantity must be guaranteed by the Market Maker(s), for 
the quotes given by him. 

 
6. There would not be more than five Market Makers for a script at any point of time and the Market Makers 

may compete with other Market Makers for better quotes to the investors. 
 

7. On the first day of the listing, there will be pre-opening session (call auction) and there after the trading 
will happen as per the equity market hours. The circuits will apply from the first day of the listing on the 
discovered price during the pre-open call auction. 
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8. The Marker maker may also be present in the opening call auction, but there is no obligation on him to do 
so. 

 
9. There will be special circumstances under which the Market Maker may be allowed to withdraw 

temporarily/fully from the market – for instance due to system problems or any other problems. All 
controllable reasons require prior approval from the Exchange, while force-majeure will be applicable for 
non controllable reasons. The decision of the Exchange for deciding controllable and non-controllable 
reasons would be final. 

 
10. The Market Maker(s) shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by giving a six months notice or on 

mutually acceptable terms to the Merchant Banker, who shall then be responsible to appoint a 
replacement Market Maker(s). In case of termination of the above mentioned Market Making agreement 
prior to the completion of the compulsory Market Making period, it shall be the responsibility of the Lead 
Manager to arrange for another Market Maker in replacement during the term of the notice period being 
served by the Market Maker but prior to the date of releasing the existing Market Maker from its duties in 
order to ensure compliance with the requirements of regulation 106V of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009. 
Further the Company and the Lead Manager reserve the right to appoint other Market Makers either as a 
replacement of the current Market Maker or as an additional Market Maker subject to the total number of 
Designated Market Makers does not exceed five or as specified by the relevant laws and regulations 
applicable at that particulars point of time. The Market Making Agreement is available for inspection at 
our Registered Office from 11.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. on working days. 

 
11. Risk containment measures and monitoring for Market Makers: BSE SME Exchange will have all margins 

which are applicable on the BSE Main Board viz., Mark-to-Market, Value-At-Risk (VAR) Margin, Extreme 
Loss Margin, Special Margins and Base Minimum Capital etc. BSE can impose any other margins as deemed 
necessary from time-to-time.  

 
12. Punitive Action in case of default by Market Makers: BSE SME Exchange will monitor the obligations on a 

real time basis and punitive action will be initiated for any exceptions and/or non-compliances. Penalties 
/ fines may be imposed by the Exchange on the Market Maker, in case he is not able to provide the 
desired liquidity in a particular security as per the specified guidelines. These penalties / fines will be set 
by the Exchange from time to time. The Exchange will impose a penalty on the Market Maker in case he is 
not present in the market (offering two way quotes) for at least 75% of the time. The nature of the 
penalty will be monetary as well as suspension in market making activities / trading membership. 

 
The Department of Surveillance and Supervision of the Exchange would decide and publish the penalties / 
fines / suspension for any type of misconduct/ manipulation/ other irregularities by the Market Maker 
from time to time.  

 
13. Price Band and Spreads: SEBI Circular bearing reference no: CIR/MRD/DP/ 02/2012 dated January 20, 

2012, has laid down that for issue size up to Rs. 250 crores, the applicable price bands for the first day 
shall be: 

i. In case equilibrium price is discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session 
shall be 5% of the equilibrium price. 

ii. In case equilibrium price is not discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session 
shall be 5% of the issue price. 

iii. Additionally, the trading shall take place in TFT segment for first 10 days from commencement of trading. 
The following spread will be applicable on the BSE SME Exchange/ Platform. 

 
Sr. No. Market Price Slab (in Rs.) Proposed spread (in % to sale price) 

1 Up to 50 9 
2 50 to 75 8 
3 75 to 100 6 
4 Above 100 5 
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE 
 

The Share Capital of the Company as at the date of this Prospectus, before and after the Issue, is set forth below. 
    (Rs. in Lacs, except share data) 

 
Sr. No 

 
Particulars 

Aggregate 
value at face 

value 

Aggregate 
value at Issue 

Price 
A. Authorized Share Capital   
 15,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10 each  150.00 150.00 
    

B. Issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share Capital before the 
Issue 

  

 8,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each  80.00 --- 
C. Present Issue in terms of the Prospectus    
 Issue of 3,04,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each at a price of Rs. 80 

per Equity Share. 
30.40 243.20 

 Which comprises   
 16,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. 80 per 

Equity Share reserved as Market Maker Portion 
1.60 12.80 

 Net Issue to Public of 2,88,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a 
price of Rs. 80 per Equity Share to the Public 

28.80 230.40 

 Of which   
 1,44,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each at a price of Rs. 80 per 

Equity Share will be available for allocation for Investors of up to 
Rs. 2.00 Lacs 

14.40 115.20 

 1,44,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each at a price of Rs. 80 per 
Equity Share will be available for allocation for Investors of above 
Rs. 2.00 Lacs 

14.40 115.20 

D. Equity capital after the Issue   
 11,04,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  110.40 --- 

E. Securities Premium Account 
Before the Issue 
After the Issue 

 
Nil 

212.80 
 
*This Issue has been authorized by the Board of Directors pursuant to a board resolution dated 15th March, 2015 
and by the shareholders of our Company pursuant to a special resolution dated 19th March, 2015 passed at the 
EGM of shareholders under section 62 (1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Our Company has no outstanding convertible instruments as on the date of the Prospectus. 
 
CHANGES IN THE AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL OF OUR COMPANY: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars of Change Date of 
Shareholders’ 

Meeting 

Meeting 
AGM/EGM From To 

1 - 1,000 Equity Shares of 
Rs. 100 each 

- Incorporation 

2 1,000 Equity Shares of 
Rs. 100 each 

Subdivided into 10,000 
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 

each 

20th December, 
2014 

EGM 

3 10,000 Equity Shares of 
Rs. 10 each 

1,50,000 Equity Shares of 
Rs. 10 each 

20th December, 
2014 

EGM 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE  
 
1. Equity Share Capital history of our Company 
 
Date of/ 

issue 
allotment of 

Shares 
 

No. of 
Equity 
Shares 
Issued 

 

Fa
ce 
va
lu
e 
(R
s) 
 

Issu
e 

pric
e 

(Rs.) 
 

Consider
ation 
(cash, 
bonus, 

consider
ation 
other 
than 
cash) 

 

Nature of allotment 
(Bonus, swap etc.) 

Cumulativ
e 

no. of 
Equity 
Shares 

 

Cumulative 
paid-up 
share 
capital 
(Rs.) 

 

Cumulative 
share 

premium 
(Rs.) 

 
 

Incorporation 1,000 10 100 Cash Subscription to MOA 1,000 1,00,000 NIL 
20/12/2014 N.A. 10 N.A. N.A. Subdivided Face Value 

from Rs. 100 to Rs. 10 
10,000 1,00,000 NIL 

31/01/2015 7,90,000 10 Nil Other 
than Cash 

Bonus Issue in the ratio 
of 79:1 

8,00,000 80,00,000 NIL 

 
2. We have not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash.   
 
3. We have not issued any Equity Shares out of revaluation reserves or in terms of any scheme approved under 

Sections 391- 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 or Sections 230- 233 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

3. Issue of Equity Shares in the last one (1) year: 
 
Except as stated below, we have not issued any Equity Shares in the preceding one year and some of these Equity 
Shares may have been issued at a price lower than the Issue Price: 
 

Date of 
Allotment 

Number 
of Equity 
Shares 

Name of the Allottees Relationship 
with the 

Promoters 

Reasons for the 
Allotment 

Face 
Value 

(in Rs.) 

Issue 
Price 
(in 
Rs.) 

31/01/2015 
 

 
 

7,90,000 Dr. Ashish Vishwas 
Rawandale (4,02,900 Equity 
Shares) & Dr. Preeti Vishwas 
Rawandale  (3,87,100 Equity 
Shares) 

Promoter & 
Promoter 

Group 
 

 

Bonus Issue in the 
ratio of 79:1 

10 Nil 
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4. Shareholding of our Promoters: 
 
Set forth below is the details of the build-up of shareholding of our Promoters 
 

1. DR. ASHISH VISHWAS RAWANDALE 
Date of 

Allotment / 
Transfer 

Consid
eration  

 

No. of 
Equity 
Shares 

Face 
value 
per 
Shar

e 
(Rs.) 

Issue / 
Acquis
ition/T
ransfe
r price 
( Rs.) 

Nature of Transactions  
 

Pre-
issue 

shareh
olding 

%  

Post- 
issue 

shareh
olding 

% 

18.02.2008 Cash 5,100 10 10 Subscriber to MOA  
31.01.2015 Cash 4,02,900 10 Nil Bonus Issue in the ratio of 

79:1 
Total  4,08,000    51.00 36.96 

 
Details of Promoters’ contribution locked in for three years: 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 32 and 36 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations aggregate of 20% of the post-Issue capital held by our 
Promoters shall be considered as promoters’ contribution (“Promoters Contribution”) and locked-in for a period 
of three years from the date of Allotment. The lock-in of the Promoters Contribution would be created as per 
applicable law and procedure and details of the same shall also be provided to the Stock Exchange before listing 
of the Equity Shares. 
 
Our Promoters have granted consent to include such number of Equity Shares held by them as may constitute 20% 
of the post-Issue Equity Share capital of our Company as Promoters Contribution and have agreed not to sell or 
transfer or pledge or otherwise dispose of in any manner, the Promoters Contribution from the date of filing of 
this Prospectus until the commencement of the lock-in period specified above. 
 

Name of Promoter No. of shares 
locked in 

Date of 
Allotment/ 

Acquisition/Tr
ansfer 

Issue 
Price / 

Purchase 
Price 

/Transfer 
Price(Rs. 

per 
share) 

% of Pre- 
Issue 

Paid up 
Equity 
capital 

% of Post 
Issue Paid 
up Equity 

capital 

Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 4,600 18.02.2008 10  
2,22,280 31.01.2015 Nil 

 2,26,880   28.36% 20.55% 

 
We further confirm that the minimum Promoter Contribution of 20% which is subject to lock-in for three years 
does not consist of: 
 
• Equity Shares acquired during the preceding three years for consideration other than cash and out of revaluation 
of assets or capitalization of intangible assets or bonus shares out of revaluation reserves or reserves without 
accrual of cash resources. 
 
• Equity Shares acquired by the Promoters during the preceding one year, at a price lower than the price at which 
Equity Shares are being offered to public in the Issue. 
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• Private placement made by solicitation of subscription from unrelated persons either directly or through any 
intermediary. 
 
• The Equity Shares held by the Promoters and offered for minimum 20% Promoters’ Contribution are not subject 
to any pledge.  
 
• Equity Shares for which specific written consent has not been obtained from the shareholders for inclusion of 
their subscription in the minimum Promoters’ Contribution subject to lock-in. 
 
• Equity shares issued to our Promoters on conversion of partnership firms into limited companies. 
 
Specific written consent has been obtained from the Promoters for inclusion of the Equity Shares for ensuring 
lock-in of three years to the extent of minimum 20% of post -Issue paid-up Equity Share Capital from the date of 
allotment in the proposed public Issue. Promoters' Contribution does not consist of any private placement made by 
solicitation of subscription from unrelated persons either directly or through any intermediary. 
 
The minimum Promoters’ Contribution has been brought to the extent of not less than the specified minimum lot 
and from the persons defined as Promoters under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009. The Promoters’ Contribution 
constituting 20% of the post-Issue capital shall be locked-in for a period of three years from the date of Allotment 
of the Equity Shares in the Issue. 
 
All Equity Shares, which are to be locked-in, are eligible for computation of Promoters’ Contribution, in 
accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009.  Accordingly we confirm that the Equity Shares proposed to be 
included as part of the Promoters’ Contribution:  
 
a) have not been subject to pledge or any other form of encumbrance; or  
 
b) have not been acquired, during preceding three years, for consideration other than cash and revaluation of 

assets or capitalization of intangible assets is not involved in such transaction; 
 
c) is not resulting from a bonus issue by utilization of revaluation reserves or unrealized profits of the Issuer or 

from bonus issue against Equity Shares which are ineligible for minimum Promoters’ Contribution; 
 

d) have not been acquired by the Promoters during the period of one year immediately preceding the date of 
filing of this Prospectus at a price lower than the Issue Price.  

 
The Promoters’ Contribution can be pledged only with a scheduled commercial bank or public financial institution 
as collateral security for loans granted by such banks or financial institutions, in the event the pledge of the 
Equity Shares is one of the terms of the sanction of the loan. The Promoters’ Contribution may be pledged only if 
in addition to the above stated, the loan has been granted by such banks or financial institutions for the purpose 
of financing one or more of the objects of this Issue.  
 
The Equity Shares held by our Promoters may be transferred to and among the Promoter Group or to new 
promoters or persons in control of our Company, subject to continuation of the lock-in in the hands of the 
transferees for the remaining period and compliance with the Takeover Code, as applicable.  
 
5. Details of share capital locked in for one year: 
 
In addition to 20% of the post-Issue shareholding of our Company held by the Promoters (locked in for three years 
as specified above), in accordance with regulation 36 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009, the entire pre-Issue share 
capital of our Company (including the Equity Shares held by our Promoters) shall be locked in for a period of one 
year from the date of Allotment in this Issue. 
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The Equity Shares held by persons other than our Promoters and locked-in for a period of one year from the date 
of Allotment, in accordance with regulation 37 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009, in the Issue may be transferred to 
any other person holding Equity Shares which are locked-in, subject to the continuation of the lock-in the hands of 
transferees for the remaining period and compliance with the Takeover Code.  
 
 
6. Shareholding Pattern of our Company:  
 
A:        The following table presents the shareholding pattern of Our Company 
 

Category of Shareholder No. of 
Shareholders 

Pre-Issue Post-Issue Shares Pledged 
or  otherwise 
encumbered 

 No. of Equity 
Shares 

As a % 
of 

Issued 
Equity 

No. of Equity 
Shares 

As a % of 
Issued 
Equity 

Number 
of shares 

As 
a 
% 

Shareholding of Promoters and Promoter group 
INDIAN 
Individuals/HUFs 
Directors/Relatives 

4 7,99,997 100.00 7,99,997 72.46 --- --- 

Central Govt. / 
State Govts. 

     --- --- 

Bodies Corporate - - - - - --- --- 
Financial Institutions/Banks      --- --- 
Sub Total A (1) 4 7,99,997 100.00 7,99,997 72.46 --- --- 
FOREIGN 
Bodies Corporate - --- --- --- --- --- --- 
Individual - --- --- --- --- --- --- 
Institutions - --- --- --- --- --- --- 
Any others (specify) - --- --- --- --- --- --- 
Sub Total A (2) - --- --- --- --- --- --- 
Total Shareholding of 
Promoter group A (1) + A 
(2) 

4 7,99,997 100.00 7,99,997 72.46 --- --- 

        
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING 
Institutions        
Central Govt./ 
State Govts. 

- --- --- [●] [●] --- --- 

Financial Institutions/Banks - --- --- [●] [●] --- --- 
Mutual Funds/UTI - --- --- [●] [●] --- --- 
Venture Capital Funds - --- --- [●] [●] --- --- 
Insurance Companies - --- --- [●] [●] --- --- 
Foreign Institutions Investors - --- --- [●] [●] --- --- 
Foreign Venture Capital 
Investors 

- --- --- [●] [●] --- --- 

Any Others (Specify) - --- --- [●] [●] --- --- 
Sub Total B (1) - --- --- [●] [●] --- --- 
Non Institutions - --- ---     
Bodies Corporate    [●] [●] --- --- 
Individuals-shareholders 
holding normal share capital 

3 3 - [●] [●] --- --- 
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Category of Shareholder No. of 
Shareholders 

Pre-Issue Post-Issue Shares Pledged 
or  otherwise 
encumbered 

 No. of Equity 
Shares 

As a % 
of 

Issued 
Equity 

No. of Equity 
Shares 

As a % of 
Issued 
Equity 

Number 
of shares 

As 
a 
% 

up to Rs. 1 Lac 
Individuals-shareholders 
holding normal Share capital 
in excess of Rs.1 Lac 

- - - [●] [●] --- --- 

Trust    [●] [●] --- --- 
Any Other (i) Clearing 
Member 

   [●] [●] --- --- 

Directors/Relatives    [●] [●] --- --- 
Employees    [●] [●] --- --- 
Foreign Nationals    [●] [●] --- --- 
NRIs    [●] [●] --- --- 
OCB’S    [●] [●] --- --- 
Person Acting in Concert    [●] [●] --- --- 
Sub Total  B(2) 3 3 - [●] [●] --- --- 

Total Public Shareholding 
B(1) + B(2) 

3 3 - 288003 26.09 --- --- 

Total A+B 7 8,00,000 100.00 288003 26.09 --- --- 
Shares held by Custodians 
and against which 
Depository receipts have 
been issued (C) 

- - -   --- --- 

Shares held by Market 
Makers (D)  

- - - 16000 1.45 --- --- 

Grand Total A+B+C+D 7 8,00,000 100.00 1104000 100.00 --- --- 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
TEJNAKSH HEALTHCARE LIMITED 

 

40 
 

[B] Shareholding of our Promoters and Promoter Group 
 
The table below presents the current shareholding pattern of our Promoters and Promoter Group (Individuals and 
Companies) as per clause 37 of the SME Listing Agreement. 
 

Sr. 
No
. 

Name of the 
Shareholders 

Pre-Issue Post-Issue Shares pledged or otherwise 
encumbered 

No. of 
Equity 
Shares 

As a % 
of 

Issued 
Share 

Capital 

No. of 
Equity 
Shares 

As a % of 
Issued 
Share 

Capital 

Number As a 
percentage 

As a % of 
grand 
Total 

(a)+(b)+(c) 
of 

Sub-clause 
(i)(a) 

A Promoters        
1 Dr. Ashish Vishwas 

Rawandale 4,08,000 51.00 4,09,000 36.96 
- - - 

B Promoter Group   
2 Dr. Preeti Ashish  

Rawandale 
3,91,995 49.00 3,91,995 35.51   - - - 

3 Mr. Utkarsh V. Rawandale 1 - 1 -   - - - 
4 Ms. Pramilabai Rawandale 1 - 1 -   - - - 
         
 TOTAL (A+B) 7,99,997 100.00 7,99,997 72.46   - - - 
 
 
[C] Shareholding of persons belonging to the category ‘Public’ and holding more than 1% of our Equity Shares 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the 
Shareholders 

Pre-Issue Post-Issue 
No. of 
Shares 

Shares as % of 
total no. of 

shares 

No. of 
Shares 

Shares as % 
of total no. 
of shares 

NIL 
 
7. The average cost of acquisition of or subscription to Equity Shares by our Promoters is set forth in the 
table below: 

Name of the Promoters No. of Shares held Average cost of 
Acquisition  

(in Rs.) 
Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 4,08,000 0.13 

 
8. None of our Directors or Key Managerial Personnel hold Equity Shares in our Company, other than as 
follows:  
 

Name of the Shareholders No. of Equity Shares 
 

Pre-Issue 
percentage 

Shareholding 
Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 4,08,000 51.00% 
Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale 3,91,995 49.00% 
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9. Equity Shares held by top ten shareholders 
 
(a) Our top ten shareholders and the number of Equity Shares held by them as on date of the Prospectus are 
as under: 

Sr. 
No. Name of the Shareholders No. of Shares 

% age of 
Pre-Issue 
Capital 

1 Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 4,08,000 51.00% 
2 Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale 3,91,995 49.00% 
3 Mr. Utkarsh V. Rawandale 1 - 
4 Ms. Pramilabai Rawandale 1 - 
5 Dr. Lokesh Patni 1 - 
6 Mr. Kamal Pawar 1 - 
7 Mr. Arun Dodamani 1 - 

 
(b)  Our top ten shareholders and the number of Equity Shares held by them ten days prior to the date of the 
Prospectus are as under: 
 

Sr. 
No. Name of the Shareholders No. of Shares 

% age of 
Pre-Issue 
Capital 

1 Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 4,08,000 51.00% 
2 Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale 3,91,995 49.00% 
3 Mr. Utkarsh V. Rawandale 1 - 
4 Ms. Pramilabai Rawandale 1 - 
5 Dr. Lokesh Patni 1 - 
6 Mr. Kamal Pawar 1 - 
7 Mr. Arun Dodamani 1 - 

 
 (c) Our top ten shareholders and the number of Equity Shares held by them two years prior to date of the 
Prospectus are as under:  
 

Sr. 
No. Name of the Shareholders 

No. of Shares  
@ Face Value Rs. 100 

% age of 
then Pre-Issue 

Capital 
1 Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 510 51.00% 
2 Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale 490 49.00% 

 
 
10. There is no "Buyback", "Standby", or similar arrangement for the purchase of Equity Shares by our 
Company/Promoters/Directors/Lead Manager for purchase of Equity Shares offered through the Prospectus.  
 
11. There have been no purchase or sell of Equity Shares by the Promoters, Promoter Group and the Directors 
during a period of six months preceding the date on which the Prospectus is filed with BSE excepts as detailed 
below: 
 

Date of 
Transfer 

Nature of Transactions  
 

No. of 
Equity 
Shares 

Face 
value 
per 
Shar

e 
(Rs.) 

 
Acquis
ition/T
ransfe
r price 
( Rs.) 

20.02.2015 Transfer  by Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale to Mr. 1 10 10 
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Date of 
Transfer 

Nature of Transactions  
 

No. of 
Equity 
Shares 

Face 
value 
per 
Shar

e 
(Rs.) 

 
Acquis
ition/T
ransfe
r price 
( Rs.) 

Utkarsh V. Rawandale 
20.02.2015 Transfer by Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale to Ms. 

Pramilabai Rawandale 
1 10 10 

20.02.2015 Transfer by Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale to Mr. 
Lokesh Patni 

1 10 10 

20.02.2015 Transfer by Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale to Mr. 
Kamal Pawar 

1 10 10 

20.02.2015 Transfer by Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale to Mr. 
Arun Dodamani 

1 10 10 

 
12. Our Company has not raised any bridge loans against the proceeds of this Issue. 
 
13. Investors may note that in case of over-subscription, allotment will be on proportionate basis as detailed in 
paragraph on "Basis of Allotment" on page 151 of this Prospectus. 
 
14. An over-subscription to the extent of 10% of the Issue can be retained for the purpose of rounding off while 
finalizing the basis of allotment to the nearest integer during finalizing the allotment, subject to minimum 
allotment lot. 
Consequently, the actual allotment may go up by a maximum of 10% of the Issue, as a result of which, the post 
issue paid up capital after the Issue would also increase by the excess amount of allotment so made. In such an 
event, the Equity Shares held by the Promoters and subject to lock-in shall be suitably increased to ensure that 
20% of the post issue paid-up capital is locked-in. 
 
15. As on date of filing of this Prospectus, the entire issued share capital of our Company is fully paid-up. The 
Equity Shares offered through this Public Issue will be fully paid up. 
 
16. On the date of filing the Prospectus, there are no outstanding financial instruments or any other rights that 
would entitle the existing Promoters or shareholders or any other person any option to receive Equity Shares after 
the Issue. 
 
17. Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares out of revaluation reserves and not issued any bonus shares out 
of capitalization of revaluation reserves.  
 
18. Lead Manager to the Issue viz. First Overseas Capital Limited does not hold any Equity Shares of our Company. 
 
19. Our Company has not revalued its assets since incorporation. 
 
20. Our Company has not made any public issue since incorporation. 
 
21. There will be only one denomination of the Equity Shares of our Company unless otherwise permitted by law, 
our Company shall comply with such disclosure, and accounting norms as may be specified by SEBI from time to 
time.  
 
22. There will be no further issue of capital whether by way of issue of bonus shares, preferential allotment, and 
rights issue or in any other manner during the period commencing from submission of this Prospectus until the 
Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to the Issue have been listed. 
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23. Except as disclosed in the Prospectus, our Company presently does not have any intention or proposal to alter 
its capital structure for a period of six (6) months from the date of opening of the Issue, by way of 
spilt/consolidation of the denomination of Equity Shares or further issue of Equity Shares (including issue of 
securities convertible into Equity Shares) whether preferential or otherwise. However, during such period or a 
later date, it may issue Equity Shares or securities linked to Equity Shares to finance an acquisition, merger or 
joint venture or for regulatory compliance or such other scheme of arrangement if an opportunity of such nature 
is determined by its Board of Directors to be in the interest of our Company. 
 
24. At any given point of time, there shall be only one denomination for a class of Equity Shares of our Company. 
 
25. Our Company does not have any ESOS/ESPS scheme for our employees and we do not intend to allot any 
shares to our employees under ESOS/ESPS scheme from the proposed Issue. As and when, options are granted to 
our employees under the ESOP scheme, our Company shall comply with the SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme 
and Employees Stock Purchase Plan) Guidelines 1999. 
 
26. An investor cannot make an application for more than the number of Equity Shares offered in this Issue, 
subject to the maximum limit of investment prescribed under relevant laws applicable to each category of 
investor. 
 
27. No payment, direct, indirect in the nature of discount, commission, and allowance, or otherwise shall be 
made either by us or by our Promoters to the persons who receive allotments, if any, in this Issue. 
 
28. Our Company has Seven (7) members as on the date of filing of this Prospectus. 
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE 
 
The objects of the Issue are to finance our business expansion plans and achieve the benefits of listing on the SME 
platform of BSE Ltd. We believe that listing will enhance our corporate image and brand name of our Company.  
 
The objects of the Issue are as stated below: 
 

1. Expansion and Development of Hospital of our Company 
2. General corporate expenses 
3. To meet the expenses of the Issue 

 
The main objects of our Memorandum of Association permits us to undertake our existing activities and the 
activities for which the funds are being raised by us, through the present Issue. The fund requirement and 
deployment is based on internal management estimates and has not been appraised by any bank or financial 
institution.  
 
Our funding requirements are dependent on a number of factors, which may not be in the control of our 
management, changes in our financial condition and current commercial conditions. Such factors may entail 
rescheduling and / or revising the planned expenditure and funding requirement and increasing or decreasing the 
expenditure for a particular purpose from the planned expenditure.  
 
The details of the proceeds of the Issue are summarized in the table below: - 

        (Rs. In Lacs) 

No. Particulars Amount 

I Expansion and Development of Hospital of our Company 150.00 
   

II General Corporate purposes 60.00 

    
III Issue Expenses 33.20 

 TOTAL 243.20 

  
MEANS OF FINANCE 

                                                                                        (Rs. In Lacs) 
Particulars Amount 
Initial Public Offering  243.20 
Internal Accruals - 
Total  243.20 

 
We propose to meet the entire requirement of funds for the Objects from the Net Proceeds of the Issue. 
Accordingly, the requirement under Regulation 4(2)(g) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations of firm arrangements of 
finance through verifiable means for the 75% of the stated means of finance excluding the Issue Proceeds is not 
applicable. 
 
In the event of a shortfall in raising the requisite capital from the proceeds of the Issue, towards meeting the 
Objects of the Issue, the extent of the shortfall will be met by internal accruals and/or from fresh debt. 
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DETAILS OF THE OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE 
 
I.  EXPANSION AND DEVELOPMENT OF HOSPITAL OF OUR COMPANY 
 
We run an Institute of Urology, an ISO certified the international level Urology hospital, Located in the heart of 
Dhule city, Maharashtra, India. The 24000 sq. ft. campus has a four storey, 24000 sq.ft. building which houses the 
complete Urology setup. It provides a comprehensive range of services from consultations and investigations to 
treatment for Urology. As the institute is equipped with all latest equipment and provides the whole range of 
services, the patients from local area do not feel the need to go to metropolitan areas for urological problems. 
The institute is recognised by National board of examinations for DNB (Urology). The institute boasts of 150 
research publications and 23 innovations.  
 
In view of the dynamic nature of the healthcare services and adapt ourselves for rapid changes in healthcare 
sector, we need to modernize and develop our present Hospital. We have allocated Rs. 150 Lacs towards the same 
and break up of same is tabled as below:- 
 

Sr. No. Particulars Amount 
(Rs. in Lacs) 

 

1. Equipment Cost  80.00 
2. Information Technology 30.00 
3. Engineering Services 20.00 
4. Research & Development 20.00 

 Total  150.00 
 
 
II.  GENERAL CORPORATE EXPENSES 
 
Our Company in accordance with the policies set up by our Board, will have flexibility in applying the remaining 
Net proceeds of this issue aggregating 60.00 Lacs, for general corporate purpose towards, financing normal capital 
expenditure, strategic initiatives, expanding into new geographies, pre-operative expenses, brand building 
exercise and strengthening our marketing capabilities. 
 
IV.  TO MEET THE EXPENSES OF THE ISSUE 
 
The total estimated expenses are Rs. 33.20 Lacs which is 13.64 % of Issue Size. The details of Issue expenses are 
tabulated below: 
 

 (Rs. In lacs) 
Particulars Amount 

(Rs. in 
Lacs) 

% of Total 
Issue 
Expenses 

% of 
Total 
Issue 
Size 

Issue management fees including fees and reimbursements of Market Making 
fees, selling commissions, brokerages, and payment to other intermediaries 
such as Legal Advisors, Registrars and other out of pocket expenses. 

24.00 72.29 9.87 

Printing & Stationery, Distribution, Postage, etc 2.00 6.02 0.82 
Advertisement & Marketing Expenses    2.00 6.02 0.82 
Regulatory & other expenses  3.00 9.04 1.23 
Miscellaneous Expenses 2.20 6.63 0.90 
Total       33.20 100.00 13.64 
 
 



 
TEJNAKSH HEALTHCARE LIMITED 

 

46 
 

Proposed year-wise deployment of funds and Schedule of implementation: 
 

The overall cost of the proposed Project and the proposed year wise break up of deployment of funds are as 
under: 
          (Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars Already 
Incurred  FY 2015 – 16 TOTAL 

Expansion and Development of 
Hospital of our Company - 150.00 150.00 

General Corporate purposes - 60.00 60.00 

Issue Expenses 4.70 28.50 33.20 
TOTAL 4.70 228.50 243.20 

 
Details of funds already deployed till date and sources of funds deployed 

 
The funds deployed up to 28th February, 2015 pursuant to the object of this Issue as certified by the Auditors of 
our Company, viz. M/s P.D. Dalal & Co., Chartered Accountants pursuant to their certificate dated 23rd March, 
2015 is given below: 

(Rs. in Lacs) 
Deployment of Funds Amount  
Issue Related Expenses 4.70 
Total 4.70 

 
(Rs. in Lacs) 

Sources of Funds Amount  
Internal Accruals 4.70 
Total 4.70 

 
BRIDGE FINANCING FACILITIES  
 
We have currently not raised any bridge loans against the Proceeds of the Issue. However, depending on our 
requirement, we might consider raising bridge financing facilities, pending receipt of the Proceeds of the Issue. 
 
APPRAISAL 
 
None of the Objects have been appraised by any bank or financial institution or any other independent third party 
organization. The funding requirements of our Company and the deployment of the proceeds of the Issue are 
currently based on management estimates. The funding requirements of our Company are dependent on a number 
of factors which may not be in the control of our management, including variations in interest rate structures, 
changes in our financial condition and current commercial conditions and are subject to change in light of changes 
in external circumstances or in our financial condition, business or strategy.   
 
SHORTFALL OF FUNDS 
 
In case of any shortfall in the proceeds to meet the objects mentioned above, our management may explore a 
range of options, including utilizing internal accruals or seeking debt or additional equity. In case of surplus funds 
either due to lower utilization than what is stated above or surplus Net Proceeds after meeting all the above 
mentioned objects, such surplus shall be utilised towards general corporate purposes. Alternatively, if surplus 
funds are unavailable or in the event of cost overruns, we expect that a shortfall will be met by way of such 
means available to our Company including internal accruals and/or appropriate debt or equity arrangements. 
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INTERIM USE OF FUNDS 
 
Pending utilisation for the purposes described above, we intend to invest the funds in high quality interest bearing 
liquid instruments such as money market mutual funds, deposits with banks, Government or Public Sector 
Undertaking securities. The Board or its committee will approve such investments from time to time, in 
accordance with its investment policies. 
 
MONITORING OF UTILISATION OF FUNDS 
 
Proposed size of the issue is Rs. 243.20 Lacs i.e. less than Rs.50,000.00 Lacs. Therefore, in terms of Regulation 
16(1) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, appointment of a monitoring agency for the purposes of this Issue is not 
mandatory and hence no Monitoring Agency is being appointed for this Issue. 
 
Our Board and the management will monitor the utilization of the Net Proceeds through its audit committee. 
Pursuant to Clause 52 of the SME Listing Agreement, our Company shall on half-yearly basis disclose to the Audit 
Committee the applications of the proceeds of the Issue. On an annual basis, our Company shall prepare a 
statement of funds utilized for purposes other than stated in this Prospectus and place it before the Audit 
Committee. Such disclosures shall be made only until such time that all the proceeds of the Issue have been 
utilized in full. The Statutory Auditors of our Company will certify the statement. 
 
No part of the Net Proceeds will be paid by the Company as consideration to the Promoters, members of the 
Promoter Group, Directors or key management personnel of the Company. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
TEJNAKSH HEALTHCARE LIMITED 

 

48 
 

BASIS FOR ISSUE PRICE 
 
Investors should read the following basis with the “Risk Factors” beginning on page 9 and the details about the 
“Business of our Company” and its “Financial Statements” included in this Prospectus on page 68 & 104 
respectively to get a more informed view before making any investment decisions. 
 
QUALITATIVE FACTORS 
 
Some of the qualitative factors, which form the basis for computing the Issue Price, are: 
 
Able Guidance of our Experienced Promoter 
 
We have been promoted by Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale, who has been primarily responsible for rearing the 
Institute of Urology, Dhule to an international standard kidney care center of north Maharashtra. He 
is postgraduate in Surgery (M.S.) and a qualified superspecialist (Mch and DNB) in urology. He has relentlessly 
achieved major milestones in Urology. He has vast experience in urologic surgery and administration. He holds 
records in the Guinness Book of World Records, Ripley’s believe it or not, Limca book of records, India book of 
records (multiple records), Asia book of records, World amazing records and World record academy.  
 
With his inclination towards innovations he now has 20 innovations and patents in Urology to his name A thorough 
academician with about 150 publications and presentations, he is a recognised undergraduate and postgraduate 
teacher for the Maharashtra University of Health Sciences. He is a guide for Urology, recognised by the National 
Board of Examinations.  
 
He is working as chief Urologist and Director of Tejnaksh Institute of Urology since 12 years. He is Trustee and 
Secretary of Jawahar Medical Foundation’s ACPM Medical, Dental and Nursing College. He is also Trustee and 
Director of Jawahar Shikhan Prasarak Sanstha, Dhule, Maharashtra 
 
Modern, patient-centric facilities 
 
We adhere to high standards of clinical protocol in patient handling, operating theatres, intensive care unit 
management and emergency care. Clinical governance is one of our major focus areas. We have defined processes 
and created protocols, and established mechanisms to review our processes and protocols through audits.  
 
Our healthcare facilities are fitted with modern medical technology and equipment, including new generation 
surgical devices to conduct minimally invasive surgeries, and we focus on obtaining the latest advanced 
technologies for providing healthcare services. Our healthcare facilities have been designed to ensure that we are 
able to offer high quality care to our patients, minimizing inpatient movement and with outpatient facilities 
located near diagnostic facilities within the facilities.  
 
Our staff is continually trained to care for patients with techniques utilised in the hospitality industry, which, 
together with the design of our facilities, helps relieve patient anxiety and provide a more comfortable 
experience for patients. We also undertake pre-emptive and high quality maintenance of our facilities.  
 
A complete set up for Urology Treatments 
 
We run an Institute of Urology, an ISO certified the international level Urology hospital, located in the heart of 
Dhule city, Maharashtra, India. The 24000 Sq. Ft. campus has a four storey building which houses the complete 
Urology setup. It provides a comprehensive range of services from consultations and investigations to treatment 
for Urology. We are equipped with all latest equipment and provide the whole range of services, the patients from 
local area do not feel the need to go to metropolitan areas for urological problems. The Institute is recognized by 
National board of examinations for DNB (Urology). The Institute boasts of 150 research publications and 23 
innovations.  
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Skilled healthcare personnel dedicated to high quality patient care 
 
We have a team of over 65 medical professionals, including doctors, nurses and paramedical personnel. We 
believe that our reputation for clinical excellence, specialised healthcare facilities and advanced medical 
technology, together with the opportunities for research and development that we offer, enables us to attract 
high quality doctors and medical support staff. We believe that the abilities of our doctors enable us to offer our 
patients a full suite of complex procedures and surgeries.  
 
We believe that the quality of our healthcare personnel is a key factor in ensuring the high standard of services 
and patient care that we provide. 
 
Growth driven 
 
Our Company has witnessed substantial growth in past few years. Income of our Company has increased from Rs. 
130.02 Lacs in the fiscal 2011-12 to Rs. 143.77 Lacs in the fiscal 2013-14. Our Net Worth stands at Rs. 242.48 Lacs 
as on 31st March, 2015. Our profits have grown from Rs. 30 Lacs in fiscal 2012 to Rs. 59.77 Lacs for the fiscal 2015. 
 
QUANTITATIVE FACTORS 
 
Information presented in this section is derived from our restated financial statements certified by the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company. 
 
1. Basic Earning Per Equity Share (EPS)  (on Face value of Rs. 10 per share) 
 

Year Earnings per Share  
(Rs.) Weight 

FY 2012-13 3.90 1 
FY 2013-14 7.15 2 
FY 2014-15 7.47 3 

Weighted Average 6.77  
 
• EPS Calculations have been done in accordance with Accounting Standard 20-“Earning per Share” issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

• Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average 
number of Equity Shares outstanding during the period. Weighted Average number of Equity Shares is the 
number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year/period adjusted by the number of Equity 
Shares issued during year/period multiplied by the time weighting factor. The time weighting factor is the 
number of days for which the specific shares are outstanding as a proportion of total number of days 
during the year. 

 
• For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 

equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares except where the results are anti-dilutive. 

 
2. Price / Earnings Ratio (P/E) in relation to the Issue Price Rs. 80.00 

 
a) Based on fiscal year as on 31st  March, 2015; at EPS of Rs. 7.47 as per Restated Financial Statements, 

the P/E ratio is 10.71. 
b) Based on weighted average EPS of Rs. 6.77 as per Restated Financial Statements, the P/E ratio is 

11.82. 
c) Industry PE:  
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Industry- Healthcare P/E 
Highest 53,5 
Lowest 17.4 
Industry Composite 48.0 
*Source: Capital Market Volume XXX/02 March 16-29, 2015; Healthcare 

 
3. Return on Net Worth  
 

Year RONW (%) Weight 
FY 2012-13 23.64 1 
FY 2013-14 30.26 2 
FY 2014-15 24.65 3 

Weighted Average 26.35  
 

4. Minimum return on post Issue Net Worth to maintain the Pre-issue EPS at 31stMarch, 2015 is 16.98%. 
 

5. Net Asset Value per Equity Share 
 

Sr. No. Particulars (Rs.) 
a)  As on 31st March, 2015 30.31 
b)  After Issue 43.99 
c)  Issue Price 80.00 

  
6. Peer Group Comparison of Accounting Ratios 

 
We are currently engaged in the business of providing healthcare services, where we run an Institute of 
Urology an ISO certified the international level Urology hospital and there is no listed comparable peer group 
company. 
 

7. The face value of our shares is Rs.10/- per share and the Issue Price is of Rs. 80 per share is 8.00 (Eight) 
times of the face value. 

 
8. The Company in consultation with the Lead Manager believes that the Issue Price of Rs. 80.00 per share 

for the Public Issue is justified in view of the above parameters. The investors may also want to peruse 
the risk factors and financials of the company including important profitability and return ratios, as set 
out in the Auditors’ Report in the offer Document to have more informed view about the investment 
proposition. 
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STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS 
 
To, 
The Board of Directors 
Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited 
Institute of Urology 
Sakri Road,  
Dhule-424 001, Maharashtra   
 
Dear Sirs, 
 
Sub: Statement of possible tax benefits available to the Company and its shareholders on proposed Public 
Issue of Shares under the existing tax laws 
 
We hereby confirm that the enclosed Annexure, prepared by Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited (‘the Company’), 
states the possible tax benefits available to the Company and the shareholders of the Company under the Income-
tax Act, 1961 (‘IT Act’), Wealth Tax Act, 1957 and Gift Tax, 1958 presently in force in India. Several of these 
benefits are dependent on the Company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant 
tax laws. Hence, the ability of the Company or its shareholders to derive the tax benefits is dependent upon 
fulfilling such conditions which, based on business imperatives which the Company may face in the future, the 
Company may or may not fulfill. 
The benefits discussed in the Annexure are not exhaustive and the preparation of the contents stated is the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. We are informed that this statement is only intended to provide 
general information to the investors and hence is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional 
tax advice. In view of the individual nature of the tax consequences, the changing tax laws, each investor is 
advised to consult his or her own tax consultant with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their 
participation in the issue. 
Our confirmation is based on the information, explanations and representations obtained from the Company and 
on the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company and the interpretation 
of the current tax laws in force in India. 
 
We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance whether: 
• The Company or its shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in future; or 
• The Conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been or would be met. 
 
The contents of the annexure are based on information, explanations and representations obtained from the 
Company and on the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company. 
 
No assurance is given that the revenue authorities / courts will concur with the views expressed herein. The views 
are based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to change from time to time. 
We would not assume responsibility to update the view, consequence to such change. We shall not be liable to 
Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited for any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment except to the 
extent of fees relating to this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have resulted primarily from bad 
faith of intentional misconduct. 
 
For P.D. Dalal & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.- 102047W 
Sd/- 
Aashish S. Kakaria 
M. No. 102915 
Partner 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 23.03.2015 
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ANNEXURE TO THE STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO TEJNAKSH HEALTHCARE LIMITED 
AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS  

 
Outlined below are the possible benefits available to the Company and its shareholders under the current direct 
tax laws in India. 
 
 Benefits to the Company under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (The “Act”)  
 

1. General tax benefits  
 
A. Business Income  
The Company is entitled to claim depreciation on specified tangible and intangible assets owned by it and used for 
the purpose of its business as per provisions of Section 32 of the Act. Business losses, if any, for an assessment 
year can be carried forward and set off against business profits for eight subsequent years. Unabsorbed 
depreciation, if any, for an assessment year can be carried forward and set off against any source of income in 
subsequent years as per provisions of Section 32 of the Act.  
 
B. MAT Credit  

• As per provisions of Section 115JAA of the Act, the Company is eligible to claim credit for Minimum 
Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) paid for any assessment year commencing on or after April 1, 2006 against normal 
income-tax payable in subsequent assessment years.  

 
• As per Section 115JB, Minimum Alternate Tax (“MAT”) is payable @18.5% of the Book profits computed in 

accordance with the provisions of this section, where income-tax computed under the normal provisions 
of the Act is less than 18.5% of the Book profits as computed under the said section. A surcharge on 
income tax of 5% would be levied if the total income exceeds Rs.10 million but does not exceed Rs 100 
million. A surcharge at the rate of 10% would be levied if the total income exceeds Rs 100 million. 
Education cess of 2% and Secondary Higher Education cess of 1% is levied on the amount of tax and 
surcharge.  

 
• MAT credit shall be allowed for any assessment year to the extent of difference between the tax payable 

as per the normal provisions of the Act and the tax paid under Section 115JB for that  assessment year. 
Such MAT credit is available for set-off up to ten years succeeding the assessment year in which the MAT 
credit arises.  

 
C. Capital Gains  
 
(i) Computation of capital gains: 

• Capital assets are to be categorized into short - term capital assets and long – term capital assets based on 
the period of holding. All capital assets, being a security (other than a unit) listed in a recognized stock 
exchange in India or unit of the Unit Trust of India or a unit of a mutual fund, which are equity oriented 
funds, specified under section 10(23D) of the Act or a zero coupon bond, held by an assessee for more 
than twelve months are considered to be long - term capital assets, capital gains arising from the transfer 
of which are termed as long - term capital gains (‘LTCG’).  
In respect of any other capital assets, the holding period should exceed thirty - six months to be 
considered as long - term capital assets.  

 
• Short - term capital gains (‘STCG’) means capital gains arising from the transfer of capital asset being a 

security (other than a unit) listed in a recognized stock exchange in India or unit of the Unit Trust of India 
or a unit of a mutual fund, which are equity oriented funds, specified under clause (23D) of Section 10 or 
a zero coupon bonds, held by an assessee for twelve months or less.  

 
• In respect of any other capital assets, STCG means capital gains arising from the transfer of an asset, held 

by an assessee for thirty six months or less.  
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• LTCG arising on transfer of equity shares of a Company or units of an equity oriented fund (as defined 

which has been set up under a scheme of a mutual fund specified under Section 10(23D) is exempt from 
tax as per provisions of Section 10(38) of the Act, provided the transaction is chargeable to securities 
transaction tax (STT) and subject to conditions specified in that section.  

 
• Income by way of LTCG exempt under Section 10(38) of the Act is to be taken into account while  

determining book profits in accordance with provisions of Section 115JB of the Act.  
 

• As per provisions of Section 48 of the Act, LTCG arising on transfer of capital assets, other than bonds and 
debentures (excluding capital indexed bonds issued by the Government) and depreciable assets, is 
computed by deducting the indexed cost of acquisition and indexed cost of  improvement from the full 
value of consideration.  

 
• As per provisions of Section 112 of the Act, LTCG not exempt under Section 10(38) of the Act are subject 

to tax at the rate of 20% with indexation benefits. However, if such tax payable in respect of any income 
arising from transfer of a long-term capital asset being listed securities (other than a unit) or zero coupon 
bond exceed 10% of the LTCG (without indexation benefit), the excess tax shall be ignored for the purpose 
of computing the tax payable by the assessee.  

 
• As per provisions of Section 111A of the Act, STCG arising on sale of equity shares or units of equity 

oriented mutual fund (as defined which has been set up under a scheme of a mutual fund specified under 
Section 10(23D)) or a unit of a business trust, are subject to tax at the rate of 15% provided the 
transaction is chargeable to STT. No deduction under Chapter VIA is allowed from such income. Provided 
further that the provisions of this sub-section shall not apply in respect of any income arising from 
transfer of units of a business trust which were acquired by the assessee in consideration of a transfer as 
referred to in clause (xvii) of section 47.  

 
• STCG arising on sale of equity shares or units of equity oriented mutual fund (as defined which has been 

set up under a scheme of a mutual fund specified under Section 10(23D)), where such transaction is not 
chargeable to STT is taxable at the rate of 30%.  

 
• As per provisions of Section 71 read with Section 74 of the Act, short – term capital loss arising during a 

year is allowed to be set-off against short - term as well as long - term capital gains. Balance loss, if any, 
shall be carried forward and set-off against any capital gains arising during subsequent eight assessment 
years.  

 
• As per provisions of Section 71 read with Section 74 of the Act, long – term capital loss arising during a 

year is allowed to be set-off only against long – term capital gains. Balance loss, if any, shall be carried 
forward and set-off against long – term capital gains arising during subsequent eight assessment years.  

 
(ii)    Exemption of capital gains from income – tax 

• Under Section 54EC of the Act, capital gain arising from transfer of long – term capital assets [other than 
those exempt u/s 10(38)] shall be exempt from tax, subject to the conditions and to the extent specified 
therein, if the capital gain are invested within a period of six months from the date of transfer in the 
bonds redeemable after three years and issued by -: 

ü National Highway Authority of India (NHAI) constituted under Section 3 of National Highway Authority of 
India Act, 1988; and 

ü Rural Electrification Corporation Limited (REC), a company formed and registered under the Companies 
Act, 1956. 
 

• Where a part of the capital gains is reinvested, the exemption is available on a proportionate basis. The 
maximum investment in the specified long term asset cannot exceed Rs 50,00,000 per assessee during any 
financial year in which the original asset or assets are transferred and in the subsequent financial year. 
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• Where the new bonds are transferred or converted into money within three years from the date of their 

acquisition, the amount so exempted is taxable as capital gains in the year of transfer / conversion. 
 

• As per provision of Section 14A of the Act, expenditure incurred to earn an exempt income is not allowed 
as deduction while determining taxable income. 
 

• The characterization of the gain / losses, arising from sale / transfer of shares as business income or 
capital gains would depend on the nature of holding and various other factors. 

 
D.    Securities Transaction Tax 
 
As per provisions of Section 36(1) (xv) of the Act, STT paid in respect of the taxable securities transactions 
entered into in the course of the business is allowed as a deduction if the income arising from such taxable 
securities transactions is included in the income computed under the head ‘Profit and gains of business or 
profession’. Where such deduction is claimed, no further deduction in respect of the said amount is allowed 
while determining the income chargeable to tax as capital gains. 
 
E.     Dividend 
 
• As per provisions of Section 10(34) read with Section 115-O of the Act, dividend (both interim and final), if 

any, received by the Company on its investments in shares of another Domestic Company is exempt from 
tax. The Company will be liable to pay dividend distribution tax (DDT) at the rate of 15%. A surcharge of 
10% would be levied on the amount of DDT. Further, Education cess of 2% and Secondary Higher Education 
cess of 1% is levied on the amount of tax and surcharge. Credit in respect of dividend distribution tax paid 
by a subsidiary of the Company could be available while determining the dividend distribution tax payable 
by the Company as per provisions of Section 115-O (1A) of the Act, subject to fulfillment of prescribed 
conditions. For the purposes of determining the tax on distributed profits payable in accordance with this 
section, any amount by way of dividends referred to in sub-section 115-O (1) as reduced by the amount 
referred to in sub section 115-O (1A) [hereafter referred to as net distributed profits], shall be increased 
to such amount as would, after reduction of the tax on such increased amount at the rate specified in sub-
section 115-O (1), be equal to the net distributed profits. 
 

• As per provisions of Section 10(35) of the Act, income received in respect of units of a mutual fund 
specified under Section 10(23D) of the Act (other than income arising from transfer of such units) is 
exempt from tax. 
 

• As per provisions of Section 80G of the Act, the Company is entitled to claim deduction of as specified 
amount in respect of eligible donations, subject to the fulfillment of the conditions specified in that 
section. 
 

• As per the provisions of Section 115BBD of the Act, dividend received by Indian company from a specified 
foreign company (in which it has shareholding of 26% or more) would be taxable at the concessional rate 
of 15% on gross basis (excluding surcharge and education cess). 

 
Benefits to the Resident members / shareholders of the Company under the Act 

 
A.   Dividends exempt under section 10(34) of the Act 
 
As per provisions of Section 10(34) of the Act, dividend (both interim and final), if any, received by the 
resident members / shareholders from the Company are exempt from tax. The Company will be liable to pay 
dividend distribution tax at the rate of 15% plus a surcharge as applicable, on the dividend distribution tax 
and education cess and secondary and higher education cess of 2% and 1% respectively on the amount of 
dividend distribution tax and surcharge thereon on the total amount distributed as dividend. 
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For the purposes of determining the tax on distributed profits payable in accordance with this section, any 
amount by way of dividends referred to in sub-section 115-O (1) as reduced by the amount referred to in sub-
section 115-O (1A) [hereafter referred to as net distributed profits], shall be increased to such amount as 
would, after reduction of the tax on such increased amount at the rate specified in sub-section 115-O (1), be 
equal to the net distributed profits. 
 
B.    Capital Gains: 
 

(i) Computation of capital gains 
 

• Capital assets are to be categorized into short - term capital assets and long - term capital assets based on 
the period of holding. All capital assets, being a security (other than a unit) listed in a recognized stock 
exchange in India or unit of the Unit Trust of India or a unit of a mutual fund which are equity oriented 
funds specified under section 10(23D) of the Act or a zero coupon bond, held by an assessee for more than 
twelve months are considered to be long - term capital assets, capital gains arising from the transfer of 
which are termed as LTCG. In respect of any other capital assets, the holding period should exceed thirty 
– six months to be considered as long - term capital assets. 
 

• STCG means capital gains arising from the transfer of capital asset being a security (other than a unit) 
listed in a recognized stock exchange in India or unit of the Unit Trust of India or a unit of a mutual fund 
which are equity oriented funds specified under clause (23D) of Section 10 or a zero coupon bonds, held 
by an assessee for twelve months or less. 
 

• In respect of any other capital assets, STCG means capital gain arising from the transfer of an asset, held 
by an assessee for thirty six months or less. 
 

• LTCG arising on transfer of equity shares of a Company or units of an equity oriented fund (as defined 
which has been set up under a scheme of a mutual fund specified under Section 10(23D)) is exempt from 
tax as per provisions of Section 10(38) of the Act, provided the transaction is chargeable to STT and 
subject to conditions specified in that section. 
 

• As per first proviso to Section 48 of the Act, the capital gains arising on transfer of share of an Indian 
Company need to be computed by converting the cost of acquisition, expenditure incurred in connection 
with such transfer and full value of the consideration receiving or accruing as a result of the transfer, into 
the same foreign currency in which the shares were originally purchased. The resultant gains thereafter 
need to be reconverted into Indian currency. The conversion needs to be at the prescribed rates 
prevailing on dates stipulated. Further, the benefit of indexation as provided in second proviso to Section 
48 is not available to non-resident shareholders. 

 
• As per provisions of Section 112 of the Act, LTCG not exempt under Section 10(38) of the Act are subject 

to tax at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and cess) with indexation benefits. However, if such 
tax payable in respect of any income arising from transfer of a long-term capital asset being listed 
securities (other than a unit) or zero coupon bond exceed 10% of the LTCG (without indexation benefit), 
the excess tax shall be ignored for the purpose of computing the tax payable by the assessee. As per 
provisions of Section 111A of the Act, STCG arising on sale of equity shares or units of equity oriented 
mutual fund (as defined which has been set up under a scheme of a mutual fund specified under Section 
10(23D)), or a unit of a business trust are subject to tax at the rate of 15% (plus applicable surcharge and 
cess) provided the transaction is chargeable to STT. No deduction under Chapter VIA is allowed from such 
income. Provided further that the provisions of this sub-section shall not apply in respect of any income 
arising from transfer of units of a business trust which were acquired by the assessee in consideration of a 
transfer as referred to in clause (xvii) of section 47. 
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• STCG arising on sale of equity shares or units of equity oriented mutual fund (as defined which has been 
set up under a scheme of a mutual fund specified under Section 10(23D)), where such transaction is not 
chargeable to STT is taxable at the rate of  30%. 
 

• As per provisions of Section 71 read with Section 74 of the Act, short - term capital loss arising during a 
year is allowed to be set-off against short - term as well as long – term capital gains. Balance loss, if any, 
shall be carried forward and set-off against any capital gains arising during subsequent eight assessment 
years. 
 

• As per provisions of Section 71 read with Section 74 of the Act, long - term capital loss arising during a 
year is allowed to be set-off only against long - term capital gains. Balance loss, if any, shall be carried 
forward and set-off against long - term capital gains arising during subsequent 8 assessment years. 

 
(ii) Exemption of capital gains arising from income – tax 

 
• As per Section 54EC of the Act, capital gains arising from the transfer of a long – term capital asset are 

exempt from capital gains tax if such capital gains are invested within a period of six months after the 
date of such transfer in specified bonds issued by NHAI and REC and subject to the conditions specified 
therein. 
 

• Where a part of the capital gains is reinvested, the exemption is available on a proportionate basis. The 
maximum investment in the specified long - term asset cannot exceed Rs 5,000,000 per assessee during 
any financial year in which the original asset or assets are transferred and in the subsequent financial 
year. 
 

• Where the new bonds are transferred or converted into money within three years from the date of their 
acquisition, the amount so exempted is taxable as capital gains in the year of transfer / conversion. 
 

• As per provisions of Section 14A of the Act, expenditure incurred to earn an exempt income is not allowed 
as deduction while determining taxable income. 
 

• The characterization of the gain / losses, arising from sale / transfer of shares as business income or 
capital gains would depend on the nature of holding and various other factors. 
 

• In addition to the same, some benefits are also available to a resident shareholder being an individual or 
Hindu Undivided Family (‘HUF’). 
 

• As per provisions of Section 54F of the Act, LTCG arising from transfer of shares is exempt from tax if the 
net consideration from such transfer is utilized within a period of one year before, or two years after the 
date of transfer, for purchase of a new residential house, or for construction of residential house within 
three years from the date of transfer and subject to conditions and to the extent specified therein. 

 
C.    Tax Treaty Benefits 
 
As per provisions of Section 90 (2) of the Act, non-resident shareholders can opt to be taxed in India as per 
the provisions of the Act or the double taxation avoidance agreement entered into by the Government of 
India with the country of residence of the non-resident shareholder, whichever is more beneficial. 
 
D.    Non-Resident Taxation 
 
Special provisions in case of Non-Resident Indian (‘NRI’) in respect of income / LTCG from specified foreign 
exchange assets under Chapter XII-A of the Act are as follows: 
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• NRI means a citizen of India or a person of Indian origin who is not a resident. A person is deemed to be of 
Indian origin if he, or either of his parents or any of his grandparents, were born in undivided India. 
 

• Specified foreign exchange assets include shares of an Indian company which are acquired / purchased 
subscribed by NRI in convertible foreign exchange. 
 

• As per provisions of Section 115E of the Act, LTCG arising to a NRI from transfer of specified foreign 
exchange assets is taxable at the rate of 10% (plus education cess and secondary & higher education cess 
of 2% and 1% respectively). 
 

• As per provisions of Section 115E of the Act, income (other than dividend which is exempt under Section 
10(34)) from investments and LTCG (other than gain exempt under Section 10(38)) from assets (other than 
specified foreign exchange assets) arising to a NRI is taxable at the rate of 20% (education cess and 
secondary & higher education cess of 2% and 1% respectively). No deduction is allowed from such income 
in respect of any expenditure or allowance or deductions under Chapter VIA of the Act. 
 

• As per provisions of Section 115F of the Act, LTCG arising to a NRI on transfer of a foreign exchange asset 
is exempt from tax if the net consideration from such transfer is invested in the specified assets or savings 
certificates within six months from the date of such transfer, subject to the extent and conditions 
specified in that section. 
 

• As per provisions of Section 115G of the Act, where the total income of a NRI consists only of incomeb / 
LTCG from such foreign exchange asset / specified asset and tax thereon has been deducted at source in 
accordance with the Act, the NRI is not required to file a return of income. 
 

• As per provisions of Section 115H of the Act, where a person who is a NRI in any previous year, becomes 
assessable as a resident in India in respect of the total income of any subsequent year, he / she may 
furnish a declaration in writing to the assessing officer, along with his / her return of income under 
Section 139 of the Act for the assessment year in which he / she is first assessable as a resident, to the 
effect that the provisions of the Chapter XII-A shall continue to apply to him / her in relation to 
investment income derived from the specified assets for that year and subsequent years until such assets 
are transferred or converted into money. 
 

• As per provisions of Section 115I of the Act, a NRI can opt not to be governed by the provisions of Chapter 
XII-A for any assessment year by furnishing return of income for that assessment year under Section 139 of 
the Act, declaring therein that the provisions of the chapter shall not apply for that assessment year. In 
such a situation, the other provisions of the Act shall be applicable while determining the taxable income 
and tax liability arising thereon. 

 
Benefits available to Foreign Institutional Investors (‘FIIs’) under the Act 
 
A.   Dividends exempt under section 10(34) of the Act  

   
As per provisions of Section 10(34) of the Act, dividend (both interim and final), if any, received by a 
shareholder from a domestic Company is exempt from tax. The Company will be liable to pay dividend 
distribution tax at the rate of 15% plus a surcharge as applicable on the dividend distribution tax and 
education cess and secondary and higher education cess of 2% and 1% respectively on the amount of dividend 
distribution tax and surcharge thereon on the total amount distributed as dividend. For the purposes of 
determining the tax on distributed profits payable in accordance with this section, any amount by way of 
dividends referred to in sub-section 115-O (1) as reduced by the amount referred to in sub-section 115-O (1A) 
[hereafter referred to as net distributed profits], shall be increased to such amount as would, after reduction 
of the tax on such increased amount at the rate specified in sub-section 115-O (1), be equal to the net 
distributed profits. 
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B.   Long – Term Capital Gains exempt under section 10(38) of the Act 
 
• LTCG arising on sale equity shares of a company subjected to STT is exempt from tax as per provisions of 

Section 10(38) of the Act. 
 

• It is pertinent to note that as per provisions of Section 14A of the Act, expenditure incurred to earn an 
exempt income is not allowed as deduction while determining taxable income. 

 
C.    Capital Gains 
 
• As per provisions of Section 115AD of the Act, income (other than income by way of dividends referred to 

Section 115-O) received in respect of securities (other than units referred to in Section 115AB) is taxable 
at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess and secondary & higher education cess). 
No deduction is allowed from such income in respect of any expenditure or allowance or deductions under 
Chapter VI-A of the Act. 
 

• As per provisions of Section 115AD of the Act, capital gains arising from transfer of securities is taxable as 
follows: 

 
Nature of income Rate of tax (%) 

LTCG on sale of equity shares not 
subjected to STT 

10% 
 

STCG on sale of equity shares 
subjected to STT            

15% 
 

STCG on sale of equity shares not 
subjected to STT     

30% 

 
• For corporate FIIs, the tax rates mentioned above stands increased by surcharge (as applicable) where the 

taxable income exceeds Rs 10,000,000. Further, education cess and secondary and higher education cess 
on the total income at the rate of 2% and 1% respectively is payable by all categories of FIIs. 

• The benefit of exemption under Section 54EC of the Act mentioned above in case of the Company is also 
available to FIIs. 

 
D.    Securities Transaction Tax 
 
As per provisions of Section 36(1)(xv) of the Act, STT paid in respect of the taxable securities transactions 
entered into in the course of the business is allowed as a deduction if the income arising from such taxable 
securities transactions is included in the income computed under the head ‘Profit and gains of business or 
profession’. Where such deduction is claimed, no further deduction in respect of the said amount is allowed 
while determining the income chargeable to tax as capital gains. 
 
E.  Tax Treaty benefits 
 
• As per provisions of Section 90(2) of the Act, FIIs can opt to be taxed in India as per the provisions of the 

Act or the double taxation avoidance agreement entered into by the Government of India with the country 
of residence of the FII, whichever is more beneficial. 
 

• The characterization of the gain / losses, arising from sale / transfer of shares as business income or 
capital gains would depend on the nature of holding and various other factors 
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Benefits available to Mutual Funds under the Act 
 

• Dividend income, if any, received by the shareholders from the investment of mutual funds in shares of a 
domestic Company will be exempt from tax under section 10(34) read with section 115O of the Act. 
 

• As per provisions of Section 10(23D) of the Act, any income of mutual funds registered under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Act, 1992 or Regulations made there under, mutual funds set up 
by public sector banks or public financial institutions and mutual funds authorized by the Reserve Bank of 
India, is exempt from income-tax, subject to the prescribed conditions. 

 
Wealth Tax Act, 1957 
 
• Wealth tax is chargeable on prescribed assets. As per provisions of Section 2(m) of the Wealth Tax Act, 

1957, the Company is entitled to reduce debts owed in relation to the assets which are chargeable to 
wealth tax while determining the net taxable wealth. 
 

• Shares in a company, held by a shareholder are not treated as an asset within the meaning of Section 
2(ea) of the Wealth Tax Act, 1957 and hence, wealth tax is not applicable on shares held in a company. 

 
Gift Tax Act, 1958 
 
• Gift tax is not leviable in respect of any gifts made on or after October 1, 1998. 
 
Note: All the above benefits are as per the current tax laws and will be available only to the sole / first name 
holder where the shares are held by joint holders.  
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SECTION IV 
 

ABOUT OUR COMPANY  
 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 
 
(The information in this chapter has been extracted from publicly available documents prepared by various 
sources etc. This data has not been prepared or independently verified by us or the Lead Manager or any of their 
or our respective affiliates or advisors. Such data involves risks, uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is 
subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed in the section titled “Risk Factors” on 9of 
this Prospectus. Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based on such information) 
 
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 
 
Overview of the Indian Economy 
 
The Indian economy is ranked fourth in the world, on purchasing power parity basis, after United States, China 
and Japan (Source: https://www.cia.gov/library/publications/the-world factbook/geos/in.html). For the fiscal 
year 2015, the forecast for real GDP growth rate in India is estimated at 6.3% - 6.5% by the National Council of 
Applied Economic Research (“NCAER”) in their ‘Quarterly Review of the Economy’ on September 30, 2014. 
(Source: NCAER’s Quarterly Review of the Indian Economy 2014-15 and Forecast for 2015-16). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Growth in the Indian economy had been shifting down from 9.6 per cent in Q4 of 2010-11. It troughed around 4.4 
per cent for three quarters from Q3 of 2012-13 to Q1 of 2013-14. Since then there are signs of growth bottoming 
out with marginal improvement recorded during Q2 and Q3 of 2013-14 to 4.8 and 4.7 per cent respectively. 
However, this improvement has been feeble and clear signs of recovery are yet to emerge, even as the economy 
seems to be gearing for a modest recovery during 2014-15. 
 
OVERVIEW OF HEALTHCARE INDUSTRY IN INDIA 
 
The Indian healthcare sector, one of the fastest growing industries, is expected to grow at a compound annual 
growth rate (CAGR) of 17 per cent during 2011-2020 to touch US$ 280 billion. There is immense scope for 
enhancing healthcare services penetration in India, this presents ample opportunity for development of the 
healthcare industry. 
 
Strong Fundamentals: 
 
Rising income levels, ageing population, growing health awareness and changing attitude towards preventive 
healthcare is expected to boost healthcare services demand in future. 
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The private sector has emerged as a vibrant force in India's healthcare industry, lending it both national and 
international repute. Its share in healthcare delivery is expected to increase from 66 per cent in 2005 to 81 per 
cent by 2015. In India, private healthcare accounts for almost 72 per cent of the country's total healthcare 
expenditure. 
 
Per capita healthcare expenditure is estimated to grow at a CAGR of 15.4 per cent during 2008-2015E to reach US$ 
88.7 on the back of rising incomes, easier access to high-quality healthcare facilities and greater awareness of 
personal health and hygiene. 
 
The Government of India aims to develop India as a global healthcare hub. It has created the National Health 
Mission (NHM) for providing effective healthcare to both the urban and rural population. 
 
India has an advantage over its peers in the West and Asia in terms of cost of high-quality medical services 
offered. It offers a huge patient pool, favourable regulatory environment and cost advantage for conducting 
clinical trials. 
 
Cost Advantage: 
 
The low cost of medical services has resulted in a rise in the country’s medical tourism, attracting patients from 
across the world. Moreover, India has emerged as a hub for R&D activities for international players due to its 
relatively low cost of clinical research. 
 
Present Status: 
 
Healthcare has become one of India's largest sectors - both in terms of revenue and employment. The industry 
comprises hospitals, medical devices, clinical trials, outsourcing, telemedicine, medical tourism, health insurance 
and medical equipment. The Indian healthcare industry is growing at a tremendous pace due to its strengthening 
coverage, services and increasing expenditure by public as well private players. 
 
The Indian healthcare delivery system is categorised into two major components - public and private. The 
Government i.e. public healthcare system comprises limited secondary and tertiary care institutions in key cities 
and focuses on providing basic healthcare facilities in the form of primary healthcare centers (PHCs) in rural 
areas. The private sector provides majority of secondary, tertiary and quaternary care institutions with a major 
concentration in metros, tier I and tier II cities. 
 
India's primary competitive advantage over its peers lies in its large pool of well-trained medical professionals. 
Also, India's cost advantage compared to peers in Asia and Western countries is significant - cost of surgery in 
India is one-tenth of that in the US or Western Europe. 
 
Market Size 
 
Healthcare sector growth trend in India: 
 
The Indian healthcare industry is projected to continue its rapid expansion, with an estimated market value of 
US$ 280 billion by 2020, on the back of increased population growth in India's low income communities. 
 
Healthcare sector has progressed at an impressive pace over the past few years; during 2011-20, the market is 
expected to record a CAGR of 17 per cent. 
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Large investments by private sector players are likely to contribute significantly to the development of India's 
hospital industry and the sector is poised to grow to US$ 100 billion by the year 2015 and further to US$ 280 billion 
by 2020. 
 
Market break-up by revenues: 
 
Of total healthcare revenues in the country: 

ü Hospitals account for 71 per cent 
ü Pharmaceuticals for 13 per cent 
ü Medical equipment and supplies for 9 per cent 

 

 
 
 
The diagnostic market is the fastest growing segment of India's healthcare industry, according to 
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC), with the segment forecasted to grow to US$ 17 billion by 2021. 
 
Private Sector Has A Strong Presence In India’s Healthcare Sector: 
 
The private sector has emerged as a vibrant force in India’s healthcare industry, lending it both national and 
international repute: 
 

• Private sector’s share in healthcare delivery is expected to increase from 66 per cent in 2005 to 81 
per cent by 2015. 

• In India, private healthcare accounts for almost 72 per cent of the country’s total healthcare 
expenditure. 

• Private sector’s share in hospitals and hospital beds is estimated at 74 per cent and 40 per cent, 
respectively. 
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Market Overview & Trends: 
 
The Healthcare Market functions through Five Segments: 
 
 

1. HOSPITALS: 
ü Government Hospitals – It includes healthcare centres, district hospitals and general hospitals. 
ü Private Hospitals – It includes nursing homes, and mid-tier and top-tier private hospitals. 

 
2. PHARMACEUTICAL: 

ü It includes manufacture, extraction, processing, purification and packaging of chemical materials 
for use as medications for humans or animals. 

 
3. DIAGNOSTICS: 

ü It comprises businesses and laboratories that offer analytical or diagnostic services, including body 
fluid analysis. 
 

4. MEDICAL EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES: 
ü It includes establishments primarily manufacturing medical equipment and supplies, e.g. surgical, 

dental, orthopaedic, ophthalmologic, laboratory instruments, etc. 
 

5. MEDICAL INSURANCE: 
ü It includes health insurance and medical reimbursement facility, covering an individual’s 

hospitalisation expenses incurred due to sickness. 
 
Investment 
 
Healthcare providers in India are expected to spend US$ 1.1 billion on IT products and services in 2014, an 
increase of 5 percent over 2013, according to Gartner. 
 
According to data released by the Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion (DIPP), hospital and diagnostic 
centres attracted foreign direct investment (FDI) worth US$ 2,494.98 million between April 2000 and September 
2014. 
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Some of the major investments in the Indian healthcare industry are as follows: 
 

• Sequoia Capital has planned to invest Rs 100 crore (US$ 15.75 million) in Curatio Healthcare, which is 
among the fastest growing entrepreneurial-led healthcare ventures in India. 

• Narayana Health has planned to buy out Westbank Hospital for around Rs 200 crore (US$ 31.5 million). 
This move would help Narayana Health to increase its presence in the eastern part of the country. 

• Trivitron Healthcare has acquired Mumbai-based imaging accessories manufacturer Kiran Medical Systems, 
and Imaging Products (India) Pvt Ltd (IPI). 

• GPT Healthcare Pvt Ltd, a Kolkata-based company which operates a chain of hospitals, has raised an 
undisclosed amount in private equity funding from BanyanTree Growth Capital. 

• UniverCell plans to foray into the health and fitness category by launching a wireless health monitor, 
B.O.L.T in collaboration with American Megatrends India. The device interprets the body's vital 
information and lets a user access it through a specially designed cloud enabled smart app. 

• Sterling Group of Hospitals has entered into a joint venture with India Home Health Care (IHHC) to set up 
Asilia Home Healthcare that would cater home healthcare services segment. 

 
ADVANTAGES OF HEALTHCARE INDUSTRY TO INDIA 
 
Strong Demand  
 

ü Healthcare revenue in India is set to reach USD280 billion by 2020; expenditure is likely to expand at a 
CAGR of 17 per cent over 2011–20. 

ü Rising incomes, greater health awareness, lifestyle diseases and increasing access to insurance will 
contribute to growth. 

 
Attractive Opportunities  
 

ü Investment in healthcare infrastructure is set to rise, benefiting both ‘hard’ (hospitals) and ‘soft’ (R&D, 
education) infrastructure. 

ü Medical tourism is emerging as one of the most lucrative investment areas in the country. 
 
Quality and Affordability  
 

ü Availability of a large pool of well-trained medical professionals in the country. 
ü India has an advantage over its peers in the West and Asia in terms of cost of high-quality medical services 

offered. 
 
Policy support  
 

ü The government aims to develop India as a global healthcare hub. 
ü Policy support in the form of reduced excise and customs duty, and exemption in service tax. 
ü Initiatives like NRHM would boost healthcare in rural areas. 

 
NOTABLE TRENDS IN THE INDIAN HEALTHCARE SECTOR 
 
Shift from communicable to lifestyle diseases:  
 
ü With increasing urbanisation and problems related to modern-day living in urban settings, currently, about 50 

per cent of spending on in-patient beds is for lifestyle diseases; this has increased the demand for specialised 
care. 
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Expansion to tier-II and tier-III Cities: 
 
ü There is substantial demand for high-quality and specialist healthcare services in tier-II and tier-III cities. 
ü To encourage the private sector to establish hospitals in these cities, the government has relaxed the taxes on 

these hospitals for the first five years. 
 
Management Contracts  
 
ü Many healthcare players such as Fortis and Manipal Group are entering management contracts to provide an 

additional revenue stream to hospitals. 
 
Emergence of Telemedicine: 
 
ü Telemedicine is a fast-emerging sector in India; many major hospitals (Apollo, AIIMS, Narayana Hrudayalaya) 

have adopted telemedicine services and entered into a number of PPPs. 
ü In 2012, the telemedicine market in India was valued at USD7.5 million, and is expected to rise at a CAGR of 

20 per cent, to USD18.7 million by 2017. 
ü Telemedicine can bridge the rural-urban divide in terms of medical facilities, extending low-cost consultation 

and diagnosis facilities to the remotest of areas via high-speed internet and telecommunication. 
 
Increasing penetration of health insurance: 
 
ü Health insurance is gaining momentum in India; gross healthcare insurance premium is USD2.9 billion in 2013 

expanding at a CAGR of 26 per cent over FY08-13. 
ü This trend is likely to continue, benefitting the country’s healthcare industry. 
 
Mobile-based health delivery: 
 
ü Strong mobile technology infrastructure and launch of 4G is expected to drive mobile health initiatives in the 

country. 
ü Currently, there are over 20 m health initiatives in the country for spreading awareness about family planning 

and other ailments. 
ü Mobile health industry in India is expected to reach USD0.6 billion by 2017. 
 
Technological initiatives: 
 
ü To standardize the quality of service delivery, control cost and enhance patient engagement, healthcare 

providers are focusing on the technological aspect of healthcare delivery. 
ü Digital Health Knowledge Resources, Electronic Medical Record, Mobile Healthcare, Electronic Health Record, 

Hospital Information System and PRACTO are some of the technologies gaining wide acceptance in the sector. 
ü Healthcare sector’s spending on IT products and services is expected to rise from USD53 billion in 2012 to 

USD57 billion in 2013. 
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Indian Healthcare Sector is poised to Grow:  
 

 
 
Lifestyle Diseases and Growing Awareness to increase Hospitalisation 
 
Increased incidences of lifestyle diseases such as heart disease, obesity and diabetes have contributed to rising 
healthcare spending by individuals. 
 

ü Lifestyle diseases are expected to account for 48 per cent of the in-patient revenue in 2013. 
Growing health awareness and precautionary treatments coupled with improved diagnostics are resulting in an 
increase in hospitalisation. 
 
 
CAGR of hospitalized cases from 2008 – 18:  
Cardiac – 18%  
Oncology – 16%  
Diabetes – 19% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Government Initiatives: 
 
India's universal health plan that aims to offer guaranteed benefits to a sixth of the world's population will cost an 
estimated Rs 1.6 trillion (US$ 25.2 billion) over the next four years. 
Under the National Health Assurance Mission, Prime Minister Mr Narendra Modi's government would provide all 
citizens with free drugs and diagnostic treatment, as well as insurance cover to treat serious ailments. 
 
All the government hospitals in Andhra Pradesh would get a facelift with a cost of Rs 45 crore (US$ 7.09 million), 
besides establishing 1000 generic medical shops across the State in a few months. 
The Central Government has requested the Government of Odisha for allotment of 25 to 30 acres of land for 
setting up a satellite centre of the All Indian Institute of Medical Sciences (AIIMS) Bhubaneswar as a super 
specialty healthcare facility. 
 
India and Maldives signed three agreements. The pacts included a MoU on health cooperation. 
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The Union Cabinet has approved the proposal for setting up of National Cancer Institute (NCI) at a cost of Rs 2,035 
crore (US$ 320.66 million). NCI will be set up in the Jhajjar campus (Haryana) of AIIMS, New Delhi. The project is 
estimated to be completed in 45 months. 
 
Road Ahead 
 
The outlook for the Indian healthcare industry looks positive owing to high growth rate in almost all its segments, 
whether its primary healthcare, secondary and tertiary healthcare, medical equipment, diagnostics, health 
insurance or medical tourism. The ever growing population, increasing government expenditure on health and 
growing per capita income will increase the size of this industry in the years to come. Per capita income is 
expected to increase at a CAGR of 5.7 per cent over 2012-18. Rising incomes mean a steady growth in the ability 
to access healthcare and related services. Moreover, changing demographics will also contribute to greater 
healthcare spending; this is likely to continue with the size of the elderly population set to rise from the current 
96 million to about 168 million by 2026. However, growing health awareness and precautionary treatments 
coupled with improved diagnostics will result in decreasing hospitalisation. 
 
The medical tourism market in India is projected to hit US$ 3.9 billion mark this year having grown at a 
compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) of 27 per cent over the last three years, according to a joint report by 
consultancy firm KPMG and an industry body. The report says inflow of medical tourists is expected to cross 320 
million by 2015.(Source: www.ibef.org) 
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OUR BUSINESS 
 
In this section, unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to "we", "us" and "our" refers to Tejnaksh 
Healthcare Limited. Unless otherwise stated or the context otherwise requires, the financial information used in 
this section is derived from our restated financial information. This section should be read together with "Risk 
Factors" on page 9 and "Industry Overview" on page 60. 
 
BUSINESS OVERVIEW 
 
We are incorporated in Mumbai as “Tejnaksh Healthcare Private Limited” as on 18th February, 2008 as a private 
limited company under provision of companies Act 1956. Company was converted in to a Public Limited Company 
and consequently the name was changed to “Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited" vide fresh certificate of incorporation 
dated 10th March, 2015 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. 
 
We run an Institute of Urology, an ISO certified the international level Urology hospital, located in the heart of 
Dhule city, Maharashtra, India. The 24000 Sq. Ft. campus has a four storey building which houses the complete 
Urology setup. It provides a comprehensive range of services from consultations and investigations to treatment 
for Urology.  
 
We are equipped with all latest equipment and provide the whole range of services, the patients from local area 
do not feel the need to go to metropolitan areas for urological problems. The Institute is recognized by National 
board of examinations for DNB (Urology). The Institute boasts of 150 research publications and 23 innovations.  
 
We are a professionally managed and growing organization which aims at strengthening and establishing itself as 
the foremost provider of healthcare services. We also aim at achieving greater and long-term growth. 
 
Our Managing Director and Promoter Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale is listed in Guinness World Records (twice), 
Ripley’s believe it or not, Limca book of records, India book of records (multiple records), Asia book of records, 
World amazing records and World record academy for various achievements and innovations in urology.  
 
The objective of our Hospital namely Institute of Urology is to provide the people of Khandesh region of 
Maharashtra, the services of a super specialty hospital at an affordable rate.  
 
We are an integrated healthcare delivery service provider, committed to delivering quality healthcare services to 
our patients in modern facilities. Our operations are divided across four key vertical streams in healthcare 
delivery, namely – “Pediatric Urology”, “Adult Urology (Male, Female)”, “Andrology and Sexual Dysfunction” and 
“Nephrology, Dialysis and Renal Transplant”.  
 
We offer a gamut of more than 65 healthcare services under these streams. A base of over 65 employees and 
consultants supports our healthcare facility network. 
 
Our healthcare facilities use advanced technology and our doctors, nurses and other healthcare professionals 
follow treatment protocols that match international standards. A majority of our healthcare facilities provide 
secondary, tertiary and quaternary healthcare services to patients. Some of our healthcare facilities provide super 
speciality quaternary healthcare to patients in key specialty areas such as Pediatric Urology and Adult Urology 
(Male, Female). 
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Our Facilities:-  
 

1. Outpatient Department :  
 

Equipped with three clinical examination cubicles, urodynamic 
lab, pathology lab, radiology department, pharmacy and a waiting 
hall with a reception cum enquiry counter. The physical 
examination cubical has a bed side ultrasound to facilitate 
diagnosis at the first OPD visit itself. The Medical records 
department maintains a computerized urology data sheet of all 
the patients. Computerized Offices and labs have allowed the 
Institute of Urology to be a paper free hospital. The spacious 
enquiry and waiting hall has everything from a fire fighter to a fly 
fighter to a PCO. Facility for the relatives to watch the operative 
endoscope procedures live on the monitor has been provided 

here. The patients can enjoy education films from the patients' library on topics of their interest related 
to their urological problems. 

 
2. Radiology Department : 
 

 
Digital X-ray machine is capable of all sorts of urological X-rays, while the 
colour doppler and ultrasound machine apart from the usual facilities also 
allows for transrectal ultrasound guided prostate needle biopsy used for 
diagnosis of carcinoma of the prostate. 

 
 
 
  
 

3. Diagnostic Centre & Blood bank : 
 

Pathology lab caters to many investigations including routine serum and blood 
investigations, culture and microbiological examinations. Metabolic workup for 
recurrent stone formers and stone analysis are the special investigations that 
need to be mentioned. Tumor markers, hormonal assays and histopathological 
examinations are only some of the other few to mention. The Hospital has an 
approved blood bank facility. 

 
 
 

4. Complete Urodynamic Lab 
 
. First and only urodynamic lab in the surrounding seven districts. Computerized 

graphic recording of the pressure changes in the bladder and the urethra during 
voiding and filling phases is possible with the help of this machine. This 
investigation helps in treating neurogenic bladders, complicated surgery cases, 
urinary incontinence etc. The Studies done on this machine include: 

 
Uroflowmetry 

     Cystometry 
Pressure - Flow studies 
EMG 
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5. ESWL (Extra Corporeal Shock Wave Lithotripsy): 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

Urinary stones are pulverized by the shock waves &then flushed out by the body. 
This is stichless method of stone removal 
 

6. Operation Theatres : 
  

The operation theatre complex includes two state of the art operation 
theatres, four bedded recovery room, sterilization and stack room. 
The OTs are specially designed to function as dedicated urology 
theatres. They are well equipped for any urology operation including 
renal transplant. Laser, bipolar resection, C-arm, flexible and rigid 
endoscopes, operating microscopes and all other urology instruments 
are available apart from anaesthesia work stations. 

 
 
 

7. Laser: 
  

After the metropolis the Holmium Ho yag laser machine is 
available only at this Institute. Clinically proven to be the 
most versatile gold standard for breaking hard stones, cancer 
treatment and prostate resection, the machine is a boon for 
the patients. Lesser blood loss & operative time, better 
healing and shorter hospital stay are some of the advantages 
of this technology. 

 
 
 

8. Flexible Scopes: 
 

Painless cystoscopy as an outdoor procedure (without admitting the 
patient) is done here with the help of the flexible cystoscope. This 
scope is an advantage for patients who need Cystoscopy on a regular 
basis. The Institute also has flexible ureterorenoscopes and is 
regularly doing RIRS (Retrograde Intra Renal Surgeries). We take 
pride in stating that we are the only centre in North Maharashtra 
catering to these services. 
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9. Bipolar Gyrus ACMI Plasmakinetic Resection System for the Prostate:  
 

TURP was the gold standard treatment option for benign 
enlargement of the prostate till the bipolar resection systems came 
in. Now plasma kinetic resection system is replacing the 
conventional mono polar resection worldwide. This technology is 
known for its bloodless surgery and less postoperative urinary 
symptoms. 

  
 
 
 

10. Nephrology and Dialysis :  
 

Dialysis facilities are available round the clock and nephrology 
services are provided by concerned experts. 

  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
11. Library : 

 
The library has vast collection of books, videos, audios and CDs. 
We have internet, wi-fi, video shooting, photography and xerox 
facilities. The Institute subscribes to many international and 
national journals. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
12. Conference Rooms : 

 
The Institute has an OPD and a ward conference room with audio-
visual aids. 
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13. Indoor patient Section 
 

The basic patient needs and the nursing facilities have been 
specially taken care of while accommodating the patient. The 
patient care rooms have been divided into general and special 
wards.Rooms, of whatever class, have the facility of an attached 
and independent bath and toilet. The institute is fortunate 
enough to have ample supply of water even in the summer. The 
hospital is well equipped with solar heaters, water purifiers, 
water coolers, fly killers, generator and inverters etc. 

 
 
 

 
14. The Pharmacy:  

Takes care of all the routine as well as urology specific medications needed by patients. We have also 
made it a point to keep all the necessary sundry items that a patient may need on admission to hospital. 

 
Our Services:-  

 
Pediatric urology: Evaluation/Diagnosis and Treatment of: 
 

1) Antenatally diagnosed renal abnormalities (eg. Hydronephrosis) 
2) Hematuria/ Pyuria/ Dysuria 
3) Urinary tract infections 
4) Bedwetting/ abnormal bladder function/ dysfunctional voiding 
5) Urinary incontinence or overactive bladder 
6) Urinary retention 
7) Hydronephrosis 
8) Vesicoureteral reflux 
9) Pelvi-uretic junction obstruction (PUJ Obstruction) 
10) Posterior urethral valves 
11) Undescended Testes 
12) Testicular torsion/ epididymo - orchitis 
13) Inguinal hernia/ hydrocele  
14) Hypospadias 
15) Epispadias/ exstrophy bladder 
16) Phimosis/ circumcision 
17) Megaureter/ vesico - uretric junction obstruction 
18) Neurogenic bladder/ Neuropathic bladder 
19) Buried penis/ micro penis/ penile torsion 
20) Intersex/ ambiguous genitalia 
21) Duplex/ double system or ureters 
22) Multicystic kidney/ Polycystic kidney 
23) Kidney or bladder stones/ calculi 
24) Absent kidney/ solitary kidney 
25) Bladder diverticulum 
26) Urethral strictures 
27) Kidney or testicular tumours 
28) Kidney injuries, bladder or penile injuries 
 

Treatment Facilities: 
1) Antenatal Diagnosis and counseling 
2) Pediatric Endourology: Cystoscopy, Urethroscopy and Ureteroscopy 
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3) Paediatric Laparoscopic Surgery for procedures like Orchidopexy, Nephrectomy, 
Heminephrectomy, Herniotomy and Pyeloplasty 

4) Reconstruction Pediatric Urology 
5) Neonatal Urology 
6) Extracorporeal shock wave lithotrpsy 
7) Complete urodynamics with uroflowmetry and EMG facilities 
8) Laser treatment 

 
Adult Urology (Male and Female): Evaluation/Diagnosis and Treatment of: 

1) Urinary infections 
2) Hematuria, Pyuria or Dysuria 
3) Urinary retention 
4) Urinary incontinence 
5) Benign enlargement of prostate 
6) Testicular trauma/ enlargement 
7) Kidney/ bladder/ ureteric stones 
8) Kidney/ bladder/ prostate/ testicular cancer 
9) Urethral stricture 
10) Kidney and other urological trauma 
11) Hydronephrosis 
12) Pelvi – ureteric junction obstruction 
13) Vesicoureteric reflux, ureterocele 
14) Stress urinary incontinence 
15) Vesicovaginal fistula 
16) Ureterovaginal fistula 

 
Treatment Facilities: 

1) Lithotripsy – Extracorporeal Shock Wave Lithotripsy (ESWL) 
2) Endourology – Crystoscopy, ureteroscopy, nephroscopy, urethroscopy 
3) Flexible ureterorenoscopy 
4) Flexible cystoscopy 
5) Transurethral resection of prostate (TURP) 
6) Transurethral resection of bladder tumour (TURBT) 
7) Gyrus ACMI plasmakinetic resection system for the prostate and bladder tumors 
8) Holmium laser facility fr stones and prostate 
9) Open surgeries like bladder augmentation, reconstructive urology, re – implantation, nephretomy, 

heminephrectomy, pyeloplasty 
10) Laproscopic urological surgery 
11) Complete urodynamics with uroflowmetry, cystometry and EMG facilities 
12) AV (arteriovenous) FISTULA SURGERY 
13) Kidney biopsy 
14) TVT 
15) VVF and UVF repair surgeries 

 
Andrology and Sexual Dysfunction 
 

1) Microscopic Surgery for Primary/ Secondary infertility 
2) Erectile dysfunction 
3) Female sexual dysfunction 

 
Nephrology, Dialysis & Renal Transplant 
 

1) Nephrology OPD 
2) Dialysis 
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3) AV Fistula 
4) Renal Biopsy 
5) Transplant Services 

 
The following are brief descriptions of some of the common super-specialty procedures performed at our 
Hospital: 
 
Kidney Stone (Urinary Stone) Treatment 
 
Extracorporeal Shock Wave Lithotrispy (ESWL) uses highly focused electro magnetic waves projected from outside 
the body to crush kidney stones anywhere in the urinary system. The stone is reduced to sand-like particles that 
can pass in the urine. Large stones may require more than one sessions. It can be used for patients of all age 
groups and those who have heart and breathing problems. However, the procedure is contraindicated for pregnant 
women. ESWL by 4th generation "SIEMENS LITHOTRIPTER" with ultrasound attachment helps to treat even 
radioluscent stones, which are not visible in normal fluoroscopy Lithotripters. 
 
Percutaneous Nephrostolithotomy (PCNL) 
 
Percutaneous Nephrostolithotomy (PCNL) is performed under epidural or spinal anaesthesia. Percutaneous 
(through skin) removal of kidney stones (lithotomy) is accomplished through the most direct route. A telescope 
along with the mechanical lithotripter in inserted to break the stone into fine particles so as to achieve a stone-
free status in large and complicated stones. This procedure usually requires hospitalization, and most patients 
resume normal activity within 2 weeks. 
 
Renal Care 
 
Procedures performed include partial resection and correction of the bladder in case of bladder tumors, 
prostatectomy or removal of the prostate gland and laparoscopic (minimally invasive) surgeries for prostate gland 
removal and bladder cancer. 
 
Ureteric Stricture Treatment 
 
There are a variety of minimally invasive treatments for patients with ureteral strictures. A doctor may perform 
balloon dilation as a first step in treatment, particularly in patients who have nonanastomotic strictures.  
 
For ureteral strictures that do not respond favorably to dilation alone, endoscopic incision is the procedure of 
choice for most patients. Endoscopic incision of the stricture can be performed or a laser may be used with a rigid 
or flexible ureteroscope. A stent may be left in place to keep the ducts open for approximately 6 weeks. 
 
New technique called Holmium Laser Endoureterotomy is now available that may allow long-term relief from 
ureteral stricture if other techniques are unsuccessful. 
 
Urethral Stricture Treatment 
 
The treatment comprises of the placement of a suprapubic catheter, which allows the bladder to drain urine 
through the abdomen. It may be necessary to reduce acute problems such as urinary retention and infection.  
 
Surgical options vary depending on the location and length of the stricture.  
 
Visual internal urethrotomy may be all that is needed for small stricture. A urethral catheter is left in place after 
the procedure.  
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Open urethroplasty may be performed for long strictures by removing the affected portion or replacing it with 
another tissue. The results vary depending on the size and location of stricture, prior therapies and the 
experience of the surgeon.  
 
There are no drug regimes currently available for urethral strictures. If all other treatment choices fail, urinary 
diversion - appendicovesicostomy (Mitrofanoff procedure) - may be performed to allow the patient to perform 
self-catheterization of the bladder through the abdominal wall.  
 
The results of the treatment depend upon the characteristics of the stricture viz. its length, degree of fibers, 
associated infection, and previous surgeries. 
 
Our Strength: 
 
We derive our strengths from following factors: 
 
Able Guidance of our Experienced Promoter 
 
We have been promoted by Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale, who has been primarily responsible for rearing the 
Institute of Urology, Dhule to an international standard kidney care center of north Maharashtra. He 
is postgraduate in Surgery (M.S.) and a qualified superspecialist (Mch and DNB) in urology. He has relentlessly 
achieved major milestones in Urology. He has vast experience in urologic surgery and administration. He holds 
records in the Guinness Book of World Records, Ripley’s believe it or not, Limca book of records, India book of 
records (multiple records), Asia book of records, World amazing records and World record academy.  
 
With his inclination towards innovations he now has 20 innovations and patents in Urology to his name A thorough 
academician with about 150 publications and presentations, he is a recognised undergraduate and postgraduate 
teacher for the Maharashtra University of Health Sciences. He is a guide for Urology, recognised by the National 
Board of Examinations.  
 
He is working as chief Urologist and Director of Tejnaksh Institute of Urology since 12 years. He is Trustee and 
Secretary of Jawahar Medical Foundation’s ACPM Medical, Dental and Nursing College. He is also Trustee and 
Director of Jawahar Shikhan Prasarak Sanstha, Dhule, Maharashtra 
 
Modern, patient-centric facilities 
 
We adhere to high standards of clinical protocol in patient handling, operating theatres, intensive care unit 
management and emergency care. Clinical governance is one of our major focus areas. We have defined processes 
and created protocols, and established mechanisms to review our processes and protocols through audits.  
 
Our healthcare facilities are fitted with modern medical technology and equipment, including new generation 
surgical devices to conduct minimally invasive surgeries, and we focus on obtaining the latest advanced 
technologies for providing healthcare services. Our healthcare facilities have been designed to ensure that we are 
able to offer high quality care to our patients, minimizing inpatient movement and with outpatient facilities 
located near diagnostic facilities within the facilities.  
 
Our staff is continually trained to care for patients with techniques utilised in the hospitality industry, which, 
together with the design of our facilities, helps relieve patient anxiety and provide a more comfortable 
experience for patients. We also undertake pre-emptive and high quality maintenance of our facilities.  
 
A complete set up for Urology Treatments 
 
We run an Institute of Urology, an ISO certified the international level Urology hospital, located in the heart of 
Dhule city, Maharashtra, India. The 24000 Sq. Ft. campus has a four storey building which houses the complete 
Urology setup. It provides a comprehensive range of services from consultations and investigations to treatment 



 
TEJNAKSH HEALTHCARE LIMITED 

 

76 
 

for Urology. We are equipped with all latest equipment and provide the whole range of services, the patients from 
local area do not feel the need to go to metropolitan areas for urological problems. The Institute is recognized by 
National board of examinations for DNB (Urology). The Institute boasts of 150 research publications and 23 
innovations.  
 
Skilled healthcare personnel dedicated to high quality patient care 
 
We have a team of over 65 medical professionals, including doctors, nurses and paramedical personnel. We 
believe that our reputation for clinical excellence, specialised healthcare facilities and advanced medical 
technology, together with the opportunities for research and development that we offer, enables us to attract 
high quality doctors and medical support staff. We believe that the abilities of our doctors enable us to offer our 
patients a full suite of complex procedures and surgeries.  
 
We believe that the quality of our healthcare personnel is a key factor in ensuring the high standard of services 
and patient care that we provide. 
 
Growth driven 
 
Our Company has witnessed substantial growth in past few years. Income of our Company has increased from Rs. 
130.02 Lacs in the fiscal 2011-12 to Rs. 143.77 Lacs in the fiscal 2013-14. Our Net Worth stands at Rs. 242.48 Lacs 
as on 31st March, 2015. Our profits have grown from Rs. 30 Lacs in fiscal 2012 to Rs. 59.77 Lacs for the fiscal 2015. 
 
Our growth strategy: 
 
We intend to pursue the following strategies in order to consolidate our position and grow further: 
 
Adapt latest treatment technologies 
 
We strive to add value in our treatment by incorporating latest technologies to provide best treatment to our 
patients and utmost satisfaction.  
 
Continue our Focus on our core sector of Urology. 
 
We have been recognized as complete Urology setup. With our super-specialty set up, skilled doctors and high-end 
equipment, we believe we are well-positioned to serve the increasing demand for sophisticated urology 
treatments in the Khandesh region of Maharashtra. We are concentrating on our surgical admissions and 
continually developing our expertise. 
 
Grow Patient Base: We intend to improve profitability at our Hospital by increasing average income per bed and 
decreasing average length of stay. We plan to focus on our case mix and increase the ratio of surgical to medical 
procedures, and also improve our utilization rates in order to increase average income per bed. In addition, we 
intend to expand our practice with minimally invasive surgical techniques, which eliminate the need to make 
large incisions into the human body, thereby reducing surgical trauma, pain and blood loss.  
 
Supplies and Sourcing 
 
We generally purchase supplies and equipment for our Hospital on a centralized basis, except small pieces of 
equipment, such as operating instruments or furniture, which are purchased locally. Most of the advanced medical 
equipment is imported from original equipment manufacturers. We aim to replace our more sophisticated medical 
equipment in our Hospital at regular intervals, absent grave damages or breakdowns. 
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Our Faculty: 
 
The Institute has a large team of qualified, experienced and dedicated consultants, doctors, nurses and other 
para-medical staff belonging to all concerned disciplines. This has greatly helped the Institute to ensure that 
those engaged in treatments are fully conversant with latest procedures and innovations with the help of 
submitting various national and international papers, regular participation in conferences and workshops 
worldwide. 

 
DR. ASHISH VISHWAS RAWANDALE: 
 
A visionary by nature and a doctor by profession, Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale have been primarily responsible 
for rearing the Institute of Urology, Dhule to an international standard kidney care center of north Maharashtra.  
 
He is postgraduate in Surgery (M.S.) and a qualified superspecialist (Mch and DNB) in urology. He has relentlessly 
achieved major milestones in Urology. He has vast experience in urologic surgery and administration. He holds 
records in the Guinness Book of World Records, Ripley’s believe it or not, Limca book of records, India book of 
records (multiple records), Asia book of records, World amazing records and World record academy.  
 
With his inclination towards innovations he now has 20 innovations and patents in Urology to his name A thorough 
academician with about 150 publications and presentations, he is a recognised undergraduate and postgraduate 
teacher for the Maharashtra University of Health Sciences. He is a guide for Urology, recognised by the National 
Board of Examinations.  
 
He is working as chief Urologist and Director of Tejnaksh Institute of Urology since 12 years. He is Trustee and 
Secretary of Jawahar Medical Foundation’s ACPM Medical, Dental and Nursing College. He is also Trustee and 
Director of Jawahar Shikhan Prasarak Sanstha, Dhule, Maharashtra 
 
Two innovations presented by Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale at the World Congress of Endourology 2009: 
 
1) 5PANG technique for initial tract dilatation during PCNL 
 
2) Fountain technique for evacuation of large vesical calculi 
 
5 PANG technique: The term coined at the “Institute” stands for ‘5 Part Access Needle over the Glide wire 
technique’; herein Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale has invented a 5 part initial puncture needle as a substitute for 
the conventional 3 part initial puncture needle used for percutaneous access during a PCNL. The new needle 
creates a tract of sufficient size to allow direct access to the metal tract dilators hence obviating the need for 
cumbersome conventional tract dilatation. The results of the initial 67 cases were presented at the WORLD 
CONGRESS. 
 
Fountain technique: Essentially is a technique described by Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale to be used during PCCL 
(Percutaneous Cystolitholapaxy). Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale here described the use of simultaneous urethral 
flush and suprapubic drainage of stone fragments. The technique accentuates the fragment evacuation in cases of 
large vesical calculi hence reducing the operative time. The technique is based on the Magic Fountain principal 
described by Hero. 
 
PRIZES HONOURS 
 

1. Winner: Top 10 abstracts: Engineering and Urology Soc. Annual meeting 2013 
2. Recipient: AUA and IAUA Chakrabortty fellowship 2013  
3. Recipient: Singapore Urology Association fellowship 2001. 
4. Recipient: 2013 “Antia-Finseth” Award for innovation (by the Association of Rural surgeons of India) 
5. Winner: S.S. Bapat prize for best innovation: USI 2013 
6. Winner: S.S. Bapat prize for best innovation: USI 2012 
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7. Winner best paper prize: Urological Society of India-West Zone 2011 
8. Winner of Urology quiz organised by Mumbai Urology society in May 2001. 
9. Winner of Best paper prize: Urological Society of India-West Zone 1999 
10. Guinness World Record Holder (2 current records) 
11. Featured in “Ripley’s believe it or not” September 2011 issue 
12. Limca Book Record Holder 
13. World Record Academy Holder 
14. World Amateur Record Holder 
15. India book of Records (multiple records) 
16. Indian Medical Associations Award for "Outstanding Social Contribution 2014" 
17. “Awarded Kunbi Samaj Puraskar” for the best social work in the field of medicine. 
18. “Me Maharashtra” TV channel award 
19. “Samaj Bhushan Award 
20. “Awarded Loni Patil Samaj Puraskar” for the best social work in medicine. 

 
Plant and Machinery:- 
 
We are equipped with latest equipment and instruments with equipment like ESWL-Dornier-Sigma III, USG, 
Complete Urodynamics, Hoyag Laser, Gyrus ACMI Bipolar resection system and Hospital Equipments, equipments 
used in Anaesthesia, Operation Theaters,  Microscopy instruments, open surgery instruments, instruments in 
dylasis etc.  
 
Collaborations:- 
 
The Company has so far not entered into any technical or financial collaboration agreement. 
 
Human Resources:- 
 
We have a team of over 65 medical professionals, including doctors, nurses and paramedical personnel. 
 
Competition:- 
 
We compete with other private hospitals, government-owned hospitals, smaller clinics, hospitals owned or 
operated by non-profit and charitable organizations and hospitals affiliated with medical colleges. We will also 
have to compete with any future healthcare facilities located in the regions in which we operate. Moreover, some 
of these competitors may be more established and may have greater financial, personnel and other resources than 
our Hospital. In particular, our competitors include hospitals owned or managed by government agencies and 
trusts, which may be able to obtain financing or make expenditures on more favorable terms than private 
hospitals owned and managed by for profit interests, such as ourselves. New or existing competitors may price 
their services at a significant discount to ours or offer greater convenience or better than we provide. Smaller 
hospitals, stand-alone clinics and other hospitals may exert pricing pressures on some or all of our services and 
also compete with us for doctors and other medical professionals. Some of our competitors also have plans to 
expand their hospital networks, which may exert further pricing and recruiting pressures on us. If we are forced to 
reduce the price of our services or are unable to attract patients and doctors and other healthcare professionals 
to our hospital, our business and financial results may be adversely affected 
 
Future Prospects:- 
 
The future plans of our Company are in line with the way the industry is thinking and planning ahead.  
 
Capacity and Capacity Utilization:- 
 
Our Company is engaged in the healthcare services and hence capacity and capacity utilisation is not applicable to 
us.  
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Export possibility and obligation:- 
 
Our Company doesn’t have any export obligation, as we are not exporting any material.  
 
SWOT:- 
 
Strengths 
 

Ø Able Guidance of our Experienced Promoter 
Ø Specialty Focus 
Ø Highly-skilled clinical staff. 
Ø Quality Patient Care 
Ø Ability to attract, retain and educate skilled doctors, nurses and other personnel 
Ø Strong experienced managerial capability 
Ø Cordial relations with Patients 
Ø Adaptability of company in the fast changing treatment rechnologies 
Ø Sound structured national network facilitates and the boom of healthcare industry 

 
Weaknesses 

Ø Not enough staff time to plan more events 
Ø Management or staff problems 
Ø Gaps in service areas 
Ø Own known vulnerability 

 
Opportunities 
 

Ø Large Potential 
Ø Rapid urbanization 
Ø Availability of new technology 
Ø Changes in population profile or need 
Ø Competitor vulnerabilities 

 
Threats 
 

Ø Economic shifts 
Ø Competitors have superior access to channels of distribution 
Ø Adverse changes in reimbursement or regulations 
Ø Government & regulatory norms 

 
Our Properties  
 
Our Registered Office is situated at Unit No.11, Ground Floor, Town Centre, Andheri Kurla Road, Marol, Andheri 
(East), Mumbai-400 059. The details of property occupied, leased or owned by the Company are as under: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Location Title 
(Leased 
/Owned) 

Agreement Valid 
from  

Agreement 
Valid till 

1. Unit No.11, Ground Floor, Town 
Centre, Andheri Kurla Road, 
Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai-
400 059 

Leased  01/01/2015 31/12/2017 

2. Flat No. 1102-Marvela, Rodas 
Enclave, Hiranandani Estate, 
Ghodbunder Road, Thane, 

Owned --- --- 
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Sr. 
No. 

Location Title 
(Leased 
/Owned) 

Agreement Valid 
from  

Agreement 
Valid till 

Maharashtra 

3. Hospital & Corporate Office i.e. 
Institute of Urology, Sakri Road, 
Dhule-424 001, Maharashtra 

Occupied 
(Owned by 
Promoter 
i.e. Dr. 
Ashish 
Vishwas 
Rawandale) 

--- --- 

 
Note 1: Interest in Property by our Promoters and Promoter Group 
 
Our Promoter or Promoter group do not have any interest in any of our property, whether leased, owned or 
occupied. However our Hospital & Corporate office is owned by our Promoters Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale, who 
has granted us to use the same till 31.03.2020 for without any rent. 
 
Note 2: Purchase of Property 
 
We have not entered into any agreement to buy/sell any property with the promoters or Director or a proposed 
director who had any interest direct or indirect during the preceding two years. 
 
Insurance:- 
 
At present, we have following insurance policies for protecting us against any material hazards: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particular of Insurance Premium (Rs.) Policy No. / Policy 
Particulars 

1. Private Car Package Policy 24628/- MH–18–W–2030 
2. Electronic Equipment 

Insurance policy 
90843/- Laser Bioplar & USG 

3. Private Car Package Policy 3361/- MH–19-Z-3386 
4. Private Car Package Policy 40710/- MH–18-AF-1030 
5. Private Car Package Policy 4573/- MH–18-W-2415 
6. Standard Fire & Special Perils 

Policy 
17616/- Building Shocks 

7. Professional Indemnity 
(Medical Establishment) 

19691/- Professional Indemnity  

8. Private Car Package Policy 11419/- MH–18-V-1030 
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KEY INDUSTRY REGULATIONS AND POLICIES 
 
The following description is a summary of the relevant regulations and policies as prescribed by the Government 
of India, Government of Maharashtra and the respective byelaws framed by the local bodies in Mumbai and 
Dhule, Maharashtra and others incorporated under the laws of India.  
 
The information detailed in this chapter has been obtained from the various legislations and the bye laws of the 
respective local authorities that are available in the public domain. The regulations and policies set out below 
are not exhaustive and are only intended to provide general information to the investors and are neither 
designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional advice. 
 
We run an Institute of Urology, an ISO certified the international level Urology hospital, Located in the heart of 
Dhule city, Maharashtra, India. The 24000 sq. ft. campus has a four storey, 24000 sq.ft. building which houses the 
complete Urology setup. It provides a comprehensive range of services from consultations and investigations to 
treatment for Urology. As the institute is equipped with all latest equipment and provides the whole range of 
services, the patients from local area do not feel the need to go to metropolitan areas for urological problems. 
The institute is recognised by National board of examinations for DNB (Urology). The institute boasts of 150 
research publications and 23 innovations.  
 
The following is an overview of some of the important laws and regulations, which are relevant to our industry.  
 
INDUSTRY RELATED LAWS: 
 
The Indian Nursing Council Act, 1947 (“INCA/ the Act”) 
 
The objective of INCA is to constitute an Indian Nursing Council (“the Council”) in order to establish a uniform 
standard of training for nurses, midwives and health visitors. The Act stipulates that no person shall be entitled to 
be enrolled in the State Register as a nurse, midwife, health visitor, or public health nurse unless he or she holds 
a recognized qualification in this regard. The Indian Nursing Council has been charged with the following functions 
under the Act: 
 

• To establish and monitor a uniform standard of nursing education for nurses midwife, Auxiliary Nurse-
Midwives and health visitors by doing regular inspections of the institutions. 

• To recognize the qualifications under section 10(2)(4) of the Indian Nursing Council Act, 1947 for the 
purpose of registration and employment in India and abroad. 

• To give approval for registration of Indian and Foreign Nurses possessing foreign qualification under 
section 11(2)(a) of the Act. 

• To prescribe the syllabus & regulations for nursing programs. 
• Power to withdraw the recognition of qualification under section 14 of the Act in case the institution fails 

to maintain its standards prescribed by the Act. 
• To advise the State Nursing Councils, Examining Boards, State Governments and Central Government in 

various important items regarding Nursing Education in the Country. 
 
Bio-Medical Waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 1998, (“BMW Rules”) 
 
The BMW Rules, (i) apply to all persons who generate, transport, treat, dispose or handle bio-medical waste in any 
form, and, (ii) regulate the mode of treatment and disposal of bio-medical waste. The BMW Rules mandate that 
every occupier of an institution generating, collecting, transporting, treating, disposing and/or handling bio-
medical waste must take steps to ensure that such waste is handled without any adverse effect to human health 
or the environment, must apply to the prescribed authority for grant of authorization. The BMW Rules further 
require such person to submit an annual report to the prescribed authority and also to maintain records related to 
the generation, collection, storage, transportation, treatment, disposal, and/or any form of handling of bio-
medical waste in accordance with rules and guidelines issued thereunder. 
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Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940, (“DCA”) 
 
In order to maintain high standards of medical treatment, the DCA regulates the import, manufacture, 
distribution and sale of drugs for the proper protection of drugs and medicines and prohibits the manufacture and 
sale of certain drugs and cosmetics which are misbranded, adulterated, spurious or harmful. The DCA specifies the 
requirement of a license for the manufacture, sale or distribution of any drug or cosmetic. It further mandates 
that every person holding a license must keep and maintain such records, registers and other documents as may 
be prescribed which may be subject to inspection by the relevant authorities. 
 
Transplantation of Human Organs Act, 1994, (“THOA”) 
 
The THOA provides for the regulation of removal, storage and transplantation of human organs for therapeutic 
purposes and for the prevention of commercial dealings in human organs and for matters incidental thereto. The 
THOA prohibits the removal of any human organ except in situations provided therein. No hospital can provide 
services relating to the removal, storage or transplantation of any human organ for therapeutic purposes unless 
such hospital is duly registered under the THOA. 
 
Radiation Protection Rules, 1971, (“RPR”) 
 
The RPR provides that all persons handling radioactive material need to obtain a license from a competent 
authority. It stipulates that no person is to use any radioactive material for any purpose, in any location and in 
any quantity, other than in a manner otherwise specified in the license and that every employer must designate a 
“Radiological Safety Officer” and maintain records with respect to every such radiation worker in the manner 
prescribed under the RPR. 
 
Radiation Surveillance Protection Rules 1971, (“RSPR”) 
 
The RSPR provides that every employer required to handle radiation equipment or radioactive material must 
obtain the prior permission of the competent authority. The RSPR mandates an employer to appoint a 
“Radiological Safety Officer” with the approval of the relevant competent authority for the implementation of the 
radiation protection programme including all in-house radiation surveillance measures and procedures and to 
discharge the functions as specified under it. Further, the employer is also required to obtain prior permission 
from the competent authority for undertaking any decommissioning operation. 
 
Pharmacy Act, 1948, (“PA”) 
 
The PA provides that all pharmacists require a registration under the PA, which registration process includes 
providing: (a) the full name and residential address of the pharmacist; (b) the date of his first admission to the 
register; (c) his qualifications for registration; (d) his professional address, (if he is employed by any person, the 
name of such person); and, (e) such further particulars as may be prescribed. 
 
LAWS REGULATING LABOUR AND EMPLOYMENT: 
 
Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 
 
Pursuant to the Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, as amended (the “Bonus Act”), an employee in a factory or in any 
establishment where twenty or more persons are employed on any day during an accounting year, who has worked 
for at least 30 working days in a year is eligible to be paid a bonus. 
 
Contravention of the provisions of the Bonus Act by a company is punishable by imprisonment for up to six months 
or a fine of up to Rs.1,000 or both, against persons in charge of, and responsible to the company for, the conduct 
of the business of the company at the time of contravention. 
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The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 
 
The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 (the “ESI Act”), provides for certain benefits to employees in case of 
sickness, maternity and employment injury. All employees in establishments covered by the ESI Act are required 
to be insured, with an obligation imposed on the employer to make certain contributions in relation thereto. In 
addition, the employer is also required to register itself under the ESI Act and maintain prescribed records and 
registers. 
 
The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 
 
The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 (the “EPF Act”), provides for the institution 
of compulsory provident fund, pension fund and deposit linked insurance funds for the benefit of employees in 
factories and other establishments. A liability is placed both on the employer and the employee to make certain 
contributions to the funds mentioned above. 
 
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
 
Under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, as amended (the “Gratuity Act”), an employee who has been in 
continuous service for a period of five years will be eligible for gratuity upon his retirement or resignation, 
superannuation or death or disablement due to accident or disease. However, the entitlement to gratuity in the 
event of death or disablement will not be contingent on an employee having completed five years of continuous 
service. An employee in a factory is said to be in ‘continuous service’ for a certain period notwithstanding that his 
service has been interrupted during that period by sickness, accident, leave, absence without leave, lay-off, 
strike, lock-out or cessation of work not due to the fault of the employee. The employee is also deemed to be in 
continuous service if the employee has worked (in an establishment that works for at least six days in a week) for 
at least 240 days in a period of 12 months or 120 days in a period of six months immediately preceding the date of 
reckoning. 
 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LEGISLATIONS: 
 
Intellectual Property: 
 
The Trademarks Act, 1999, The Patents Act 1970 and the Copyright Act, 1957 inter alia govern the law in relation 
to intellectual property, including patents, copyrights, trademarks, service marks, brand names, trade names and 
research works.  
 
TAX RELATED LEGISLATIONS: 
 
Income-tax Act, 1961 
 
The Income-tax Act, 1961 (“IT Act”) is applicable to every Company, whether domestic or foreign whose income is 
taxable under the provisions of this Act or Rules made there under depending upon its “Residential Status” and 
“Type of Income” involved. Every Company assessable to income tax under the IT Act is required to comply with 
the provisions thereof, including those relating to Tax Deduction at Source, Advance Tax, Minimum Alternative 
Tax and like. Every such Company is also required to file its returns by 30th September of each assessment year. 
 
GENERAL: 
 
The Indian Contract Act, 1872 
 
The Indian Contract Act codifies the way in which a contract may be entered into, executed, implementation of 
the provisions of a contract and effects of breach of a contract. A person is free to contract on any terms he 
chooses. The Contract Act consists of limiting factors subject to which contract may be entered into, executed 
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and breach enforced. It provides a framework of rules and regulations that govern formation and performance of 
contract. 
 
Registrations under the applicable Shops & Commercial Establishments Acts of the respective States in 
which Our Company has an established place of business/ office (“Shops Act”) 
 
The Shops Act provides for the regulation of conditions of work in shops, commercial establishments, restaurants, 
theatres and other establishments. The Act is enforced by the Chief Inspector of Shops (CIS) and various inspectors 
under the supervision and control of Deputy/Assistant Labour Commissioners of the concerned District, who in 
turn functions under the supervision of Labour Commissioner. 
 
The Companies Act, 1956 & 2013 
 
The Act deals with laws relating to companies and certain other associations. The Companies Act primarily 
regulates the formation, financing, functioning and winding up of companies. The Act prescribes regulatory 
mechanism regarding all relevant aspects including organizational, financial and managerial aspects of companies. 
Regulation of the financial and management aspects constitutes the main focus of the Act. In the functioning of 
the corporate sector, although freedom of companies is important, protection of the investors and shareholders, 
on whose funds they flourish, is equally important. The Companies Act plays the balancing role between these two 
competing factors, namely, management autonomy and investor protection. 
 
LAWS REGULATING TRANSFER OF PROPERTY: 
 
Transfer of Property Act, 1882  
 
The Transfer of Property Act, 1882 (the “TP Act”) establishes the general principles relating to transfer of 
property in India. It forms a basis for identifying the categories of property that are capable of being transferred, 
the persons competent to transfer property, the validity of restrictions and conditions imposed on the transfer 
and the creation of contingent and vested interest in the property. The TP Act also provides for the rights and 
liabilities of the vendor and purchaser in a transaction of sale of land.  
 
Registration Act, 1908  
 
The Registration Act, 1908 (the “Registration Act”) has been enacted with the objective of providing public 
notice of the execution of documents affecting, inter alia, the transfer of interest in immovable property. The 
purpose of the Registration Act is the conservation of evidence, assurances, title and publication of documents 
and prevention of fraud. It details the formalities for registering an instrument. Section 17 of the Registration Act 
identifies documents for which registration is compulsory and includes, among other things, any non-testamentary 
instrument which purports or operates to create, declare, assign, limit or extinguish, whether in present or in 
future, any right, title or interest, whether vested or contingent, 110 in any immovable property of the value of 
one hundred rupees or more, and a lease of immovable property for any term exceeding one year or reserving a 
yearly rent. A document will not affect the property comprised in it, nor be treated as evidence of any 
transaction affecting such property (except as evidence of a contract in a suit for specific performance or as 
evidence of part performance under the T.P. Act or as collateral), unless it has been registered. Evidence of 
registration is normally available through an inspection of the relevant land records, which usually contains details 
of the registered property. Further, registration of a document does not guarantee title of land.  
 
The Indian Stamp Act, 1899  
 
Under the Indian Stamp Act, 1899 (the “Stamp Act”) stamp duty is payable on instruments evidencing a transfer 
or creation or extinguishment of any right, title or interest in immovable property. Stamp duty must be paid on all 
instruments specified under the Stamp Act at the rates specified in the schedules to the Stamp Act. The 
applicable rates for stamp duty on instruments chargeable with duty vary from state to state. Instruments 
chargeable to duty under the Stamp Act, which are not duly stamped are incapable of being admitted in court as 
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evidence of the transaction contained therein and it also provides for impounding of instruments that are not 
sufficiently stamped or not stamped at all.  
 
FOREIGN OWNERSHIP LEGISLATIONS: 
 
Investment by Foreign Institutional Investors 
 
Foreign Institutional Investors including institutions such as pension funds, mutual funds, investment trusts, 
insurance and reinsurance companies, international or multilateral organizations or their agencies, foreign 
governmental agencies, foreign central banks, asset management companies, investment managers or advisors, 
nominee companies and institutional portfolio managers can invest in all the securities traded on the primary and 
secondary markets in India. FIIs are required to obtain an initial registration from the SEBI and a general 
permission from the RBI to engage in transactions regulated under FEMA. FIIs must also comply with the provisions 
of the SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investors) Regulations, 1995, as amended. The initial registration and the RBI’s 
general permission together enable the registered FII to buy (subject to the ownership restrictions discussed 
below) and sell freely securities issued by Indian companies, to realize capital gains or investments made through 
the initial amount invested in India, to subscribe or renounce rights issues for shares, to appoint a domestic 
custodian for custody of investments held and to repatriate the capital, capital gains, dividends, income received 
by way of interest and any compensation received towards sale or renunciation of rights issues of shares. 
 
Ownership restrictions of FIIs 
 
Under the portfolio investment scheme, the total holding of all FIIs together with their sub-accounts in an Indian 
company is subject to a cap of 24% of the paid-up capital of a company, which may be increased up to the 
percentage of sectoral cap on FDI in respect of the said company pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors 
of the company and the approval of the shareholders of the company by a special resolution in a general meeting. 
The total holding by each FII, or in case an FII is investing on behalf of its sub-account, each sub-account, should 
not exceed 10% of the total paid-up capital of a company. 
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OUR HISTORY AND CORPORATE STRUCTURE 
 
HISTORY & BACKGROUND 
  
We are incorporated in Mumbai as “Tejnaksh Healthcare Private Limited” as on 18th February, 2008 as a private 
limited company under provision of companies Act 1956. Company was converted in to a Public Limited Company 
and consequently the name was changed to “Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited" vide fresh certificate of incorporation 
dated 10th March, 2015 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. 
 
We run an Institute of Urology, an ISO certified the international level Urology hospital, located in the heart of 
Dhule city, Maharashtra, India. The 24000 Sq. Ft. campus has a four storey building which houses the complete 
Urology setup. It provides a comprehensive range of services from consultations and investigations to treatment 
for Urology.  
 
We are equipped with all latest equipment and provide the whole range of services, the patients from local area 
do not feel the need to go to metropolitan areas for urological problems. The Institute is recognized by National 
board of examinations for DNB (Urology). The Institute boasts of 150 research publications and 23 innovations.  
 
We are a professionally managed and growing organization which aims at strengthening and establishing itself as 
the foremost provider of healthcare services. We also aim at achieving greater and long-term growth. 
 
Our Managing Director and Promoter Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale is listed in Guinness World Records (twice), 
Ripley’s believe it or not, Limca book of records, India book of records (multiple records), Asia book of records, 
World amazing records and World record academy for various achievements and innovations in urology.  
 
The objective of our Hospital namely Institute of Urology is to provide the people of Khandesh region of 
Maharashtra, the services of a super specialty hospital at an affordable rate.  
 
We are an integrated healthcare delivery service provider, committed to delivering quality healthcare services to 
our patients in modern facilities. Our operations are divided across four key vertical streams in healthcare 
delivery, namely – “Pediatric Urology”, “Adult Urology (Male, Female)”, “Andrology and Sexual Dysfunction” and 
“Nephrology, Dialysis and Renal Transplant”.  
 
Changes in Registered Office: 
 
The registered office of the Company was initially situated at 6th Floor, A Block, Shivsagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant 
Road, Worli, Mumbai – 400 025. Pursuant to a Board resolution dated 13th March, 2015 the registered office was 
shifted to Unit No.11, Ground Floor, Town Centre, Andheri Kurla Road, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai-400 059, 
which is the current Registered Office. 
 
MAIN OBJECTS OF OUR COMPANY 
 
The object clauses of the Memorandum of Association of our Company enable us to undertake the activities for 
which the funds are being raised in the present Issue. Furthermore, the activities of our Company, which we have 
been carrying out until now, are in accordance with the objects of the Memorandum. The objects for which our 
Company is established are: 
 
“To carry on the business of running hospitals and to own, manage, administer or run all types of laboratories for 
carrying out investigations and to run X-ray, E.C.G. clinics, pathological laboratories, CT scan, to provide services 
like specialized OPD’s, IPD’s, intensive care, emergency in the field of neurology, cardiology, pulmonology, 
urology, orthopaedics, medicine, general surgery, opthalmology, dentistry and other associate specialities, to 
provide surgical facility and post operative care for patients, also specialized OPD’s for endocrinology, cardiology, 
indoor facility for gastroentrology, urology, infectious diseases and other rare branches, pharmacies ,blood banks, 
health care projects, radiology & radiotherapy facilities, maternity home, welfare and family planning centers.” 
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CHANGES IN THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION 
 
The following changes have been made in the Memorandum of Association of our Company since inception: 

DATE AMENDMENT 
20th December, 2014 Sub-division of Face Value of Equity Shares from Rs. 100 to Rs. 10 each 

20th December, 2014 
Increase in Authorized Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 1.00 Lacs divided into 
10,0000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 150.00 Lacs divided into 15,00,000 
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each. 

10th March, 2015 Conversion from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company 
 
MAJOR EVENTS AND MILESTONES  
 

YEAR PARTICULARS 

February, 2008 Incorporation of the Company in the name and style of “Tejnaksh Healthcare Private 
Limited”  

April, 2008 Set up Hospital in Dhule, Maharashtra 
December, 2014 ISO Certification 

March, 2015 Conversion in to a Public Limited Company  
 
HOLDING COMPANY / SUBSIDIARY OF OUR COMPANY 
 
Our Company has no holding company as on the date of filing of the Prospectus. There is no subsidiary of our 
Company as on the date of filing of the Prospectus. 
 
SHAREHOLDERS AGREEMENTS 
 
Our Company has not entered into any shareholders agreement as on date of filing of the Prospectus. 
 
OTHER AGREEMENTS 
 
Our Company has not entered into any specific or special agreements except that have been entered into in 
ordinary course of business as on the date of filing of the Prospectus. 
 
COLLABORATION  
 
Our Company has not entered into any collaboration with any third party as per regulation (VIII) B (1) (c) of part A 
Schedule VIII of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009. 
 
STRATEGIC PARTNER  
 
Our Company does not have any strategic partner as on the date of filing of the Prospectus. 
 
FINANCIAL PARTNER 
 
Our Company does not have any financial partner as on the date of filing of the Prospectus. 
 
DEFAULTS OR RESCHEDULING OF BORROWINGS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS OR BANKS 
 
There have been no defaults or rescheduling of borrowings with financial institutions or banks as on the date of 
this Prospectus. 
 
NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS 
 
Our Company has 7 (Seven) shareholders on date of the Prospectus. 
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OUR MANAGEMENT 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
Under our Articles of Association, our Company is required to have not less than three (3) Directors and not more 
than fifteen (15) Directors. Our Company currently has four (4) Directors on Board. The following table sets forth 
current details regarding our Board of Directors: 
 

Name, Father’s name, Address, Occupation, 
Nationality, tenure & DIN 

Age Status of 
Directorship in 
our Company 

Other Directorships 
 
 

Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 
S/o.  Dr. Vishwas Chudaman Patil 
Address: Sunderprabha Pramod Nagar, Sector 
No.2 Nakane Road, Dhule-424001, Maharashtra, 
India 
Occupation: Doctor 
Nationality: Indian 
Tenure: Appointed for 5 years w.e.f. 19th 
March, 2015 
DIN: 02005733 

43 
Years 

Managing  
Director 

 

               NIL  

Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale 
D/o.  Mr. Arun Ramji Pawar,  
Address: Institute of Urology, Sakri Road, 
Dhule-424001, Maharashtra, India  
Occupation: Doctor 
Nationality: Indian  
Tenure: Retire By Rotation   
DIN: 02021400 

39 
Years 

Director        NIL 

Mr. Kiran Madhavrao Pawar 
S/o. Mr. Madhavrao Pawar 
Address: 4, Kanad Apptt., Deopur, Dhule-
424002, Maharashtra, India 
Occupation: Teacher  
Nationality: Indian  
Tenure: Till Ensuing AGM 
DIN: 07078045 

41 
Years 

Independent 
Director 

NIL 

Mr. Vikramsingh Satish Khatal Patil  
S/o. Mr. Satish Bhikajirao  Khatal Patil  
Address: 12, Harshanil Society, 81 Rambaug 
Colony, Paud Road, Pune-411058,  
Maharashtra, India  
Occupation: Business  
Nationality: Indian  
Tenure: Till Ensuing AGM 
DIN: 01979626 

33 
Years 

Independent 
Director 

1. Vianca Land Developers Pvt. 
Ltd. 

2. Khatal Buildcon Pvt. Ltd. 
 

 
Note: 
 
As on the date of the Prospectus:  
 
1. None of the above mentioned Directors are on the RBI List of willful defaulters as on date. 
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2. Further, none of our Directors are or were directors of any company whose shares were (a) suspended from 
trading by stock exchange(s) for more than 3 months during the five years prior to the date of filing the 
Prospectus or (b) delisted from the stock exchanges. 
 
3. None of the Promoters, Persons forming part of our Promoter Group, Directors or persons in control of our 
Company, has been or is involved as a promoter, director or person in control of any other company, which is 
debarred from accessing the capital market under any order or directions made by SEBI or any other regulatory 
authority. 
 
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS 
 
Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale aged 43 years is the Promoter and Managing Director of our Company. He 
is postgraduate in Surgery (M.S.) and a qualified superspecialist (Mch and DNB) in urology. He has relentlessly 
achieved major milestones in Urology. He has vast experience in urologic surgery and administration. He holds 
records in the Guinness Book of World Records, Ripley’s believe it or not, Limca book of records, India book of 
records (multiple records), Asia book of records, World amazing records and World record academy.  
With his inclination towards innovations he now has 20 innovations and patents in Urology to his name A thorough 
academician with about 150 publications and presentations, he is a recognised undergraduate and postgraduate 
teacher for the Maharashtra University of Health Sciences. He is a guide for Urology, recognised by the National 
Board of Examinations.  
He is working as chief Urologist and Director of Tejnaksh Institute of Urology since 12 years. He is Trustee and 
Secretary of Jawahar Medical Foundation’s ACPM Medical, Dental and Nursing College. He is also Trustee and 
Director of Jawahar Shikhan Prasarak Sanstha, Dhule, Maharashtra. He has been associated as Director with our 
Company since inception and designated as Managing Director since 19th March, 2015. 
 
Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale aged 39 years is the Non Independent Non Executive director of the Company. She 
holds Masters Degree in Opthalmology from Nashik University, Maharashtra. She is working as Consultant 
Ophthalmology at Institute of Urology, Dhule, Maharashtra. She is Secretary of Tejnaksh Healthcare Foundation. 
She is also approved by Medical Council of India as Professor. She has been associated as Director with our 
Company since inception. 
 
Mr. Kiran Madhavrao Pawar aged 41 Years, is the Independent & Non - Executive director. He holds Masters 
Degree in Arts and Bachelor Degree in Education from Pune University. He is having more than 15 years of 
experience in teaching profession. He has been associated as Director with our Company since 30th January, 2015. 
 
Mr. Vikramsingh Satish Khatal Patil aged 33 Years, is the Independent Non-Executive director. He has completed 
his diploma in Engineering from Pune University. He is businessmen by profession and possess sound experience in 
construction in real estate sector. As an independent director, he brings value addition to Company. He has been 
associated as Director with our Company since 30th January, 2015. 
 
CONFIRMATIONS 
 
None of the Directors is or was a director of any listed company during the last five years preceding the date of 
filing of the Prospectus, whose shares have been or were suspended from being traded on the BSE or the NSE, 
during the term of their directorship in any such company. 
 
None of the Directors is or was a director of any listed company, which has been or was delisted from any 
recognized stock exchange in India during the term of their directorship in such company. 
 
NATURE OF FAMILY RELATIONSHIP AMONG DIRECTORS 
 
Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale and Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale are related to each other i.e. Dr. Preeti Ashish 
Rawandale is wife of Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale. Except this no other directors are related to each other. 
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BORROWING POWERS OF THE DIRECTORS 
 
Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of our Company held on 19th March, 
2015 consent of the members of our Company was accorded to the Board of Directors of our Company pursuant to 
Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 for borrowing from time to time any sum or sums of money on such 
security and on such terms and conditions as the Board may deem fit, notwithstanding that the money to be 
borrowed together with the money already borrowed by our Company (apart from temporary loans obtained from 
our Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed in the aggregate, the paid-up capital of our 
Company and its free reserves, provided however, the total  amount  so  borrowed  in  excess  of the aggregate of 
the paid-up capital of our Company and  its  free  reserves  shall  not  at  any  time  exceed Rs. 25 Crores. 
 
TERMS OF APPOINTMENT AND COMPENSATION OF OUR DIRECTORS 
 
Name Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 
Designation Managing Director 
Period  Appointed for five years with effect from 19th March, 2015 
Date of Appointment  Extraordinary General Meeting  dated 19th March, 2015 
Remuneration a) Remuneration 

Basic Salary – Up to Rs. 2,00,000/- p.m. (with such 
annual increments / increases as may be decided by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to 
time. 

 
b) Perquisites 
 

• Subject to any statutory ceiling/s, the appointee may be 
given any other allowances, perquisites, benefits and 
facilities as the Remuneration Committee / Board of 
Directors from time to time may decide. 

 
c) Minimum Remuneration 
In the event of loss or in adequacy of profits in any financial year 
during the tenure of the appointment. Appointee shall subject to 
the approval of the Central Government, if required, be paid 
remuneration by way of salaries and perquisites as set out 
above, as minimum remuneration, subject to restrictions, if any, 
set out in section IV of the Schedule V to the Companies Act, 
2013, from time to time. 

Remuneration paid in 
FY 31st March, 2014 

NIL 

There is no definitive and /or service agreement that has been entered into between our Company and the 
directors in relation to their appointment.  
 
NON – EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 
 
Currently, non–executive Directors are not being paid sitting fees. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
Our Company stands committed to good corporate governance practices based on the principles such as 
accountability, transparency in dealings with our stakeholders, emphasis on communication and transparent 
reporting. We have complied with the requirements of the applicable regulations, including the Listing Agreement 
to be executed with the Stock Exchange and the SEBI Regulations, in respect of corporate governance including 
constitution of the Board and Committees thereof. The corporate governance framework is based on an effective 
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independent Board, separation of the Board’s supervisory role from the executive management team and 
constitution of the Board Committees, as required under law. 
 
We have a Board constituted in compliance with the Companies Act and the Listing Agreement in accordance with 
best practices in corporate governance. The Board functions either as a full Board or through various committees 
constituted to oversee specific operational areas. Our executive management provides the Board detailed reports 
on its performance periodically. 
 
Currently our Board has Four (4) Directors. We have one (1) executive non-independent director, one (1) non-
executive non-independent director and two (2) independent non executive directors. The Chairman of the Board 
is Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale being Managing Director. The constitution of our Board is in compliance with the 
requirements of Clause 52 of the Listing Agreement. 
 
The following committees have been formed in compliance with the corporate governance norms: 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Our Company has constituted an audit committee ("Audit Committee"), as per the provisions of Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 52 of the Listing Agreement to be entered with Stock Exchange, vide resolution 
passed in the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 15th March, 2015. 
 
The terms of reference of Audit Committee complies with the requirements of Clause 52 of the Listing Agreement, 
proposed to be entered into with the Stock Exchange in due course. The committee presently comprises following 
three (3) directors. Mr. Vikramsingh Satish Khatal Patil is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.  
 

Sr. No. Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship 
1. Mr. Vikramsingh Satish Khatal 

Patil 
Chairman  Independent Director 

2. Mr. Kiran Madhavrao Pawar Member  Independent Director 
3. Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale Member Executive & 

Non Independent Director 
 
Role of Audit Committee 
 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are given below: 
 

1. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference. 
2.  To seek information from any employee. 
3.  To obtain outside legal or other professional advice. 
4.  To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary. 
5. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information 

to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 
6.  Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or 

removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees. 
7.   Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors. 
8.  Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board 

for approval, with particular reference to: 
 

a.  Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in 
the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub section (3) of section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

b.  Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same  
c.  Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 

management 



 
TEJNAKSH HEALTHCARE LIMITED 

 

92 
 

d.  Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings 
e.  Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements 
f.  Disclosure of any related party transactions 
g.  Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

 
9. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board 

for approval 
10. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other 
than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the 
monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter. 

11. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of 
the internal control systems. 

12. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure 
coverage and frequency of internal audit. 

13. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on. 
14. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there 

is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and 
reporting the matter to the board. 

15. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit 
as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

16. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.   

17. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same is existing. 
18. Approval  of  appointment  of  CFO  (i.e.,  the  whole-time  Finance  Director  or  any other person 

heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, 
experience & background, etc. of the candidate. 

19. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 
20. Mandatorily reviews the following information: 
a. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 
b.  Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted 

by management; 
c. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 
d. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 
e. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be subject 

to review by the Audit Committee 
21. Review the Financial Statements of its subsidiary company, if any. 
22. Review the composition of the Board of Directors of its Subsidiary Company, if any. 
23. Review the Vigil mechanism (whistle blowing) policy.   
24. Review the use/application of funds raised through an issue (public issues, right issues, preferential 

issues etc) on a quarterly basis as a part of the quarterly declaration of financial results. Further, 
review on annual basis statements prepared by the Company for funds utilized for purposes other than 
those stated in the offer document. 

In addition, to carry out such other functions/powers as may be delegated by the Board to the Committee from 
time to time. 
 
STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE / INVESTORS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Our Company has constituted a Stakeholders relationship Committee / investors grievance committee 
("Stakeholders relationship committee / Investors Grievance Committee") to redress the complaints of the 
shareholders. The Stakeholders relationship Committee / Investors Grievance Committee was constituted vide 
resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 15th March, 2015. The committee currently 
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comprises of three (3) Directors Mr. Kiran Madhavrao Pawar is the Chairman of the Stakeholders relationship 
Committee / Investors Grievance committee. 
 

Sr. No. Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship 
1. Mr. Kiran Madhavrao Pawar Chairman  Independent Director 
2. Mr. Vikramsingh Satish Khatal 

Patil 
Member  Independent Director 

3. Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale Member Non-Executive & 
Non Independent Director 

 
Role of stakeholder Relationship committee 
 
The Stakeholder Relationship Committee / Investors Grievance Committee of our Board look into:  
• The redressal of investors complaints viz. non-receipt of annual report, dividend payments etc. 
• Matters related to share transfer, issue of duplicate share certificate, dematerializations.  
• Also delegates powers to the executives of our Company to process transfers etc. 
The status on various complaints received / replied is reported to the Board of Directors as an Agenda item. 
 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
Our Company has constituted a nomination and remuneration committee ("Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee"). The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted vide resolution passed at the 
meeting of the Board of Directors held on 18th September, 2015. The committee currently comprises of three (3) 
Directors. Mr. Kiran Madhavrao Pawar is the Chairman of the remuneration committee. 
 

Sr. No. Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship 
1. Mr. Kiran Madhavrao Pawar Chairman  Independent Director 
2. Mr. Vikramsingh Satish Khatal 

Patil 
Member  Independent Director 

3. Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale Member Non Executive Non Independent 
Director 

 
The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are as follows: 
 
• The remuneration committee recommends to the board the compensation terms of the executive directors. 
• The committee to carry out evolution of every director’s performance and recommend to the board his/her 

appointment and removal based on the performance. 
• The committee to identify persons who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the 

criteria laid down. 
• Framing and implementing on behalf of the Board and on behalf of the shareholders, a credible and 

transparent policy on remuneration of executive directors including ESOP, Pension Rights and any 
compensation payment. 

• Considering approving and recommending to the Board the changes in designation and increase in salary of the 
executive directors. 

• Ensuring the remuneration policy is good enough to attract, retain and motivate directors. 
• Bringing about objectivity in deeming the remuneration package while striking a balance between the interest 

of the Company and the shareholders. 
 
Policy on Disclosures and Internal Procedure for Prevention of Insider Trading 
 
Our Company undertakes to comply with the provisions of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
1992 after listing of our Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange. Our Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer, Ms. Ritika Agarwal responsible for setting forth policies, procedures, monitoring and adhering to the rules 
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for the prevention of dissemination of price sensitive information and the implementation of the code of conduct 
under the overall supervision of the Board. 
 
SHAREHOLDING DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS IN OUR COMPANY 
 
As per the Articles of Association of our Company, a Director is not required to hold any qualification shares. The 
following table details the shareholding of our Directors as on the date of this Prospectus 
 

Name of the Shareholders No. of Equity Shares 
 

Pre-Issue 
percentage 

Shareholding 
Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 4,08,000 51.00% 
Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale 3,91,995 49.00% 

 
INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 
 
All the Directors of our Company may be deemed to be interested to the extent of sitting fees and/or other 
remuneration if any, payable to them for attending meetings of the Board or a committee thereof as well as to 
the extent of reimbursement of expenses if any payable to them under the Articles of Association. All the 
Directors may also be deemed to be interested in the Equity Shares of our Company, if any, held by them, their 
relatives or by the companies or firms or trusts in which they are interested as directors / members / partners or 
that may be subscribed for and allotted to them, out of the present Issue and also to the extent of any dividend 
payable to them and other distributions in respect of the said Equity Shares.  
 
All the Directors may be deemed to be interested in the contracts, agreements/arrangements entered into or to 
be entered into by our Company with any other company in which they have direct /indirect interest or any 
partnership firm in which they are partners.  
 
Our Directors may also be regarded interested to the extent of dividend payable to them and other distributions in 
respect of the Equity Shares, if any, held by them or by the companies / firms / ventures promoted by them or 
that may be subscribed by or allotted to them and the companies, firms, in which they are interested as 
Directors, members, partners and Promoters, pursuant to this Issue. 
 
PROPERTY INTEREST  
 
Except as disclosed in the section titled “Our Business” on page 68, our Promoters do not have any interest in any 
property acquired by or proposed to be acquired by our Company since incorporation. 
 
CHANGES IN OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING THE LAST THREE (3) YEARS  
 
The changes in the Directors during last three (3) years are as follows: 
 

Name Date of 
Appointment 

Date of 
Cessation 

Reason 

Mr. Kiran Madhavrao Pawar 30/01/2015 - Appointment as Director 
Mr. Vikramsingh Satish Khatal 
Patil 

30/01/2015 - Appointment as Director 
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ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE 
 

 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
Our Company is managed by its Board of Directors, assisted by qualified professionals, in the respective field of 
finance/ capital market and corporate laws.  
 
The following key personnel assist the management of our Company: 
 

Name Date of Joining Designation Functional 
Responsibilities Qualification 

Dr. Lokesh Patni 1st May, 2013 Resident 
Urology 

To take care the 
Institute of 

Urology, Dhule, 
Maharashtra, 

Hospital operated 
by our Company  

MBBS, MS 
(General 

Surgery) & DNB 
(Genito-Urinary 

Surgery/ 
Urology) 

Dr. Gautam Ladumor 1st January, 2015 Resident 
Urology 

To take care the 
Institute of 

Urology, Dhule, 
Maharashtra, 

Hospital operated 
by our Company  

MBBS, MS 

Dr. Yaser Ahmedd 1st February, 
2014 

Resident 
Urology 

To take care the 
Institute of 

Urology, Dhule, 
Maharashtra, 

Hospital operated 
by our Company  

MBBS, MS 

Mr. Ramesh Daulat 
Kuwar 

1st  April, 2008 Chief 
Financial 
Officer 

All accounts and 
back office 

related work, 
payment and 

receipts, dealing 
with banks. 

M.Com 
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Name Date of Joining Designation Functional 
Responsibilities Qualification 

Ms. Ritika Agarwal 17th March, 2015 Company 
Secretary & 
Compliance 

Officer 

Drafting of 
agreements, 
drafting of 
resolutions, 

preparation of 
minutes & 

compliance of the 
provisions of the 
Companies Act, 

2013. 

ACS  
 

 
FAMILY RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
As on date, none of the key managerial persons are having family relation with each other. 
 
ALL OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL ARE PERMANENT EMPLOYEE OF OUR COMPANY 
 
SHAREHOLDING OF THE KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
As on date, holding of key managerial personnel holds as on date of Prospectus is as under: 
 

Name of the Directors  No. of Equity Shares 
 

Pre-Issue 
percentage 

Shareholding 
Dr. Lokesh Patni 1 - 

 
BONUS OR PROFIT SHARING PLAN FOR THE KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL  
There is no profit sharing plan for the Key Managerial Personnel. Our Company makes bonus payments to the 
employees based on their performances, which is as per their terms of appointment. 
 
LOANS TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
There are no loans outstanding against Key Managerial Personnel as on 31st March, 2015. 
 
CHANGES IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OF OUR COMPANY DURING THE LAST THREE (3)YEARS 
There are no changes in the Key Managerial Employees of the Issuer during the last three (3) years. 
 
 Name  Date of Appointment Date of 

Cessation 
Reason 

Dr. Lokesh Patni 1st May, 2013 - Appointment  
Dr. Gautam Ladumor 1st January, 2015 - Appointment 
Dr. Yaser Ahmedd 1st February, 2014 - Appointment 
Ms. Ritika Agarwal 17th March, 2015 - Appointment 

 
EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME  
Our Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme/ Employee Stock Purchase Scheme as on the date 
of filing of this Prospectus. 
 
PAYMENT OR BENEFIT TO OUR OFFICERS 
 
Except for the payment of normal remuneration for the services rendered in their capacity as employees of our 
Company, no other amount or benefit has been paid or given within the two (2) preceding years or intended to be 
paid or given to any of them. 
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OUR PROMOTERS 
 
The Sole Promoter of our Company is Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 
 
DETAILS OF OUR PROMOTER IS AS UNDER 
 
DR. ASHISH VISHWAS RAWANDALE 

 

 
Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale aged 43 years is the Promoter and 
Managing Director of our Company. He is postgraduate in Surgery (M.S.) 
and a qualified superspecialist (Mch and DNB) in urology. He has 
relentlessly achieved major milestones in Urology. He has vast experience 
in urologic surgery and administration. He holds records in the Guinness 
Book of World Records, Ripley’s believe it or not, Limca book of records, 
India book of records (multiple records), Asia book of records, World 
amazing records and World record academy.  
With his inclination towards innovations he now has 20 innovations and 
patents in Urology to his name A thorough academician with about 150 
publications and presentations, he is a recognised undergraduate and 
postgraduate teacher for the Maharashtra University of Health Sciences. He 
is a guide for Urology, recognised by the National Board of Examinations.  
He is working as chief Urologist and Director of Tejnaksh Institute of 
Urology since 12 years. He is Trustee and Secretary of Jawahar Medical 
Foundation’s ACPM Medical, Dental and Nursing College. He is also Trustee 
and Director of Jawahar Shikhan Prasarak Sanstha, Dhule, Maharashtra. He 
has been associated as Director with our Company since inception and 
designated as Managing Director since 19th March, 2015. 
 

 
Identification 
Name Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 
Permanent Account Number ADNPR0113M 
Passport No. J5618835 
Voter ID MT/14/088/561621 
Driving License MH-18-19950001094 
Bank Account Details Account No. 10866660184 with State Bank of India, Dhule, 

Maharashtra 
 
OTHER UNDERTAKINGS AND CONFIRMATIONS 
 
Our Company undertakes that the details of Permanent Account Number, bank account number and passport 
number of the Promoter will be submitted to the SME platform of BSE Exchange, where the securities of our 
Company are proposed to be listed at the time of submission of Prospectus. 
 
COMMON PURSUITS OF OUR PROMOTER 
 
Our Promoter does not have any common pursuits and are not engaged in the business similar to those carried out 
by our Company.  
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INTEREST OF THE PROMOTER 
 
Interest in the promotion of our Company 
 
Our Promoter may be deemed to be interested in the promotion of the Issuer to the extent of the Equity Shares 
held by themselves as well as their relative and also to the extent of any dividend payable to them and other 
distributions in respect of the aforesaid Equity Shares. Further, our Promoter may also be interested to the extent 
of Equity Shares held by or that may be subscribed by and allotted to companies and firms in which either of them 
are interested as a director, member or partner. In addition, our Promoter, being Director may be deemed to be 
interested to the extent of fees, if any, payable for attending meetings of the Board or a committee thereof as 
well as to the extent of remuneration and reimbursement of expenses, if any, payable under our Articles of 
Association and to the extent of remuneration, if any, paid for services rendered as an officer or employee of our 
Company as stated in section titled “Our Management” on page 88 of this Prospectus.  
 
Interest in the property of our Company 
 
Our Promoter do not have any interest in any property acquired by or proposed to be acquired by our Company 
since incorporation. 
 
Interest as Member of our Company 
 
As on the date of this Prospectus, our Promoter hold 4,08,000 Equity Shares of our Company and is therefore 
interested to the extent of their shareholding and the dividend declared, if any, by our Company. Except to the 
extent of shareholding of the Promoter in our Company and benefits as provided in the section titled ‘Terms of 
appointment and compensation of our Directors’ on page 90, our Promoter does not hold any other interest in our 
Company.  
 
Also see “Our Management-Interest of Directors” on 93 of Prospectus. 
 
PAYMENT AMOUNTS OR BENEFIT TO OUR PROMOTER DURING THE LAST TWO YEARS 
 
No payment has been made or benefit given to our Promoter in the two years preceding the date of the 
Prospectus except as mentioned / referred to in this chapter and in the section titled ‘Our Management’, 
‘Financial Information’ and ‘Capital Structure’ on page nos. 88, 104 and 34 respectively of this Prospectus. 
Further as on the date of the Prospectus, there is no bonus or profit sharing plan for our Promoter. 
 
CONFIRMATIONS  
 
For details on litigations and disputes pending against the Promoter and defaults made by them, please refer to 
the section titled “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” on page 123 of the Promoter. Our 
Promoter have not been declared a willful defaulter by the RBI or any other governmental authority and there are 
no violations of securities laws committed by our Promoter in the past or are pending against them. 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
Except as disclosed in the section titled “Related Party Transactions” beginning on page 102, our Company has 
not entered into any related party transactions with our Promoter. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
TEJNAKSH HEALTHCARE LIMITED 

 

99 
 

OUR PROMOTER GROUP / GROUP COMPANIES / ENTITIES 
 
PROMOTER GROUP INDIVIDUALS 
 
The following natural persons (being the immediate relative of our Promoter) form part of our Promoter Group: 
 
Relatives of Promoter: 
 
Relationship Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 

Spouse Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale 
Father Dr. Vishwas Chudaman Patil 

Mother Dr. Pramila Vishwas Patil 

Brother Mr. Utkarsh Vishwas Patil 

Sister --- 

Son Master Adhvay Ashish Patil/ 
Master Aathrv Ashish Patil 

Daughter Ku. Tejswini Ashish Patil / Ku. 
Nakshtra Aashish Patil 

 
PROMOTER GROUP COMPANIES AND ENTITIES 
 
As specified in clause 2 (zb) of the SEBI Regulation, the companies, HUFs and partnership firms that form part of 
our Promoter Group are as follows: 
 
LISTED COMPANIES WITHIN OUR PROMOTER GROUP 
 
There is no listed Company in our Promoter Group.  
 
UNLISTED COMPANIES / LLP WITHIN OUR PROMOTER GROUP 
 
Siddhi Motors (India) Private Limited is sole unlisted Company in our Promoter Group.  
 
Siddhi Motors (India) Private Limited 
 
M/s Siddhi Motors (India) Private Limited was incorporated on 16th January, 2006 as a private limited company 
under the Companies Act, 1956 and registered with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. The 
Corporate Identification Number is U34201MH2006PTC158921. The registered office of Siddhi Motors (India) 
Private Limited is situated at Near Swami Samarth Temple, Shivaji Road, Dhule-424001, Maharashtra. 
 
Business Operations Siddhi Motors (India) Private Limited are as follows: 
 
Siddhi Motors was founded as authorized dealer to Volvo-Eicher commercial vehicles ltd. Formerly know As Eicher 
motors Ltd. The dealership started its service operations in 2007 and the official launch and opening of the 
showroom was done in 2008.  
 
Board Of Directors of Siddhi Motors (India) Private Limited is as follows: 
 

1. Mr. Utkarsh Vishwas Rawandale 
2. Mrs. Sheetal Utkarsh Rawandale 
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Shareholding Pattern: 
 
Shareholding pattern of Siddhi Motors (India) Private Limited as follows : 
 

Sr. No. Name of Shareholder No. of shares % of capital 
1 Mr. Utkarsh Vishwas Rawandale 125000 50.00 
2 Mrs. Sheetal Utkarsh Rawandale 125000 50.00 
 TOTAL 250000 100.00 

 
Audit Financial Information of Siddhi Motors (India) Private Limited 
 
The brief financials of Siddhi Motors (India) Private Limited for the last three (3) years based on audited financial 
statements are as under: 

(Rs. in Lacs except per share data) 
Particulars FY-2012-13 FY-2011-12 FY-2011-12 

Equity Share Capital 25.00 25.00 25.00 
Reserves & Surplus 7.43 6.07 3.85 
Net Worth 32.26 31.07 28.62 
Profit / (Loss)  1.36 2.22 2.35 
Earnings Per Share (in Rs.) 0.54 0.89 0.94 
Face Value per Share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00 10.00 

 
Siddhi Motors (India) Private Limited is an unlisted Company and is neither a sick company within the meaning of 
the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 nor is under winding up. 
 
COMMON PURSUITS 
 
Promoter and Promoter Group Entities do not have any common pursuits and are not engaged in the business 
similar to those carried out by our Company.  
 
LITIGATION/ DEFAULTS 
 
For details relating to legal proceedings involving the Promoters and Members of the Promoter Group, see the 
section titled “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” beginning on page 123 of this Prospectus. 
 
DISASSOCIATION WITH COMPANIES/FIRMS BY THE PROMOTERS OF OUR COMPANY DURING THE PRECEDING THREE 
(3) YEARS 
 
Our Promoters have not disassociated with any of entity during the preceding three (3) years.  
 
INTEREST OF PROMOTER GROUP COMPANIES 
 
Our Promoter Group companies are interested parties to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any 
dividend and distributions which may be made by the Company in future and to the extent of the related party 
transactions disclosed in the section titled “Related Party Transactions” beginning on page 102 of the Prospectus. 
 
RELATED BUSINESS TRANSACTION WITHIN THE GROUP AND SIGNIFICANCE ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
There are no business transactions between our Company and the Promoter Group Companies except as stated on 
page 102 under section titled as “Related Party Transactions”. 
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SALE OR PURCHASE BETWEEN OUR COMPANY AND OUR PROMOTER GROUP COMPANIES 
 
There are no sales or purchases between our Company and any company in the Promoter Group exceeding 10% of 
the sales or purchases of our Company. 
 
SICK COMPANIES 
 
There are no Companies in our group listed above which have been declared as a sick company under the SICA. 
There are no winding up proceedings against any of Promoter Group Companies. The Promoter Group Companies 
do not have negative net worth. Further, no application has been made by any of them to RoC to strike off their 
names. 
 
CONFIRMATION 
 
Our Promoters and persons forming part of Promoter Group have confirmed that they have not been declared as 
willful defaulters by the RBI or any other governmental authority and there are no violations of securities laws 
committed by them in the past and no proceedings pertaining to such penalties are pending against them. 
Additionally, none of the Promoters and persons forming part of Promoter Group has been restrained from 
accessing the capital markets for any reasons by SEBI or any other authorities. None of the Promoter or Group 
Companies has a negative net worth as of the date of the respective last audited financial statement. 
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

For details on Related Party Transactions of our Company, please refer to Annexure 14 of restated financial 
statement under the section titled “Financial Information” on page 117 of the Prospectus. 
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DIVIDEND POLICY 
 
Under the Companies Act, our Company can pay dividends upon a recommendation by our Board of Directors and 
approval by a majority of the shareholders at the General Meeting. The shareholders of our Company have the 
right to decrease not to increase the amount of dividend recommended by the Board of Directors. The dividends 
may be paid out of profits of our Company in the year in which the dividend is declared or out of the 
undistributed profits or reserves of previous fiscal years or out of both. The Articles of Association of our Company 
also gives the discretion to our Board of Directors to declare and pay interim dividends. 
 
There are no dividends declared by our Company in the preceding five financial years.  
 
Our Company does not have any formal dividend policy for the Equity Shares. The declaration and payment of 
dividend will be recommended by our Board of Directors and approved by the shareholders of our Company at 
their discretion and will depend on a number of factors, including the results of operations, earnings, capital 
requirements and surplus, general financial conditions, applicable Indian legal restrictions and other factors 
considered relevant by our Board of Directors. 
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SECTION V - FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 

Financial Information of Our Company 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
To, 
The Board of Directors, 
Tejnaksh  Healthcare Limited 
6th Floor, A Block, Shivsagar Estate, 
Dr. Annie Besant Road, 
Worli, Mumbai-400 025 
 
 
Dear Sirs, 
 
We have examined the Financial Information of Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited (the Company‘) described below 
and annexed to this report for the purpose of inclusion in the offer document. The Financial Information has been 
prepared in accordance with the requirements of paragraph B (1) of Part II of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
('the Act'), The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) - Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements 
Regulations, 2009 ('ICDR Regulations') notified on 26th August, 2009, the Guidance Note on Reports in Company 
Prospectuses (Revised) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and in terms of the 
engagement agreed upon by us with the Company. 
 
The Financial Information has been approved by its Board of Directors and Audit Committee of Board of Directors. 
 
Audit for the financial year ended 31st March, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 was conducted by M/s. P.D. Dalal 
& Co., Chartered Accountants and accordingly reliance has been placed on the financial information examined by 
them for the said years / periods. The financial report included for these years / periods are based solely on the 
report submitted by them.  
 
In terms of Schedule VIII, Clause IX (9) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009 and other provisions relating to 
accounts of Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited, We, M/s. Randhir Jhunjhunwala & Co., Chartered Accountants, have 
been subjected to the peer review process of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and hold a 
valid certificate issued by the ‘Peer Review Board’ of the ICAI.  
 
A.  Financial Information as per Audited Financial Statements: 
 
We have examined: 
 

a. the attached Statement of Assets and Liabilities, as Restated as at year / period ended March 31, 2011, 
2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 (Annexure 1); 

 
b. the attached Statement of Profits and Losses, as Restated for the year / period ended March 31, 2011, 

2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 (Annexure 2); 
 

c. the attached Statement of Cash Flows, as Restated for the year / period ended March 31, 2011, 2012, 
2013, 2014 and 2015 (Annexure 3); 

 
d. the significant accounting policies adopted by the Company and notes to the Restated Financial 

Statements along with adjustments on account of audit qualifications / adjustments / regroupings. 
(Annexure 4); 

 
(Collectively hereinafter referred as “Restated Financial Statements”)  
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The Restated Financial Statements have been extracted from audited Financial Statements of the Company for 
the year / period ended March 31, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 which have been approved by the Board of 
Directors. 
 
Based on our examination and in accordance with the requirements of the Act, ICDR Regulations, we state that: 
 

• Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities of the Company as at March 31, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 
2015 are as set out in Annexure 1, which are after making such material adjustments and regroupings as, 
in our opinion are appropriate, and are to be read with the significant accounting policies and notes 
thereon in Annexure 4; 
 

• Restated Statement of Profits and Losses of the Company for the year / period ended March 31, 2011, 
2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 are as set out in Annexure 2, which have been arrived at after making such 
material adjustments and regroupings to the audited financial statements as, in our opinion are 
appropriate, and are to be read with the significant accounting policies and notes thereon in Annexure 4; 

 
• Restated Statement of Cash Flows of the Company for the year / period ended March 31, 2011, 2012, 

2013, 2014 and 2015 are as set out in Annexure 3 after making such material adjustments and regroupings; 
 

• Adjustments for any material amounts in the respective financial years / period have been made to which 
they relate; and 
 

• There are no Extra-ordinary items that need to be disclosed separately in the Restated Summary 
Statements or Auditor's qualification requiring adjustments. 
 

• Adjustments in Financial Statements has been made in accordance with the correct accounting policies  
 

• There was no change in accounting policies, which needs to be adjusted in the “Restated Financial 
Statements”. 
 

• There are no revaluation reserves, which need to be disclosed separately in the “Restated Financial 
Statements”. 
 

• There are no audit qualifications in the “Restated Financial Statements”. 
 
B. Other Financial Information: 
 
We have also examined the following Financial Information relating to the Company, which is based on the 
Restated Financial Statements and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and annexed to this report, 
is proposed to be included in the Offer Document: 
 

1. Statement of Details of Reserves & Surplus as at March 31, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015  as set out in 
Annexure 5 to this report. 

2. Statement of Accounting Ratios for the year / period ended on March 31, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015  
as set out in Annexure 6 to this report. 

3. Capitalization Statement as at 31st March, 2015 as set out in Annexure 7 to this report. 
4. Statement of Tax Shelters for the year ended on March 31, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015  as set out in 

Annexure 8 to this report. 
5. Statement of Details of Long Term Borrowings as at March 31, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 as set out 

in Annexure 09 to this report. 
6. Statement of Details of Short Term Borrowings as at 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 as set out in 

Annexure 10 to this report. 
7. Statement of Details of Short Term Loans & Advances of the Company for the year / period ended on 

March 31, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 as set out in Annexure 11 to this report. 
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8. Statement of Details of Current Liabilities & Provisions of the Company for the year / period ended on 
March 31, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015  as set out in Annexure 12 to this report. 

9. Statement of Details of Revenue from Operations of the Company for the year / period ended on March 
31, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 as set out in Annexure 13 to this report. 

10. Statement of Details of Related Party Transactions of the Company for the year / period ended on March 
31, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 as set out in Annexure 14 to this report. 

 
In our opinion, the "Restated Financial Statements" and "Other Financial Information" mentioned above contained 
in Annexure 1 to 14 of this report have been prepared in accordance with Part II of Schedule II to the Act, the SEBI 
Guidelines and the Guidance Note on the reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).  
 
Consequently the financial information has been prepared after making such regroupings and adjustments as 
were, in our opinion, considered appropriate to comply with the same. As result of these regroupings and 
adjustments, the amount reported in the financial information may not necessarily be same as those appearing in 
the respective audited financial statements for the relevant years. 
 
This report should not in any way be construed as a reissuance or redating of the previous audit report, nor should 
this be construed as a new opinion on any of the financial statements referred to herein. 
 
We have no responsibility to update our report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of the 
report. 
 
This report is intended solely for your information and for inclusion in the Offer Document in connection with the 
proposed IPO of the Company and is not to be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose without our 
prior written consent. 
 
 
For Randhir Jhunjhunwala & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.- 113675W 
Sd/- 
Randhir Kumar Jhunjhunwala 
Partner 
Membership No. 138664 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 10th September, 2015 
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ANNEXURE-01 
 

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, AS RESTATED 
 (Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars  31.03.15   31.03.14   31.03.13   31.03.12   31.03.11  
Equity & Liabilities           
Shareholders' Funds           
Share Capital  80.00   1.00   1.00   1.00   1.00  
Reserve & Surplus  168.77   188.00   130.80   99.64   69.64  
Total (A)  248.77   189.00   131.80   100.64   70.64  
            
Non Current Liabilities           
Share Application Money pending allotment  -   -     -     -     -    
Long Term Borrowings  42.99   47.30   35.95   36.30   37.26  
Other Long-term Liabilities -  -     -     -     -    
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)  14.00   13.50   11.92   9.98   7.15  
Total (B)  56.99   60.80   47.87   46.28   44.41  
            
Current Liabilities           
Short Term Borrowings -  -     -     0.64   -    
Trade Payables  39.34   32.57   16.07   17.54   17.70  
Other Current Liabilities -  -     -     -     -    
Short Term Provisions  7.88   15.80   5.45   2.89   28.68  
Total (C)  47.22   48.37   21.52   21.07   46.38  
            
Total (D=A+B+C)  352.98   298.17   201.19   167.99   161.43  
            
Assets           
Fixed Assets:           
Tangible Assets  286.03   142.57   136.84   140.31   119.13  
Intagible Assets  0.80   -     -     -     -    
Long Term Loans & Advances  -     -     -     -     -    
Non Current Investments  -     -     -     -     -    
Deferred Tax Assets  -     -     -     -     -    
Preliminary Expenses to the extent not 
Written Off  6.29     -     -     -     0.05  

Other Non Current Assets  -     -     -     -     -    
Total (E)  293.12   142.57   136.84   140.31   119.18  
            
Current Assets           
Current Investments  -     -     -     -     -    
Inventories  13.67     -     -     -     -    
Trade Receivables  -     -     -     -     -    
Cash & Bank Balances  20.71   13.15   10.94   8.65   31.13  
Short Term Loans & Advances  25.48   142.45   53.41   19.03   11.12  
Other Current Assets -  -     -     -     -    
Total (F)  59.86  155.60   64.35   27.68   42.25  
            
Total (G=E+F)  352.98   298.17   201.19   167.99   161.43  
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ANNEXURE-02 
 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS, AS RESTATED 
 (Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
Income           
Revenue from Operations  200.58   143.77   114.17   130.02   136.31  
Other Income 4.85  1.35   0.05   1.91   1.68  
Total 205.43  145.12   114.22   131.93   137.99  
            
Expenditure           
Purchases of Stock in Trade 22.54 - - - - 
Changes in Inventories (13.67) - - - - 
Direct Expenses  17.66   10.29   9.86   9.63   8.07  
Employees Benefit Expenses  46.62   9.59   20.24   44.96   43.23  
Administrative & Other Expenses  31.33   28.99   20.80   23.47   28.33  
Preliminary Expenses Written Off  -     -     -     0.05   0.05  
Total 104.48   48.87   50.90   78.11   79.68  
Profit before Depreciation, Interest and Tax  100.95   96.25   63.32   53.82   58.31  
Depreciation  13.64   11.44   10.96   9.52   7.90  
Profit before Interest & Tax  87.31   84.81   52.36   44.30   50.41  
Interest & Finance Charges 0.04  0.03   0.03   0.67   0.71  
Net Profit before Tax 87.27  84.78   52.33   43.63   49.70  
Less: Provision for Taxes:           
Current Tax 27.00  26.00   14.55   10.80   12.60  
Deferred Tax 0.50  1.58   1.94   2.83   2.85  
Net Profit After Tax & Before Extraordinary 
Items 59.77  57.20   35.84   30.00   34.25  

Extra Ordinary Items (Net of Tax)  -     -     4.68   -     -    
Net Profit 59.77  57.20   31.16   30.00   34.25  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
TEJNAKSH HEALTHCARE LIMITED 

 

109 
 

ANNEXURE-03 
 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW, AS RESTATED 
          (Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES           
Net profit after taxes  59.77   57.20   31.16   30.00   34.25  
Adjustment for:           
Add:   Depreciation  13.64   11.44   10.96   9.52   7.90  
Add:   Preliminary Expenses Written Off  -   -     -     0.05   0.05  
Add:   Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets -  -     -     -     -    
Operating Profit before Working capital changes  73.41   68.64   42.12   39.57   42.20  
Adjustments for:           
Decrease (Increase) in Current Investments -  -     -     -     -    
Decrease (Increase) in Inventories  (13.67)  -     -     -     -    
Decrease (Increase) in Trade Receivables -  -     -     -     -    
Decrease (Increase) in Short Term Loans & 
Advances  116.97   (89.04)  (34.38)  (7.91)  (6.26) 

Decrease (Increase) in Other Current Assets -  -     -     -     -    
Increase (Decrease) in Trade Payables  6.77   16.50   (1.47)  (0.16)  2.09  
Increase (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  -   -     -     -     -    
Increase (Decrease) in Short Term Provisions  (7.92)  10.35   2.56   (25.79)  20.80  
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Tax Liabilities  0.50   1.58   1.94   2.83   2.85  
Net Changes in Working Capital  102.65   (60.61)  (31.35)  (31.03)  19.48  
Net Cash Flow from  Operating Activities (A) 176.06  8.03   10.77   8.54   61.68  
            
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES           
(Purchase) of Fixed Assets  (157.90)  (17.17)  (7.49)  (30.70)  (35.68) 
Sale of Fixed Assets  -     -     -     -     -    
Decrease (Increase) in Non Current Investments  -     -     -     -     -    
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B)  (157.90)  (17.17)  (7.49)  (30.70)  (35.68) 
            
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES           
Issue of Share Capital  -     -     -     -     -    
Increase / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings  (4.31)  11.35   (0.35)  (0.96)  (5.21) 
Increase / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings  -     -     (0.64)  0.64   -    
Preliminary Expenses Incurred  (6.29)     -     -     -     -    
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C)  (10.60)  11.35   (0.99)  (0.32)  (5.21) 
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash 
Equivalents  7.56   2.21   2.29   (22.48)  20.79  

            
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
year / Period  13.15   10.94   8.65   31.13   10.34  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/ 
Period  20.71   13.15   10.94   8.65   31.13  
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Annexure-04 
 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNT FOR PREPARATION OF RESTATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENT 
  
A.        SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:  
 
1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
a. The Restated Financial Information for the year / period ended 31st March 2011, 31st March 2012 31st March 

2013, 31st March 2014 and 31st March, 2015 has been extracted by the management of the Company from 
the audited financial statements of the company for the year / period ended 31st March, 2011, 31st March 
2012 31st March 2013, 31st March 2014 and 31st March, 2015.  

b. The Restated Financial Information are after making adjustments/ restatements and regrouping as 
necessary in accordance with paragraph B(1) of Part II of Schedule II of The Companies Act and SEBI 
Regulations. 

c. The Financial Statements have been prepared under Historical Cost conventions and in accordance with the 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (‘GAAP’) applicable in India, Companies (Accounting Standard) 
Rules, 2006 notified by Ministry of Company Affairs and Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India as applicable and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 & 2013. 

d. The company generally follows the mercantile system of accounting and recognizes significant items of 
income and expenditure on accrual basis. 
 

2.   Use of Estimates 
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP requires that the management of the 
Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of 
the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent 
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements.  Examples of such estimates include the useful lives 
of fixed assets and intangible assets, provision for doubtful debts / advances etc.  Actual results could 
differ from these estimates. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the results are known/ materialized. Management believes that the estimates used in 
preparation of financial statements are prudent and reasonable. 
 

3. Fixed Assets and Depreciation 
i.  Fixed Assets are shown at historical cost net of recoverable taxes inclusive of incidental expenses less 

accumulated depreciation. 
ii.  Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated depreciation. 
ii.  Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on Straight Line Method at the rates prescribed under Schedule 

XIV of the Companies Act, 1956. 
iii.  Depreciation on fixed assets sold during the year, is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date 

of addition/deletion. 
 
4.  Revenue Recognition 

Company is running a specialty urology hospital in Dhule, Maharashtra and Revenue from  operations  includes  
income from consultation and surgeries are accounted on cash Basis.  
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate 
applicable. 

 
5.  Investments 

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and quoted/fair value. Long Term Investments are stated at 
cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long-term investments is made only if such a decline is other 
than temporary. 
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6.  Impairment of Assets 
As on Balance Sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of Fixed Assets to determine whether 
there are any indications that those assets have suffered “Impairment Loss”. Impairment loss, if any, is 
provided to the extent, the carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount. Recoverable 
amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of 
estimated future cash flows expected to arise from continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end 
of its useful life. 
 

8. Borrowing Costs 
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as 
part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily substantial period of time to 
get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue. 
 

9.  Taxation 
Tax expenses for the year comprise of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is measured after taking into 
consideration the deductions and exemptions admissible under the provision of Income Tax Act, 1961 and in 
accordance with Accounting Standard 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on Income”, issued by ICAI. 
Deferred Tax assets or liabilities are recognized for further tax consequence attributable to timing difference 
between taxable income and accounting income that are measured at relevant enacted tax rates. At each 
Balance Sheet date the company reassesses unrecognized deferred tax assets, to the extent they become 
reasonably certain or virtually certain of realization, as the case may be. 
 

10.  Leases 
Finance Lease 
Leases which effectively transfer to the company all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the 
leased item, are classified as Finance Lease. Lease rentals are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and 
present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased 
assets. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability 
based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly against income life of the assets at 
the following rates  
 
Operating Lease 
Lease where the lesser effectively retains substantially all risks and benefits of the asset are classified as 
Operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit & Loss account on a 
Straight Line Basis over the Lease term. 
 

11.  Preliminary Expenses 
 Preliminary expenses are amortized as per applicable income tax rules. 
 
12.  Earnings per Share 

In determining the Earnings Per share, the company considers the net profit after tax includes any post tax 
effect of any extraordinary / exceptional item. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per 
share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. 
The number of shares used in computing Diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number 
of shares considered for computing Basic Earnings per share and also the weighted number of equity shares 
that would have been issued on conversion of all potentially dilutive shares. 
In the event of issue of bonus shares, or share split the number of equity shares outstanding is increased 
without an increase in the resources. The number of Equity shares outstanding before the event is adjusted 
for the proportionate change in the number of equity shares outstanding as if the event had occurred at the 
beginning of the earliest period reported. 
 

13.  Contingent Liabilities & Provisions 
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and when a 
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. 
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Contingent Liability is disclosed for 
a) Possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly with in the control of the 
company or 
b) Present obligations arising from the past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 
c) Contingent Assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of 
income that may never be realized. 
 

14.  Foreign Exchange Transactions 
i. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on 

the date of the transaction or that approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 
ii. Monetary items denominated in  foreign currencies at the yearend are restated at year end rates. 

In case of items,  w h i c h  are covered by forward  exchange contracts, the  difference  between  
the  year end rate and rate  on the date  of the  contract  is recognised as exchange difference  
and the  premium  paid on forward  contracts  is recognised over the life of the contract.                  
. 

iii. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost. 
iv. In respect of branches, which are integral foreign operations,  all transactions  are translated  at 

rates prevailing  on the  date of tran saction or that  approximates  the actual  rate  at  the  date  
of  transaction.  Branch monetary assets and liabilities are restated at the year-end rates. 

v. Any income or expense on account of exchange  difference  either  on settlement or on 
translation  is recognized in the  Profit and   loss account except in case of long-term  liabilities,  
where  they  relate to acquisition o f fixed assets, in which  case they are adjusted to the 
carrying cost of such assets. 

 
B.  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES IN THE YEARS/PERIODS COVERED IN THE RESTATED FINANCIALS. 

 
There is no change in significant accounting policies during the reporting period. Further Accounting Policies 
has been changed as and when Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
/ Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 were made applicable on the relevant dates. 

 
C.  NOTES ON RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
  NOTES ON RESTATEMENTS MADE IN THE RESTATED FINANCIALS 
                                                                                                                   (Rs. in Lacs) 

Financial Year ended March, 
31st 

March, 
31st 

March, 
31st 

March, 
31st 

March, 
31st 

 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 
Profit after tax as per 
Audited Statement of 
Account(A) 

59.77 57.20 31.16 30.00 34.25 

Adjustments*  - - - -  
Profit after tax as per 
Restated  Profit & Loss(A) 59.77 57.20 31.16 30.00 34.25 

 
*There are no significant items, which needs to be adjusted. 
 
(III)   OTHER NOTES 
 
General 
 
1.  The Company has been incorporated as “Tejnaksh Healthcare Private Limited” on 18th February, 2008 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Company was converted in to a Public Limited Company and 
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consequently the name was changed to “Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited" vide fresh certificate of incorporation 
dated 10th March, 2015 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra.  
 
2. Contingent liabilities 

There are no Contingent Liabilities during the reported period. 
 
3. Details of Deferred Tax assets and liabilities: 
 
In view of the Accounting Standard 22 issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the significant 
component and classification of deferred tax liability/asset because of timing difference comprises of the 
following:         

 
Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
On account of 
Difference between 
book and Tax 
Depreciation 

14.00 13.50 11.92 9.98 7.15 

On Account of timing 
difference in 
recognition of 
expenditures 

- - - - - 

Deferred Tax Liability 
/ (Asset) 

14.00 13.50 11.92 9.98 7.15 

                                                                                                                                                 
 
4. Dues to Micro enterprises and Small enterprises: 
Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 certain disclosure is required to be made 
related to micro, small and medium enterprise. The company has not received any information from its creditors 
identifying themselves as MSME.  
 
5. Segment Reporting 

The company operates only in one reportable business segment i.e Company is running a specialty urology 
hospital in Dhule, Maharashtra. Hence there are no reportable segments under Accounting Standard -17. The 
conditions prevailing in India being uniform no separate geographical disclosures are considered necessary. 

 
6. In the opinion of the Board, subject to the debts considered doubtful, Current Assets and Loans and Advances 

have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are 
stated in the Balance Sheet. 

 
7. Earnings per Share 

The details of Earnings Per Share as per AS-20 are provided in Annexure 06. 
 
8. Related Party Transactions: 

The details of Related Party Transactions as per AS-18 are provided in Annexure 14. 
 
9. The figures in the Restated Financials are stated in Lacs and rounded off to two decimals and minor rounding 

off   difference is ignored. 
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Annexure- 05 
 

STATEMENT OF DETAILS OF RESERVES & SURPLUS, AS RESTATED 
(Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
Profit / (Loss) Brought Forward  188.00   130.80   99.64   69.64   35.39  
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the Year  59.77   57.20   31.16   30.00   34.25  
Less: Utilised for Bonus Issue 79.00 - - - - 
Profit / (Loss) Carried Forward  168.77  188.00   130.80   99.64   69.64  
            
Reserves & Surplus  168.77  188.00   130.80   99.64   69.64  

 
Annexure- 06 

 
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING RATIOS  

(Rs. In Lacs, except per share data) 
Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
Net Worth ( A )  242.48  189.00   131.80   100.64   70.59  
Net  Profit after Tax ( B )  59.77   57.20   31.16   30.00   34.25  
No. of Shares outstanding at the end [F.V Rs.10]  ( C ) 8,00,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding [F.V 
Rs.10]( D )-Pre Bonus Issie 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 

Bonus Shares [E]** 7,90,000 7,90,000 7,90,000 7,90,000 6,96,400 
Weighted average number of shares Post Bonus [F.V 
Rs.10] (F) 8,00,000 8,00,000 8,00,000 8,00,000 7,06,400 

Earnings per Share (EPS) (B / F) (Rs.)  7.47   7.15   3.90   3.75   4.85  
Return on Net Worth (B / A) 24.65  30.26   23.64   29.81   48.52  
Net Assets Value per Share (A / F)  30.31  23.63   16.48   12.58   9.99  
 

Definitions of key ratios: 
I.  Earnings per share (Rs.):  Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders / weighted average number of equity 
shares. Earnings per share calculations are done in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 “Earnings Per Share” as 
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. As per AS-20, the number of equity shares outstanding 
before the event is adjusted for the proportionate change in the number of equity shares outstanding as if the event 
had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period reported. In case of a bonus issue after the Balance Sheet date but 
before the date on which the Financial Statements are approved by the Board of Directors’, the per share calculations 
for those Financial statements and any prior period Financial Statements presented are based on the new no. of 
shares. Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during all the previous years have been considered 
accordingly. 
II. Return on Net Worth (%):  Net Profit after tax / Net worth as at the end of the year / period 
III. Net Asset Value (Rs.):  Net Worth at the end of the year / Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the 
year / period. 
IV. Net Profit, as appearing in the Statement of restated profits and losses, and Net Worth as appearing in the restated 
statement of Assets & Liabilities has been considered for the purpose of computing the above ratios. 

 
** Company has issued 7,90,000 Equity Shares as Bonus Issue in the ratio of 79:1 on 31st Jnauary, 2015 by 
capitalization of reserves. For calculation of Earnings per Share and Net Assets Value per Share, Bonus Shares has 
been added while calculating Weighted average number of shares to the extent of reseves avalilable in the 
corrosponding year / period. 
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Annexure -07 
 

CAPITALISATION STATEMENT 
(Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars Pre-issue as at 
31.03.2015 Post Issue * 

Borrowing   
Short - Term Debt -  
Long - Term Debt 42.99  
Total Debt 42.99 

 
Shareholders' Funds   
Share Capital   
-  Equity 80.00  
Less: Calls - in - arrears -  
-  Preference - 

 
Reserves & Surplus 168.77  
Less: Miscellaneous Expenditure not written off 6.29  
Total Shareholders Funds 242.48  
Long - Term Debt / Shareholders Fund 0.18  
Short - Term Debt / Shareholders Fund -  

 
* The Post Issue Capitalization will be determined only after the completion of the allotment of equity shares. 

 
Annexure- 08 

 
STATEMENT OF TAX SHELTERS 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
Profit before tax as per Restated P/L  87.27   52.33   43.63   49.70  

Applicable Corporate Tax Rate 30.90% 30.90% 30.90% 30.90% 

Tax at Notional Rate 26.97 16.17 13.48 15.36 

Adjustments     
Difference between Tax and Book Depreciation 9.69 6.27 9.16 9.22 

Exempted Income - - - - 

Disallowance - - - - 

Items Chargeable at special rates - - - - 

Net Adjustments 9.69 6.27 9.16 9.22 
Tax Saving thereon 2.99 1.94 2.83 2.85 

Tax Payable [A] 23.98 14.23 10.65 12.51 

Tax Payable on items chargeable at special rates [B] - - - - 

Total Tax Payable [C=A+B] 23.98 14.23 10.65 12.51 

Tax Rebates [D] - - - - 

Net Tax Payable [E=C-D] 23.98 14.23 10.65 12.51 
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Annexure – 09 
 

STATEMENT OF DETAILS OF LONG TERM BORROWINGS 
 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
Secured:           
Vehicle Loan   -     -     -     -    4.25 
Unsecured:           
Loan from Shareholders* 42.99     47.30    35.95 36.30  33.01    
Total 42.99     47.30    35.95 36.30 37.26 

 
* Unsecured, Repayable on demand 

 
Annexure – 10 

 
STATEMENT OF DETAILS OF LONG TERM BORROWINGS 

 
(Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
Secured:           
Vehicle Loan   -     -     -     0.64    - 
Unsecured:           
Loan from Shareholders - - - - - 
Total - - - 0.64 - 

 
 

Annexure – 11 
 

STATEMENT OF DETAILS OF SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 
 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
Advance Recoverable in cash or kind  24.39  141.45 53.41  15.29    7.83    
Deposits 1.09 1.00 -  -     -    
Advance Taxes - - - 3.74 3.29 
Total 25.48   142.45  53.41  19.03    11.12    

 
Annexure – 12 

 
STATEMENT OF DETAILS OF CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 

 
(Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
Current Liabilities           
Sundry Creditors           
Due for consumables/goods 39.34  32.57 16.07 17.54  17.70    
Sub Total (A) 39.34  32.57 16.07 17.54  17.70    
            
Short Term Provisions           
Duties & Taxes Payable 2.94 14.00 4.05 - 7.60 
Provisons 4.01 1.17 1.40 2.89 21.08 
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Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
TDS Payables  0.93     0.63    -     -     -    
Sub Total (B) 7.88  15.80   5.45  2.89 28.68  
Total (A+B) 47.22   48.37  21.52  21.07  46.38  

 
 

Annexure – 13 
 

STATEMENT OF DETAILS OF REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 
(Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
Consultation Fees 7.76 5.86 4.74 4.97 4.50 

Operations & Surgery 119.59 95.55 67.89 70.21 103.60 

Pathology & Other Operating Revenue 58.26 42.36 41.54 54.84 28.21 

Sale of Medicines 14.97 - - - - 

Total  200.58   143.77   114.17   130.02   136.31  
 
 

Annexure – 14 
 

STATEMENT OF DETAILS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
(Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 
REVENUE ITEMS:      

Rent - - 1.85 3.00 3.00 

Purchase of Medicines  14.25 2.43 - - - 

Remuneration to Promoters & Directors 33.99 - 12.31 37.00 37.00 

Total 48.24 2.43 14.16 40.00 40.00 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

 
You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations 
together with our audited restated financial statements prepared in accordance with paragraph B of Part II of 
Schedule II to the Companies Act and SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, including the schedules, annexure and notes 
thereto and the reports thereon of each of the financial years ended March 31, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, and 2015  
in the chapter titled "Financial Information" on page 104 of the Prospectus. The following discussion relates to 
our Company and, unless otherwise stated, is based on our restated financial statements, which have been 
prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP, the Accounting Standards and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act and the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. Our fiscal year ends on March 31 of each year so accordingly all 
references to a particular financial year are to the twelve months ended March 31 of that year. 
 
Industry Overview 
 
Healthcare Industry In India 
 
The Indian healthcare sector, one of the fastest growing industries, is expected to grow at a compound annual 
growth rate (CAGR) of 17 per cent during 2011-2020 to touch US$ 280 billion. There is immense scope for 
enhancing healthcare services penetration in India, this presents ample opportunity for development of the 
healthcare industry.  
 
Strong fundamentals: 
 
Rising income levels, ageing population, growing health awareness and changing attitude towards preventive 
healthcare is expected to boost healthcare services demand in future. 
 
The private sector has emerged as a vibrant force in India's healthcare industry, lending it both national and 
international repute. Its share in healthcare delivery is expected to increase from 66 per cent in 2005 to 81 per 
cent by 2015. In India, private healthcare accounts for almost 72 per cent of the country's total healthcare 
expenditure. 
 
Per capita healthcare expenditure is estimated to grow at a CAGR of 15.4 per cent during 2008-2015E to reach US$ 
88.7 on the back of rising incomes, easier access to high-quality healthcare facilities and greater awareness of 
personal health and hygiene. 
 
The Government of India aims to develop India as a global healthcare hub. It has created the National Health 
Mission (NHM) for providing effective healthcare to both the urban and rural population. 
 
India has an advantage over its peers in the West and Asia in terms of cost of high-quality medical services 
offered. It offers a huge patient pool, favourable regulatory environment and cost advantage for conducting 
clinical trials. 
 
Cost advantage: 
 
The low cost of medical services has resulted in a rise in the country’s medical tourism, attracting patients from 
across the world. Moreover, India has emerged as a hub for R&D activities for international players due to its 
relatively low cost of clinical research. 
 
Business Overview 
 
We are incorporated in Mumbai as “Tejnaksh Healthcare Private Limited” as on 18th February, 2008 as a private 
limited company under provision of companies Act 1956. Company was converted in to a Public Limited Company 
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and consequently the name was changed to “Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited" vide fresh certificate of incorporation 
dated 10th March, 2015 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. 
 
We run an Institute of Urology, an ISO certified the international level Urology hospital, located in the heart of 
Dhule city, Maharashtra, India. The 24000 Sq. Ft. campus has a four storey building which houses the complete 
Urology setup. It provides a comprehensive range of services from consultations and investigations to treatment 
for Urology.  
 
We are equipped with all latest equipment and provide the whole range of services, the patients from local area 
do not feel the need to go to metropolitan areas for urological problems. The Institute is recognized by National 
board of examinations for DNB (Urology). The Institute boasts of 150 research publications and 23 innovations.  
 
We are a professionally managed and growing organization which aims at strengthening and establishing itself as 
the foremost provider of healthcare services. We also aim at achieving greater and long-term growth. 
 
Our Managing Director and Promoter Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale is listed in Guinness World Records (twice), 
Ripley’s believe it or not, Limca book of records, India book of records (multiple records), Asia book of records, 
World amazing records and World record academy for various achievements and innovations in urology.  
 
The objective of our Hospital namely Institute of Urology is to provide the people of Khandesh region of 
Maharashtra, the services of a super specialty hospital at an affordable rate.  
 
We are an integrated healthcare delivery service provider, committed to delivering quality healthcare services to 
our patients in modern facilities. Our operations are divided across four key vertical streams in healthcare 
delivery, namely – “Pediatric Urology”, “Adult Urology (Male, Female)”, “Andrology and Sexual Dysfunction” and 
“Nephrology, Dialysis and Renal Transplant”.  
 
FACTORS AFFECTING OUR FUTURE RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
Our results of operations could potentially be affected by the following factors amongst others: 
 

Ø General economic and business conditions; 
Ø Company’s inability to successfully implement its growth and expansion plans; 
Ø Increasing competition in the Healthcare Industry; 
Ø Economic, Income and Demographic condition in India 
Ø Changes in laws and regulations that apply to Industry in which we operate; 
Ø Any change in the tax laws granting incentives to Industry in which we operate. 

 
DISCUSSION ON THE RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
The following discussion on the financial operations and performance is based on our restated financial 
statements for the FY 2010-2011, 2011-2012, 2012-13, 2013-2014 and 2014-2015. The same should be read in 
conjunction with the restated audited financial results of our Company for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012, 
2013, 2014 and 2015. 
 
Analysis on Results of Operation 
 
Considering the various Key factors affecting our income and expenditure, our results of operations may vary from 
period to period. The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our results of operations for 
the periods indicated read together with notes to accounts, accounting policies and auditor’s report as appearing 
in this Prospectus.    
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(Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 

Income:-      
Revenue from Operations 200.58 143.77 114.17 130.02 136.31 
Increase/ (Decrease) (%) 39.51 25.93 (12.19) (4.61) --- 
Other Income 4.85 1.35 0.05 1.91 1.68 
Increase/ (Decrease) (%) 259.26 2,600.00 (97.38) 13.69 --- 
Expenditure:-  

   
 

Purchases of Stock in Trade 22.54 - - - - 
Changes in Inventories (13.67) - - - - 
Direct Expenses 17.66 10.29 9.86 9.63 8.07 
Increase/ (Decrease) (%) 71.62 4.36 2.39 19.33 --- 
Employees Expenses 46.62 9.59 20.24 44.96 43.23 
Increase/ (Decrease) (%) 386.13 (52.62) (54.98) 4.00 --- 
Administrative & Other Expenses 31.33 28.99 20.80 23.47 28.33 
Increase/ (Decrease) (%) 8.07 39.38 (11.38) (17.15) --- 
Preliminary Expenses Written Off - - - 0.05 0.05 
Profit before Depreciation, Interest and Tax 100.95 96.25 63.32 53.82 58.31 
Increase/ (Decrease) (%) 4.88 52.01 17.65 (7.70) --- 
Profit before Interest & Tax 87.31 84.81 52.36 44.30 50.41 
Increase/ (Decrease) (%) 2.95 61.97 18.19 (12.12) --- 
Interest & Finance Charges 0.04 0.03 0.03 0.67 0.71 
Net Profit before Tax 87.27 84.78 52.33 43.63 49.70 
Increase/ (Decrease) (%) 2.94 62.01 19.94 (12.21) --- 
Net Profit After Tax 59.77 57.20 31.16 30.00 34.25 
Increase/ (Decrease) (%) 4.49 83.57 3.87 (12.41) --- 

 
COMPARISON OF FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2015 WITH FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2014 
 
Income: Our operational revenue for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015 was at Rs. 200.58 Lacs as against 
the total of Rs. 143.77 Lacs for the fiscal year 2014 with an increase of 39.51 % and such increase was attributed 
to rise in volume of our oerations.  
 
Expenditure: Direct Expenses have increased by 71.62% from Rs. 10.29 Lacs in fiscal 2014 to Rs. 17.66 Lacs in 
fiscal 2015. Personnel Expenses have registered increase of 386.13 % at Rs. 46.62 Lacs in fiscal 2015 as compared 
to Rs. 9.59 Lacs in fiscal 2014 and administrative & selling expenses have registered an increase of 8.07 % to Rs. 
31.33 Lacs in fiscal 2015 as compared to Rs. 28.99 Lacs in fiscal 2014. The expenses have increased in symmetry of 
rise of operations. Personnel Expenses have increased due to remuneration to directors. 
 
Profits after Taxes (PAT): PAT of Company has recorded an increase of 4.49 % at Rs. 59.77 Lacs for fiscal 2015 as 
against Rs. 57.20 Lacs for fiscal 2014 due to higher base of revenue. 
 
COMPARISON OF FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2014 WITH FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2013 
 
Income: Our operational revenue for the financial year ended 31st March, 2014 was at Rs. 143.77 Lacs as against 
the total of Rs. 114.17 Lacs for the fiscal year 2013 with an increase of 25.93 % and such increase was attributed 
to rise in volume of our oerations.  
 
Expenditure: Direct Expenses have increased by 4.36% from Rs. 9.86 Lacs in fiscal 2013 to Rs. 10.29 Lacs in fiscal 
2014. Personnel Expenses have registered decline of 52.62 % at Rs. 9.59 Lacs in fiscal 2014 as compared to Rs. 
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20.24 Lacs in fiscal 2013 and administrative & selling expenses have registered an increase of 39.38 % to Rs. 28.99 
Lacs in fiscal 2014 as compared to Rs. 20.80 Lacs in fiscal 2013. The expenses have increased in symmetry of rise 
of operations. 
 
Profits after Taxes (PAT): PAT of Company has recorded a jump of 83.57 % at Rs. 57.20 Lacs for fiscal 2014 as 
against Rs. 31.16 Lacs for fiscal 2013 due to higher base of revenue. 
 
COMPARISON OF FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2013 WITH FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2012 
 
Income: Our operational revenue for the financial year ended 31st March, 2013 was at Rs. 114.17 Lacs as against 
the total of Rs. 130.02 Lacs for the fiscal 2012 with a decline of 12.19 %. 
 
Expenditure: Purchases & Direct Expenses have registered increase of 2.39 % at Rs. 9.86 Lacs in fiscal 2013 as 
compared to Rs. 9.63 Lacs in fiscal, 2012. Personnel Expenses have registered a decline of 54.98 % at Rs. 20.24 
Lacs in fiscal 2013 as compared to Rs. 44.96 Lacs in fiscal 2012 and administrative & selling expenses have 
decreased to Rs. 20.80 Lacs in fiscal 2013 as compared to Rs. 23.47 Lacs in fiscal 2012.  
 
Profits after Taxes (PAT): PAT of Company has recorded a growth with an increase of  3.87 % and stood at Rs. 
31.16 Lacs for fiscal 2013 as against Rs. 30.00 Lacs for fiscal 2012 mainly due to increase in volume of operations 
in fiscal 2013. 
 
COMPARISON OF FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2012 WITH FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2011 
 
Income: Our operational revenue for the financial year ended 31st March, 2012 was at Rs. 130.02 Lacs as against 
the total of Rs. 136.31 Lacs for the fiscal 2011 with a decline of 4.61 %. 
 
Expenditure: Direct Expenses shown an increase of 19.33 % at Rs. 9.63 Lacs for fiscal year 2012 as compared to  
Rs. 8.07 Lacs for fiscal year 2011. Personnel Expenses have registered an increase of 4.00 % at Rs. 44.96 Lacs in 
fiscal 2012 as compared to Rs. 43.23 Lacs in fiscal 2011. The administrative and selling expenses have registered 
decline of 17.15 % at Rs. 23.47 Lacs in fiscal 2012 as compared to Rs. 28.33 Lacs for the fiscal 2011. 
 
Profits after Taxes (PAT): PAT of Company has recorded a decline of 12.41 % at Rs. 30.00 Lacs for fiscal 2012 as 
against Rs. 34.25 Lacs for fiscal 2011. 
 
Other Information required as per SEBI Regulations  
 
• Unusual or infrequent events or transactions 
 

There are no unusual or infrequent events or transactions that have significantly affected operations of 
the Company. 

 
• Significant economic changes that materially affected or are likely to affect income from continuing 

operations 
 

There are no significant economic changes that materially affected Company’s operations or are likely to 
affect income from continuing operations. Any slowdown in the growth of Indian economy, could affect 
the business, including the future financial performance, shareholders’ funds and ability to implement 
strategy and the price of the Equity Shares. 

 
• Known trends or uncertainties that have had or are expected to have a material adverse impact on 

sales, revenue or income from continuing operations. 
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Apart from the Risks disclosed under the section titled “Risk Factors” no known trends or uncertainties are 
envisaged or are expected to have a material adverse impact on sales, revenue or income from continuing 
operations to Company’s knowledge. 

 
• Future changes in relationship between costs and revenues in case of events such as future increase 

in labor or material cost or prices that will cause material change. 
 
According to our knowledge, there are no future relationship between cost and income that would be 
expected to have a material adverse impact on our operations and revenues. However Increase in the cost 
of the services which the Company provides, will affect the profitability of the Company. 
 

• The extent to which material increases in net sales / revenue is due to increase in sales volume, 
introduction of new products or services or increased sales prices 

 
The increase in revenue is by and large linked to increase in volume of all the activities carried out by the 
Company. 
 

• Total turnover of each major industry segment in which the Company operated 
 

The Company operates only one business segment in context of accounting standards 17 on Segment 
Reporting issued by ICAI i.e. Healthcare operations. The company is not operating in any of the 
geographical segment. 

 
• Status of any publicly announced New Products or Business Segment 
 

The Company has not announced any new business segment. 
 
• The extent to which our Company’s business is seasonal 
 

Our Company’s business is not seasonal in nature.  
 

• Any significant dependence on a single or few suppliers or customers 
 

We are not under threat of dependence from any single supplier or customer. 
 
• Competitive conditions 

 
We compete with other private hospitals, government-owned hospitals, smaller clinics, hospitals owned or 
operated by non-profit and charitable organizations and hospitals affiliated with medical colleges. We will 
also have to compete with any future healthcare facilities located in the regions in which we operate. 
Moreover, some of these competitors may be more established and may have greater financial, personnel 
and other resources than our Hospital. In particular, our competitors include hospitals owned or managed 
by government agencies and trusts, which may be able to obtain financing or make expenditures on more 
favorable terms than private hospitals owned and managed by for profit interests, such as ourselves. New 
or existing competitors may price their services at a significant discount to ours or offer greater 
convenience or better than we provide. Smaller hospitals, stand-alone clinics and other hospitals may 
exert pricing pressures on some or all of our services and also compete with us for doctors and other 
medical professionals. Some of our competitors also have plans to expand their hospital networks, which 
may exert further pricing and recruiting pressures on us. If we are forced to reduce the price of our 
services or are unable to attract patients and doctors and other healthcare professionals to our hospital, 
our business and financial results may be adversely affected.  
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SECTION VI: LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION 
 

OUTSTANDING LITIGATION AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Except as stated herein, there are no outstanding or pending litigation, suits, civil prosecution, criminal 
proceedings or tax liabilities against our Company, our Directors, our Promoters and Promoter Group and there 
are no defaults, non-payment of statutory dues, over dues to banks and financial institutions, defaults against 
bank and financial institutions and there are no outstanding debentures, bonds, fixed deposits or preference 
shares issued by our Company; no default in creation of full security as per the terms of the issue, no 
proceedings initiated for economic or other offences (including past cases where penalties may or may not have 
been awarded) and no disciplinary action has been taken by SEBI or any stock exchanges against our Promoters, 
our Directors or Promoter Group Companies.   
 
I. CASES FILED BY OUR COMPANY 
 

Civil Cases 
 

There are no civil proceedings filed by our Company. 
 
Criminal Cases 
 
There are no criminal proceedings filed by our Company. 

 
II. CASES FILED AGAINST OUR COMPANY 

 
Civil proceedings  
 
There are no civil proceedings filed against our Company. 
 
Criminal Proceedings  
 
There are no criminal proceedings filed against our Company. 
 

III. INDIRECT TAX PROCEEDINGS INVOLVING  OUR COMPANY 
 

NIL  
 
IV. LITIGATIONS INVOLVING OUR PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP COMPANIES 

 
(i) Proceedings of Civil nature 

 
(a) By the promoters & Promoter Group Companies 
 

NIL 
 

(b) Against the promoters & Promoter Group Companies 
 

NIL 
 

 (ii)Proceedings of a Criminal nature- 
(a) By the promoters & Promoter Group Companies 

 
  NIL 
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(b) Against the promoters & Promoter Group Companies 
    

NIL 
 
V. LITIGATIONS INVOLVING DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY  

 
(i) Proceedings of Civil nature 

 
(a) By the Directors of our Company 

 
  NIL 
 

(b) Against the Directors of our Company 
 

NIL 
 

   (ii)Proceedings of a Criminal nature- 
(a) By the Directors of our Company 

 
  NIL 
 

(b) Against the Directors of our Company 
    

NIL 
 
MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS 
 
In the opinion of the Board of Directors of our Company, there have not arisen, since the date of the last audited 
financial statements disclosed in this Prospectus, any circumstances that materially or adversely affect or are 
likely to affect our profitability or value of assets or our ability to pay material liabilities within the next twelve 
(12) months. 
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GOVERNMENT & OTHER APPROVALS 
 
We have received all the necessary consents, licenses, permissions and approvals from the government and 
various government agencies/ private certification bodies for our present businesses and no further approvals are 
required for carrying on the present businesses except as stated in this Prospectus. 
 
APPROVALS FOR THE ISSUE 
 
1. The Board of Directors has, pursuant to resolution passed at its meeting held on 15th March, 2015 authorized 
the Issue. 
 
2. The shareholders of our Company have, pursuant to a resolution 19th March, 2015 authorized the Issue.  
 
INCORPORATION DETAILS 
 
1. Certificate of Incorporation dated 18th February, 2008 issued by Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra, 
in the name of Tejnaksh Healthcare Private Limited. 
 
2. Fressh Certificate of Incorporation dated 10th March, 2015 issued by Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, 
Maharashtra, consequent upon change in the name to Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited. 
 
3. The Company Identification Number (CIN) is U85100MH2008PLC179034 
 
CORPORATE APPROVALS OF OUR COMPANY  
 
1. Permanent Account Number (AACCT9786F) under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
 
2. Tax Deduction Account Number (MUMT14869B) under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

 
3. ISIN Number is. INE030T01019 
 
4. Profession Tax Enrollment No. 99281830063P issued by Professional Tax Officer, Maharshtra. 

 
5. Certificate of registration for ISO 9001:2008 for service range including Urology, Andrology, Nephography, 

Renal Transplanation, Routine-laparoscopic-microscopic  & laser surgeries to our Hospital namely Institute of 
Urology. 

 
 
PENDING APPROVALS 
 
Nil 
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OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 
 
AUTHORITY FOR THE ISSUE 
 
The shareholders of Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited had approved the present Issue by a special resolution in 
accordance with Section 62 (1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 passed at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of our 
Company held on 19th March 2015.  
 
Our Board has approved this Prospectus at its meeting held on 18th September, 2015.  
 
We have received approval from BSE vide letter dated 1st July, 2015 to use the name of BSE in this offer document 
for listing of our Equity Shares on SME Platform of BSE. BSE is the Designated Stock Exchange. 
 
PROHIBITION BY SEBI 
 
The Company, its Promoters, its Directors or any of the Company’s Associates or Group Companies and companies 
with which the Directors of the Company are associated as Directors or Promoters, or Directors or Promoters in 
control of, of the promoting Company, are currently not prohibited from accessing or operating in the capital 
market under any order or direction passed by SEBI. 
 
PROHIBITION BY RBI 
 
Our Company, our Promoters, Promoting Companies, their relatives, Group Concerns and Associate Companies 
have not been identified as willful defaulters by the RBI or any other government authorities. 
 
ELIGIBILITY FOR THE ISSUE 
 
Our Company is an “Unlisted Issuer” in terms of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations; and this Issue is an “Initial Public 
Offer” in terms of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.  
 
Our Company is eligible for the Issue in accordance with Regulation 106(M) (1) and other provisions of Chapter XB 
of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, as we are an Issuer whose post issue paid up capital do not exceed ten crores 
rupees shall issue its specified securities in accordance with provisions of chapter XB Issue of specified securities 
by small and medium enterprises] of ICDR regulations. (In this case being the “SME Platform of BSE”). 
 
We confirm that: 
a) In accordance with Regulation 106(P) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, this Issue has been hundred percent 
underwritten and that the Lead Manager to the Issue has underwritten more than 15% of the Total Issue Size. For 
further details pertaining to said underwriting please refer to “General Information – Underwriting” on page 31 of 
this Prospectus. 
 
b) In accordance with Regulation 106(R) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, we shall ensure that the total number of 
proposed Allottees in the Issue is greater than or equal to fifty, otherwise, the entire application money will be 
refunded forthwith. If such money is not repaid within eight days from the date our Company becomes liable to 
repay it, then our Company and every officer in default shall, on and from expiry of eight days, be liable to repay 
such application money, with interest as prescribed under Section 40 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
c) In accordance with Regulation 106(O) the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, we have not filed any Draft Offer Document 
with SEBI nor has SEBI issued any observations on our Offer Document. Also, we shall ensure that our Lead 
Manager submits the copy of Prospectus along with a Due Diligence Certificate including additional confirmations 
as required to SEBI at the time of filing the Prospectus with Stock Exchange and the Registrar of Companies. 
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d) In accordance with Regulation 106(V) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, we have entered into an agreement with 
the Lead Manager and Market Maker to ensure compulsory Market Making for a minimum period of three years 
from the date of listing of equity shares offered in this Issue.  
 
For further details of the arrangement of market making please refer to “General Information – Details of the 
Market Making Arrangements for this Issue” on page 31 of this Prospectus. 
 
We further confirm that we shall be complying with all the other requirements as laid down for such an Issue 
under Chapter X-B of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, as amended from time to time and subsequent circulars and 
guidelines issued by SEBI and the Stock Exchange. 
 
As per Regulation 106(M)(3) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009, the provisions of Regulations 6(1), 6(2), 6(3), 
Regulation 7, Regulation 8, Regulation 9, Regulation 10, Regulation 25, Regulation 26, Regulation 27 and Sub-
regulation (1) of Regulation 49 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009 shall not apply to us in this Issue. 
 
BSE ELIGIBILITY NORMS: (www. http://www.bsesme.com/aboutpublicissue.aspx) 
 
(Since our Draft prospectus has been filed to BSE before 1st April, 2015 hence BSE Notice No.20150205-44 dated 
5th February, 2015 is not applicable to ourselves.) 
 
1. Net Tangible assets of at least Rs. 1 crore as per the latest audited financial results 
 
Our Company has Net Tangible Assets of Rs. 298.67 Lacs, which is in excess of Rs. 1 Crore as per the latest audited 
annual financial results. Our Net Tangible Assets as on 31st March, 2015 are disclosed as under: 

         (Rs. Lacs) 
Particulars 31.03.2015 
Fixed Assets- Net Block  286.03 
Current Assets, Loans and Advances:  
Receivables - 
Inventories  13.67 
Cash & Bank Balances  20.71  
Short Terms Loans & Advances 25.48  
Other Current Assets - 
Total Assets (A) 345.89 
 Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions:  
Short Term Borrowings - 
Trade Payables 39.34  
Other Current Liabilities  -    
Short Term Provisions  7.88  
Total Current Liabilities & Provisions (B) 47.22 
Net Tangible Assets (A-B) 298.67 

 
Net tangible assets are defined as sum of Fixed Assets (including capital work in progress and excluding 
revaluation reserve), trade investments and current assets (excluding deferred tax assets and intangible assets as 
defined in AS-26 issued by ICAI) less current liabilities & Provisions. 
 
2. Net worth (excluding revaluation reserves) of at least Rs. 1 crore as per the latest audited financial 

results  
Our Company satisfies the above criteria. Our Net Worth as per the restated audited financial statements as on 
31st March, 2015 is as under: 
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      (Rs. Lacs) 
Particulars 31.03.2015 
Share Capital  80.00 
Add: Reserves & Surplus 168.77  
Less: Preliminary Expenses to the extent written off 6.29 
Net Worth 242.48 

 
Net worth includes Equity Share Capital and Reserves, (Net of Miscellaneous Expenditure not written off, if any.) 
 
3. Track record of distributable profits in terms of sec. 205 of Companies Act, 1956 / sec. 123 of 

Companies Act, 2013 for at least two years out of immediately preceding three financial years and each 
financial year has to be a period of at least 12 months. Extraordinary income will not be considered for 
the purpose of calculating distributable profits. Otherwise, the Net Worth shall be at least Rs. 3 Crores. 

 
Our Company has distributable profits in terms of sec. 205 of Companies Act, 1956, as detailed below: 

                           (Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 

Net Profit  59.77   57.20   31.16  
 
4. Other Requirements 

 
i. The post-issue paid up capital of the company shall be at least Rs. 1 crore. 

As on the date of Prospectus i.e. 18th September, 2015, Our Company has a paid up capital in Rs. 80.00 
Lacs, and the Post Issue Capital would be atleast Rs. 110.40 Lacs, which is in excess of Rs. 1 crore. 

 
ii. The company shall mandatorily facilitate trading in demat securities and enter into an agreement 

with both the depositories. 
Our Company has entered into tripartite agreements with CDSL and NSDL along with our Registrar for 
facilitating trading in dematerialized mode.  
 

iii. Companies shall mandatorily have a website  
 
The company has a live and operational website: www.tejurology.com  

 
5. Certificate from the applicant company / promoting companies stating the following: 

 
a. The Company has not been referred to the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR). 

 
Our Company has not been referred to the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR). 

 
b. There is no winding up petition against the company that has been accepted by a court. 

 
There is no winding up petition against our Company that has been accepted by a court or liquidator has not been 
appointed. 

 
c. There is no change in the promoter/s of the Company in the preceding one year from date of filing 
application to BSE for listing on SME segment. 

 
There is no change in the promoter/s of the Company in the preceding one year from date of filing application to 
BSE for listing on SME segment. 
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DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI 
 
IT IS TO BE DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT SUBMISSION OF OFFER DOCUMENT TO SEBI SHOULD NOT IN ANY 
WAY BE DEEMED OR CONSTRUED THAT THE SAME HAS BEEN CLEARED OR APPROVED BY SEBI. SEBI DOES NOT 
TAKE ANY RESPONSIBILITY EITHER FOR THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF ANY SCHEME OR THE PROJECT FOR 
WHICH THE ISSUE IS PROPOSED TO BE MADE OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF THE STATEMENTS MADE OR 
OPINIONS EXPRESSED IN THE OFFER DOCUMENT. THE LEAD MERCHANT BANKER, FIRST OVERSEAS CAPITAL 
LIMITED, HAS CERTIFIED THAT THE DISCLOSURES MADE IN THE OFFER DOCUMENT ARE GENERALLY ADEQUATE 
AND ARE IN CONFORMITY WITH SEBI (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2009 
IN FORCE FOR THE TIME BEING. THIS REQUIREMENT IS TO FACILITATE INVESTORS TO TAKE AN INFORMED 
DECISION FOR MAKING AN INVESTMENT IN THE PROPOSED ISSUE. 
 
IT SHOULD ALSO BE CLEARLY UNDERSTOOD THAT WHILE THE COMPANY IS PRIMARILY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE 
CORRECTNESS, ADEQUACY AND DISCLOSURE OF ALL RELEVANT INFORMATION IN THE OFFER DOCUMENT, THE 
LEAD MERCHANT BANKER IS EXPECTED TO EXERCISE DUE DILIGENCE TO ENSURE THAT THE COMPANY 
DISCHARGES ITS RESPONSIBILITY ADEQUATELY IN THIS BEHALF AND TOWARDS THIS PURPOSE, THE LEAD 
MERCHANT BANKER, FIRST OVERSEAS CAPITAL LIMITED HAS FURNISHED, A DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATE DATED 
MARCH 25, 2015 WHICH READS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1) WE HAVE EXAMINED VARIOUS DOCUMENTS INCLUDING THOSE RELATING TO LITIGATION LIKE 

COMMERCIAL DISPUTES, PATENT DISPUTES, DISPUTES WITH COLLABORATORS, ETC. AND OTHER 
MATERIAL IN CONNECTION WITH THE FINALISATION OF THE PROSPECTUS PERTAINING TO THE SAID 
ISSUE; 
 

2) ON THE BASIS OF SUCH EXAMINATION AND THE DISCUSSIONS WITH THE ISSUER, ITS DIRECTORS AND 
OTHER OFFICERS, OTHER AGENCIES, AND INDEPENDENT VERIFICATION OF THE STATEMENTS 
CONCERNING THE OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE, PRICE JUSTIFICATION AND THE CONTENTS OF THE 
DOCUMENTS AND OTHER PAPERS FURNISHED BY THE ISSUER, WE CONFIRM THAT: 

(A) THE PROSPECTUS FILED WITH THE BOARD IS IN CONFORMITY WITH THE DOCUMENTS, MATERIALS AND 
PAPERS RELEVANT TO THE ISSUE; 
 

(B) ALL THE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO THE ISSUE AS ALSO THE REGULATIONS GUIDELINES, 
INSTRUCTIONS, ETC. FRAMED/ISSUED BY THE BOARD, THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT AND ANY OTHER 
COMPETENT AUTHORITY IN THIS BEHALF HAVE BEEN DULY COMPLIED WITH; AND 

 
(C) THE DISCLOSURES MADE IN THE PROSPECTUS ARE TRUE, FAIR AND ADEQUATE TO ENABLE THE 

INVESTORS TO MAKE A WELL INFORMED DECISION AS TO THE INVESTMENT IN THE PROPOSED ISSUE AND 
SUCH DISCLOSURES ARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956, 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND 
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2009 AND OTHER APPLICABLE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

 
3) WE CONFIRM THAT BESIDES OURSELVES, ALL THE INTERMEDIARIES NAMED IN THE PROSPECTUS ARE 

REGISTERED WITH THE BOARD AND THAT TILL DATE SUCH REGISTRATION IS VALID. 
 
4) WE HAVE SATISFIED OURSELVES ABOUT THE CAPABILITY OF THE UNDERWRITERS TO FULFIL THEIR 

UNDERWRITING COMMITMENTS. 
 
5) WE CERTIFY THAT WRITTEN CONSENT FROM PROMOTERS HAS BEEN OBTAINED FOR INCLUSION OF 

THEIR SPECIFIED SECURITIES AS PART OF PROMOTERS’ CONTRIBUTION SUBJECT TO LOCK-IN AND THE 
SPECIFIED SECURITIES PROPOSED TO FORM PART OF PROMOTERS’ CONTRIBUTION SUBJECT TO LOCK-IN 
SHALL NOT BE DISPOSED / SOLD / TRANSFERRED BY THE PROMOTERS DURING THE PERIOD STARTING 
FROM THE DATE OF FILING OF THE PROSPECTUS WITH THE BOARD TILL THE DATE OF COMMENCEMENT 
OF LOCK-IN PERIOD AS STATED IN THE PROSPECTUS. 
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6) WE CERTIFY THAT REGULATION 33 OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA  (ISSUE OF 
CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2009, WHICH RELATES TO SPECIFIED 
SECURITIES INELIGIBLE FOR COMPUTATION OF PROMOTERS CONTRIBUTION, HAS BEEN DULY COMPLIED 
WITH AND APPROPRIATE DISCLOSURES AS TO COMPLIANCE WITH THE SAID REGULATION HAVE BEEN 
MADE IN THE PROSPECTUS. 

 
7) WE UNDERTAKE THAT SUB-REGULATION (4) OF REGULATION 32 AND CLAUSE (C) AND (D) OF SUB-

REGULATION (2) OF REGULATION 8 OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF 
CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2009 SHALL BE COMPLIED WITH. WE 
CONFIRM THAT ARRANGEMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE TO ENSURE THAT PROMOTERS’ CONTRIBUTION 
SHALL BE RECEIVED AT LEAST ONE DAY BEFORE THE OPENING OF THE ISSUE. WE UNDERTAKE THAT 
AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE TO THIS EFFECT SHALL BE DULY SUBMITTED TO THE BOARD. WE FURTHER 
CONFIRM THAT ARRANGEMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE TO ENSURE THAT PROMOTERS’ CONTRIBUTION 
SHALL BE KEPT IN AN ESCROW ACCOUNT WITH A SCHEDULED COMMERCIAL BANK AND SHALL BE 
RELEASED TO THE ISSUER ALONG WITH THE PROCEEDS OF THE PUBLIC ISSUE.  

 
8) WE CERTIFY THAT THE PROPOSED ACTIVITIES OF THE ISSUER FOR WHICH THE FUNDS ARE BEING 

RAISED IN THE PRESENT ISSUE FALL WITHIN THE ‘MAIN OBJECTS’ LISTED IN THE OBJECT CLAUSE OF 
THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OR OTHER CHARTER OF THE ISSUER AND THAT THE ACTIVITIES 
WHICH HAVE BEEN CARRIED OUT UNTIL NOW ARE VALID IN TERMS OF THE OBJECT CLAUSE OF ITS 
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION. 

 
9) WE CONFIRM THAT NECESSARY ARRANGEMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE TO ENSURE THAT THE MONEYS 

RECEIVED PURSUANT TO THE ISSUE ARE KEPT IN A SEPARATE BANK ACCOUNT AS PER THE PROVISIONS 
OF SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 40 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND THAT SUCH MONEYS SHALL BE 
RELEASED BY THE SAID BANK ONLY AFTER PERMISSION IS OBTAINED FROM THE STOCK EXCHANGE 
MENTIONED IN THE PROSPECTUS. WE FURTHER CONFIRM THAT THE AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO 
BETWEEN THE BANKERS TO THE ISSUE AND THE ISSUER SPECIFICALLY CONTAINS THIS CONDITION.  

 
10) WE CERTIFY THAT A DISCLOSURE HAS BEEN MADE IN THE PROSPECTUS THAT THE INVESTORS SHALL BE 

GIVEN AN OPTION TO GET THE SHARES IN DEMAT OR PHYSICAL MODE.  
 
11) WE CERTIFY THAT ALL THE APPLICABLE DISCLOSURES MANDATED IN THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 

BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2009 HAVE BEEN 
MADE IN ADDITION TO DISCLOSURES WHICH, IN OUR VIEW, ARE FAIR AND ADEQUATE TO ENABLE THE 
INVESTOR TO MAKE A WELL INFORMED DECISION. 

 
12)  WE CERTIFY THAT THE FOLLOWING DISCLOSURES HAVE BEEN MADE IN THE PROSPECTUS: 
 
(A) AN UNDERTAKING FROM THE ISSUER THAT AT ANY GIVEN TIME, THERE SHALL BE ONLY ONE 

DENOMINATION FOR THE EQUITY SHARES OF THE ISSUER AND  
 

(B) AN UNDERTAKING FROM THE ISSUER THAT IT SHALL COMPLY WITH SUCH DISCLOSURE AND 
ACCOUNTING NORMS SPECIFIED BY THE BOARD FROM TIME TO TIME. 

 
13) WE UNDERTAKE TO COMPLY WITH THE REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO ADVERTISEMENT IN TERMS OF 

THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2009 WHILE MAKING THE ISSUE. 

 
14) WE ENCLOSE A NOTE EXPLAINING HOW THE PROCESS OF DUE DILIGENCE HAS BEEN  EXERCISED BY US 

IN VIEW OF THE NATURE OF CURRENT BUSINESS BACKGROUND OR THE ISSUER, SITUATION AT WHICH 
THE PROPOSED BUSINESS STANDS, THE RISK FACTORS, PROMOTERS EXPERIENCE, ETC. 
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15) WE ENCLOSE A CHECKLIST CONFIRMING REGULATION-WISE COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE 
PROVISIONS OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2009, CONTAINING DETAILS SUCH AS THE REGULATION NUMBER, ITS 
TEXT, THE STATUS OF COMPLIANCE, PAGE NUMBER OF THE PROSPECTUS WHERE THE REGULATION 
HAS BEEN COMPLIED WITH AND OUR COMMENTS, IF ANY. 

 
16) WE ENCLOSE STATEMENT ON ‘PRICE INFORMATION OF PAST ISSUES HANDLED BY MERCHANT BANKERS, 

AS PER FORMAT SPECIFIED BY THE BOARD THROUGH CIRCULAR.  
 
17) THE FILING OF THIS OFFER DOCUMENT DOES NOT, HOWEVER, ABSOLVE OUR COMPANY FROM ANY 

LIABILITIES UNDER SECTION 63 OR SECTION 68 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 1956 (SECTION 34 OR SECTION 
36 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013) OR FROM THE REQUIREMENT OF OBTAINING SUCH STATUTORY 
AND/OR OTHER CLEARANCES AS MAY BE REQUIRED FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSED ISSUE. SEBI 
FURTHER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO TAKE UP AT ANY POINT OF TIME, WITH THE LEAD MANAGER ANY 
IRREGULARITIES OR LAPSES IN THE OFFER DOCUMENT. 

 
ADDITIONAL CONFIRMATIONS/ CERTIFICATION TO BE GIVEN BY MERCHANT BANKER IN DUE DILIGENCE 
CERTIFICATE TO BE GIVEN ALONG WITH OFFER DOCUMENT REGARDING SME EXCHANGE 
 
(1) WE CONFIRM THAT NONE OF THE INTERMEDIARIES NAMED IN THE PROSPECTUS HAVE BEEN DEBARRED 

FROM FUNCTIONING BY ANY REGULATORY AUTHORITY. 
 

(2) WE CONFIRM THAT ALL THE MATERIAL DISCLOSURES IN RESPECT OF THE ISSUER HAVE BEEN MADE IN 
PROSPECTUS AND CERTIFY THAT ANY MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN THE ISSUER OR RELATING TO THE 
ISSUE UP TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF LISTING AND TRADING OF THE SPECIFIED SECURITIES OFFERED 
THROUGH THIS ISSUE SHALL BE INFORMED THROUGH PUBLIC NOTICES/ ADVERTISEMENTS IN ALL THOSE 
NEWSPAPERS IN WHICH PRE-ISSUE ADVERTISEMENT AND ADVERTISEMENT FOR OPENING OR CLOSURE OF 
THE ISSUE HAVE BEEN GIVEN. 

 
(3) WE CONFIRM THAT THE ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS CONTAINS ALL THE DISCLOSURES AS SPECIFIED IN THE 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2009.- NOTED 

 
(4) WE CONFIRM THAT AGREEMENTS HAVE BEEN ENTERED INTO WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR 

DEMATERIALISATION OF THE SPECIFIED SECURITIES OF THE ISSUER.-NOTED 
 
(5) WE CERTIFY THAT AS PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF FIRST PROVISO TO SUB-REGULATION (4) OF 

REGULATION 32 OF SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2009, CASH FLOW STATEMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED AND DISCLOSED IN 
THE PROSPECTUS. – NOT APPLICABLE 

 
(6) WE CONFIRM THAT UNDERWRITING AND MARKET MAKING ARRANGEMENTS AS PER REQUIREMENTS OF 

REGULATION 106P AND 106V OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL 
AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2009 HAVE BEEN MADE. 

 
(7) WE CONFIRM THAT THE ISSUER HAS REDRESSED AT LEAST NINETY FIVE PER CENT OF THE COMPLAINTS 

RECEIVED FROM THE INVESTORS TILL THE END OF THE QUARTER IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE MONTH 
OF THE FILING OF THE PROSPECTUS WITH THE REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES. – NOT APPLICABLE 
 

       DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF BSE 
 

BSE Limited (“BSE”) has given vide its letter dated 1st July, 2015, permission to this Company to use its name 
in this offer document as one of the stock exchanges on which this company’s securities are proposed to be 
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listed on the SME Platform. BSE has scrutinized this offer document for its limited internal purpose of deciding 
on the matter for granting the aforesaid permission to this company. BSE does not in any manner:- 

 
i. Warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this offer 

document; or  
ii. Warrant that this company’s securities will be listed or will continue to be listed on BSE; or 
iii. Take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of this Company, its Promoters, its 

management or any scheme or project of this Company; 
 

And it should not for any reason be deemed or construed that this offer document has been cleared or 
approved by BSE. Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquires any securities in this Company 
may do so pursuant to independent inquiry, investigations and analysis and shall not have any claim against 
BSE whatsoever by reason of loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or in connection with 
such subscription/acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or for any 
other reason whatsoever. 

 
DISCLAIMER FROM OUR COMPANY AND THE LEAD MANAGER 

 
Our Company, its Directors and the Lead Manager accept no responsibility for statements made otherwise 
than those contained in this Prospectus or, in case of the Company, in any advertisements or any other 
material issued by or at our Company’s instance and anyone placing reliance on any other source of 
information would be doing so at his or her own risk. 

 
For details regarding the track record of the Lead Manager to the Issue, please refer to the website of 
the Lead Manager: www.focl.in  

 
CAUTION 

 
The Lead Manager accepts no responsibility, save to the limited extent as provided in the MOU for Issue 
Management entered into among the Lead Manager and our Company dated 20th March, 2015, the 
Underwriting Agreement 20th March, 2015 entered into among the Underwriters and our Company and the 
Market Making Agreement dated 20th March, 2015 entered into among the Lead Manager, Market Maker and 
our Company. 

 
All information shall be made available by us and the Lead Manager to the public and investors at large and no 
selective or additional information would be available for a section of the investors in any manner whatsoever 
including at road show presentations, in research or sales reports or at collection centers or elsewhere. 

 
Note: 

 
Investors who apply in the Issue will be required to confirm and will be deemed to have represented to our 
Company, the Underwriters and their respective directors, officers, agents, affiliates and representatives that 
they are eligible under all applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals to acquire Equity 
Shares of our Company and will not offer, sell, pledge or transfer the Equity Shares of our Company to any 
person who is not eligible under applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals to acquire Equity 
Shares of our Company. Our Company, the Underwriters and their respective directors, officers, agents, 
affiliates and representatives accept no responsibility or liability for advising any investor on whether such 
investor is eligible to acquire Equity Shares of our Company. 

 
DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF JURISDICTION 

 
This Issue is being made in India to persons resident in India {including Indian nationals resident in India who 
are majors, HUFs, companies, corporate bodies and societies registered under the applicable laws in India and 
authorized to invest in shares, Indian Mutual Funds registered with SEBI, Indian financial institutions, 
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commercial banks, regional rural banks, co-operative banks (subject to RBI permission), or trusts under the 
applicable trust law and who are authorized under their constitution to hold and invest in shares, permitted 
insurance companies and pension funds}. This Prospectus does not, however, constitute an invitation to 
subscribe to Equity Shares offered hereby in any other jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to 
make an offer or invitation in such jurisdiction. Any person into whose possession this Prospectus comes is 
required to inform him or herself about and to observe, any such restrictions. Any dispute arising out of this 
Issue will be subject to the jurisdiction of appropriate court(s) in Mumbai, Maharashtra only. 

 
No action has been or will be taken to permit a public offering in any jurisdiction where action would be 
required for that purpose. Accordingly, the Equity Shares represented thereby may not be offered or sold, 
directly or indirectly, and this Prospectus may not be distributed, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance 
with the legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor any 
sale hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been any change in the 
affairs of our Company since the date hereof or that the information contained herein is correct as of any 
time subsequent to this date. 

 
DISCLAIMER CLAUSE UNDER RULE 144A OF THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT 

 
The Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act 1933, as amended 
(the “Securities Act”) or any state securities laws in the United States and may not be offered or sold within 
the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, “U.S. persons” (as defined in Regulation S of the 
Securities Act), except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration 
requirements of the Securities Act. Accordingly, the Equity Shares will be offered and sold (i) in the United 
States only to “qualified institutional buyers”, as defined in Rule 144A of the Securities Act, and (ii) outside 
the United States in offshore transactions in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act and in 
compliance with the applicable laws of the jurisdiction where those offers and sales occur. The Equity Shares 
have not been and will not be registered, listed or otherwise qualified in any other jurisdiction outside India 
and may not be offered or sold, and Applicants may not be made by persons in any such jurisdiction, except in 
compliance with the applicable laws of such jurisdiction. 

 
FILING 

 
The Prospectus shall not be filed with SEBI, nor will SEBI issue any observation on the offer document in term 
of Reg. 106(M)(3). However, a copy of the Prospectus shall be filed with SEBI at the Corporate Finance 
Department, Plot No. C-4A, “G” Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400051. A copy of the 
Prospectus, along with the documents required to be filed under Section 26 & 32 of the Companies Act, 2013 
will be delivered to the ROC situated at 100, Everest, Marine Drive, Mumbai – 400 002. 
 

LISTING 
 

Application shall be made to BSE Limited for obtaining permission for listing of the Equity Shares being offered 
and sold in the SME Platform of BSE. BSE is the Designated Stock Exchange, with which the Basis of Allotment 
will be finalized for the Issue. 

 
The BSE has given its approval for listing our shares vide its letter dated 1st July, 2015. If the permission to 
deal in and for an official quotation of the Equity Shares is not granted by the SME Platform of BSE, our 
Company shall forthwith repay, without interest, all moneys received from the applicants in pursuance of the 
Prospectus. If such money is not repaid within eight days from the date our Company becomes liable to repay 
it, then our Company and every officer in default shall, on and from expiry of eight days, be liable to repay 
such application money, with interest at the rate of 15% per annum on application money, as prescribed under 
Section 40 of the Companies Act, 2013. Our Company shall ensure that all steps for the completion of the 
necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at the SME Platform of BSE mentioned above 
are taken within 12 Working Days of the Issue Closing Date. 
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CONSENTS 
 
Consents in writing of: (a) the Directors, the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer and the Statutory & 
Peer Review Auditors and (b) the Lead Manager, Market Makers, Underwriters, Bankers to the Issue, Registrar 
to the Issue, the Legal Advisors to the Issue, to act in their respective capacities, have been obtained and 
shall be filed along with a copy of the Prospectus with the ROC, as required under Sections 26 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and such consents shall not be withdrawn up to the time of delivery of the Prospectus 
for registration with the ROC. 

 
In accordance with the Companies Act and the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, M/s. P.D. Dalal & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, the Auditors of the Company have agreed to provide their written consent to include its report 
on statement of fund deployed as on 28th February, 2015 dated 23rd March, 2015 and statement of tax benefits 
dated 23rd March, 2015 relating to the possible tax benefits as applicable. M/s. Randhir Jhunjhunwal & Co., 
Peer Review Auditors have agreed to provide their written consent to include their report dated 10th 
September, 2015 on restated financial statements, which may be available to the Company and its 
shareholders, included in this Prospectus in the form and context in which they appear therein and such 
consent and reports will not be withdrawn up to the time of delivery of the Prospectus. 
 
EXPERT OPINION 

 
The Company has not obtained any opinions from an expert as per the Companies Act. 

 
PUBLIC ISSUE EXPENSES 

 
The Management estimates an expense or Rs. 33.20 Lacs towards Issue expense. The expenses of this Issue 
include, among others, underwriting and management fees, market making fees, selling commission, printing 
and distribution expenses, legal fees, statutory advertisement expenses and listing fees. The estimated Issue 
expenses are as follows: 

 
Particulars Amount (Rs. in Lacs) 
Issue management fees including fees and reimbursements of Market Making 
fees, selling commissions, brokerages, and payment to other intermediaries 
such as Legal Advisors, Registrars and other out of pocket expenses. 

24.00 

Printing & Stationery, Distribution, Postage, etc 2.00 
Advertisement & Marketing Expenses    2.00 
Regulatory & other expenses  3.00 
Miscellaneous Expenses 2.20 
Total       33.20 

 
    DETAILS OF FEES PAYABLE 
 

Particulars Amount 
(Rs. in 
Lacs) 

% of Total 
Issue 
Expenses 

% of 
Total 
Issue 
Size 

Issue management fees including fees and reimbursements of Market 
Making fees, selling commissions, brokerages, and payment to other 
intermediaries such as Legal Advisors, Registrars and other out of 
pocket expenses. 

24.00 72.29 9.87 

Printing & Stationery, Distribution, Postage, etc 2.00 6.02 0.82 
Advertisement & Marketing Expenses    2.00 6.02 0.82 
Regulatory & other expenses  3.00 9.04 1.23 
Miscellaneous Expenses 2.20 6.63 0.90 
Total       33.20 100.00 13.64 



 
TEJNAKSH HEALTHCARE LIMITED 

 

135 
 

FEES PAYABLE TO LEAD MANAGER TO THE ISSUE 
 
The total fees payable to the Lead Manager will be as per the Engagement Letters from our Company and Lead 
Manager and Memorandum of Understanding signed with the Lead Manager, copy of which is available for 
inspection at the Registered Office of our Company. 
 
FEES PAYABLE TO THE REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE 
 
The fees payable by the Company to the Registrar to the Issue for processing of application, data entry, printing 
of CAN/ refund order, preparation of refund data on magnetic tape, printing of bulk mailing register will be as per 
the Memorandum of Understanding signed with the Company, copy of which is available for inspection at the 
Registered Office of our Company. 
 
The Registrar to the Issue will be reimbursed for all out-of-pocket expenses including cost of stationery, postage, 
stamp duty and communication expenses. Adequate funds will be provided by the Company to the Registrar to the 
Issue to enable them to send refund orders or allotment advice by registered post/ speed post/ under certificate 
of posting. 
 
UNDERWRITING COMMISSION, BROKERAGE AND SELLING COMMISSION 
 
The underwriting commission and the selling commission for the Issue are as set out in the Underwriting 
Agreement amongst the Company and Underwriters. The underwriting commission shall be paid as set out in the 
Underwriting Agreement based on the Issue price and the amount underwritten in the manner mentioned on page 
31 of this Prospectus. 
 
COMMISSION AND BROKERAGE PAID ON PREVIOUS ISSUES OF OUR EQUITY SHARES  
 
Since this is the Initial Public Offer of the Company, no sum has been paid or has been payable as commission or 
brokerage for subscribing to or procuring or agreeing to procure subscription for any of the Equity Shares since 
inception of the Company. 
 
CAPITAL ISSUE DURING THE LAST THREE YEARS 
 
Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited and its Group Companies have not made any capital issue viz. initial public offering, 
rights issue or composite issue during the last three years. 
 
PREVIOUS PUBLIC OR RIGHTS ISSUE 
 
There have been no public or rights issue by our Company during the last five years. 
 
PREVIOUS ISSUES OF EQUITY SHARES OTHERWISE THAN FOR CASH 
 
Except as stated in the section titled “Capital Structure” on page 34 of this Prospectus, we have not made any 
previous issues of shares for consideration otherwise than for cash. 
 
PROMISE VIS-À-VIS PERFORMANCE  
 
Our Company has not made any public or rights issue since its inception. 
 
PARTICULARS IN REGARD TO OUR COMPANY AND OTHER LISTED COMPANIES UNDER THE SAME MANAGEMENT 
WITHIN THE MEANING OF SECTION 370(1) (B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 / SECTION 186 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 WHICH MADE ANY CAPITAL ISSUE DURING THE LAST THREE YEARS  
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There are no listed companies under the same management within the meaning of Section 370(1)(b) of the 
Companies Act, 1956 / Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 that made any capital issue viz. initial public 
offering, rights issue or composite issue during the last three years. 
 
OUTSTANDING DEBENTURES OR BONDS AND REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS 
 
There are no outstanding debentures or bonds or redeemable preference shares and other instruments issued by 
the Company as on the date of this Prospectus. 
 
STOCK MARKET DATA FOR OUR EQUITY SHARES 
 
This being an Initial Public Offering of the Equity Shares of our Company, the Equity Shares are not listed on any 
stock exchange. 
 
INVESTOR GRIEVANCES AND REDRESSAL SYSTEM 
 
The Company has appointed Cameo Corporate Services Limited as the Registrar to the Issue, to handle the 
investor grievances in co-ordination with the Compliance Officer of the Company. All grievances relating to the 
present Issue may be addressed to the Registrar with a copy to the Compliance Officer, giving full details such as 
name, address of the applicant, number of Equity Shares applied for, amount paid on application and name of 
bank and branch. The Company would monitor the work of the Registrar to ensure that the investor grievances are 
settled expeditiously and satisfactorily. 
 
The Registrar to the Issue, namely, Cameo Corporate Services Limited, will handle investor’s grievances pertaining 
to the Issue. A fortnightly status report of the complaints received and redressed by them would be forwarded to 
the Company. The Company would also be co-coordinating with the Registrar to the Issue in attending to the 
grievances to the investor. The Company assures that the Board of Directors in respect of the complaints, if any, 
to be received shall adhere to the following schedules: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Nature of Complaint Time Table 

1. Non-receipt of refund Within 7 days of receipt of complaint subject 
to production of satisfactory evidence  

2. Non receipt of share certificate/Demat 
Credit 

Within 7 days of receipt of complaint subject 
to production of satisfactory evidence  

3. Any other complaint in relation to  
Public Issue 

Within 7 days of receipt of complaint with all 
relevant details. 

 
Redressal of investors’ grievance is given top priority by the Company. The Committee oversees redressal of 
complaints of shareholders/investors and other important investor related matters. The Company has adequate 
arrangements for redressal of investor complaints as follows: 
 
Share transfer/ dematerialization/ rematerialization are handled by professionally managed Registrar and 
Transfer Agent, appointed by the Company in terms of SEBI’s direction for appointment of Common Agency for 
physical as well as demat shares. The Registrars are constantly monitored and supported by qualified and 
experienced personnel of the Company. 
 
We have appointed Ms. Ritika Agarwal as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer and he may be contacted in 
case of any pre-issue or post-issue problems. He can be contacted at the following address: 
 
Ms. Ritika Agarwal,  
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer;  
Unit No.11, Ground Floor,  
Town Centre ,   
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Andheri Kurla Road,   
Marol, Andheri (East),  
Mumbai-400 059  
Tel: 91-22- 4005 1526 
Email: instituteofurology@gmail.com  
 
CHANGES IN AUDITORS 
 
There has been no change in the auditors of our Company for the last three years. 
 
CAPITALIZATION OF RESERVES OR PROFITS DURING LAST FIVE (5) YEARS 
 
Our Company has not capitalized any reserve during last five (5) years except the fact that we have allotted 
7,90,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 as bonus in the ratio of 79:1 to our existing Equity shareholders 
pursuant to a Board resolution dated 31st January, 2015 by capitalization of free reserves. 
 
REVALUATION OF ASSETS DURING THE LAST FIVE (5) YEARS 
 
Our Company has not revalued its assets during the last five (5) years. 
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SECTION VII 
 

ISSUE RELATED INFORMATION 
  
TERMS OF THE ISSUE 
 
The Equity Shares being offered are subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009 
our Memorandum and Articles of Association, the terms of the Prospectus, Application Form, the Revision Form, 
the Confirmation of Allocation Note and other terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the allotment 
advices and other documents/certificates that may be executed in respect of the Issue. The Equity Shares shall 
also be subject to laws as applicable, guidelines, notifications and regulations relating to the issue of capital and 
listing and trading of securities issued from time to time by SEBI, the Government of India, the Stock Exchanges, 
the RBI, RoC and/or other authorities, as in force on the date of the Issue and to the extent applicable. 
 
RANKING OF EQUITY SHARES 
 
The Equity Shares being offered shall be subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, our Memorandum and 
Articles of Association and shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the existing Equity Shares including in respect 
of the rights to receive dividends and other corporate benefits, if any, declared by us after the date of Allotment. 
For further details, please refer to the section titled “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association of the 
Company” on page 162 of this Prospectus. 
 
AUTHORITY FOR THE PRESENT ISSUE 
 
The Issue has been authorized by a resolution of the Board passed at their meeting held on 15th March, 2015  
subject to the approval of shareholders through a special resolution to be passed pursuant to Section 62(1)(c) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. The shareholders have authorized the Issue by a special resolution in accordance with 
Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 passed at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 
19th March, 2015. 
 
TERMS OF THE ISSUE  
 
The Equity Shares being issued are subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, the Memorandum and Articles, 
the terms of this Prospectus, Application Form, the Revision Form, the Confirmation of Allocation Note (“CAN”) 
and other terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the Allotment advices and other documents/ 
certificates that may be executed in respect of the Issue. The Equity Shares shall also be subject to laws, 
guidelines, notifications and regulations relating to the issue of capital and listing of securities issued from time to 
time by SEBI, the Government of India, SME platform of BSE, ROC, RBI and/or other authorities, as in force on the 
date of the Issue and to the extent applicable. 
 
MODE OF PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND 
 
The declaration and payment of dividend will be as per the provisions of Companies Act and recommended by the 
Board of Directors and the shareholders at their discretion and will depend on a number of factors, including but 
not limited to earnings, capital requirements and overall financial condition of our Company. We shall pay 
dividends in cash and as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. For further details, please refer to the section 
titled “Dividend Policy” on page 103 of this Prospectus. 
 
FACE VALUE AND ISSUE PRICE 
 
The Equity Shares having a Face Value of Rs. 10/- each are being offered in terms of this Prospectus at the price 
of Rs. 80/- per Equity Share. The Issue Price is determined by our Company in consultation with the Lead Manager 
and is justified under the section titled “Basis of Issue Price” on page 48 of this Prospectus. At any given point of 
time there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares of our Company, subject to applicable laws. 
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RIGHTS OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS 
 
Subject to applicable laws, the equity shareholders shall have the following rights: 
 
• Right to receive dividend, if declared; 
• Right to attend general meetings and exercise voting powers, unless prohibited by law; 
• Right to vote on a poll either in person or by proxy; 
• Right to receive annual reports and notices to members; 
• Right to receive offers for rights shares and be allotted bonus shares, if announced; 
• Right to receive surplus on liquidation; 
• Right of free transferability; and 
• Such other rights, as may be available to a shareholder of a listed public company under the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. 
 
MINIMUM APPLICATION VALUE; MARKET LOT AND TRADING LOT 
 
As per the provisions of the Depositories Act, 1996, the shares of a body corporate can be in dematerialized form 
i.e. not in the form of physical certificates but be fungible and be represented by the statement issued through 
electronic mode. 
 
The investors will have only option to receive the Equity Shares only in dematerialized form. 
 
The trading of the Equity Shares will happen in the minimum contract size of 1,600 Equity Shares and the same 
may be modified by BSE from time to time by giving prior notice to investors at large. 
 
Allocation and allotment of Equity Shares through this Offer will be done in multiples of 1,600 Equity Share 
subject to a minimum allotment of 1,600 Equity Shares to the successful applicants. 
 
MINIMUM NUMBER OF ALLOTTEES 
 
The minimum number of Allottees in this Issue shall be 50 shareholders. In case the minimum number of 
prospective Allottees is less than 50, no allotment will be made pursuant to this Issue and the monies collected 
shall be refunded within 15 days of closure of Issue. 
 
JOINT HOLDERS 
 
Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any Equity Shares, they will be deemed to hold such 
Equity Shares as joint-holders with benefits of survivorship. 
 
NOMINATION FACILITY TO INVESTOR 
 
In accordance with Section 72 of the Companies Act, the sole or first applicant, along with other joint applicant, 
may nominate any one person in whom, in the event of the death of sole applicant or in case of joint applicant, 
death of all the applicants, as the case may be, the Equity Shares allotted, if any, shall vest. A person, being a 
nominee, entitled to the Equity Shares by reason of the death of the original holder(s), shall in accordance with 
Section 72 of the Companies Act, be entitled to the same advantages to which he or she would be entitled if he or 
she were the registered holder of the Equity Share(s). Where the nominee is a minor, the holder(s) may make a 
nomination to appoint, in the prescribed manner, any person to become entitled to Equity Share(s) in the event of 
his or her death during the minority. A nomination shall stand rescinded upon a sale of equity share(s) by the 
person nominating. A buyer will be entitled to make a fresh nomination in the manner prescribed. Fresh 
nomination can be made only on the prescribed form available on request at the Registered Office of our 
Company or to the Registrar and Transfer Agents of our Company. 
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In accordance with Section 72 of the Companies Act, any Person who becomes a nominee by virtue of Section 72  
of the Companies Act, shall upon the production of such evidence as may be required by the Board, elect either: 
 

• to register himself or herself as the holder of the Equity Shares; or 
•  to make such transfer of the Equity Shares, as the deceased holder could have made. 

 
Further, the Board may at any time give notice requiring any nominee to choose either to be registered himself or 
herself or to transfer the Equity Shares, and if the notice is not complied with within a period of ninety days, the 
Board may thereafter withhold payment of all dividends, bonuses or other moneys payable in respect of the Equity 
Shares, until the requirements of the notice have been complied with. 
 
Since the allotment of Equity Shares in the Issue will be made only in dematerialized form, there is no need to 
make a separate nomination with us. Nominations registered with the respective depository participant of the 
applicant would prevail. If the investors require changing the nomination, they are requested to inform their 
respective depository participant. 
 
MINIMUM SUBSCRIPTION 
 
This Issue is not restricted to any minimum subscription level.  
 
This Issue is 100% underwritten. If the Issuer does not receive the subscription of 100% of the Issue through this 
offer document including devolvement of Underwriters within sixty days from the date of closure of the Issue, the 
Issuer shall forthwith refund the entire subscription amount received. If there is a delay beyond eight days after 
the Issuer becomes liable to pay the amount, the Issuer shall pay interest prescribed under section 40 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
ARRANGEMENTS FOR DISPOSAL OF ODD LOTS 
 
The trading of the Equity Shares will happen in the minimum contract size of 1,600 shares. However, the Market 
Maker shall buy the entire shareholding of a shareholder in one lot, where value of such shareholding is less than 
the minimum contract size allowed for trading on the SME platform of BSE. 
 
RESTRICTIONS, IF ANY, ON TRANSFER AND TRANSMISSION OF SHARES OR DEBENTURES AND ON THEIR 
CONSOLIDATION OR SPLITTING 
 
For a detailed description in respect of restrictions, if any, on transfer and transmission of shares and on their 
consolidation / splitting, please refer to the section titled “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association of the 
company” on Page 162 of this Prospectus. 
 
OPTION TO RECEIVE EQUITY SHARES IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM 
 
Allotment of Equity Shares in the Issue will be made only in dematerialized form. 
 
MIGRATION TO MAIN BOARD 
 
Our Company may migrate to the main board of BSE from SME platform of BSE on a later date subject to the 
following: 
 
a) If the Paid up Capital of the Company is likely to increase above Rs. 25 crores by virtue of any further issue of 
capital by way of rights, preferential issue, bonus issue etc (which has been approved by a special resolution 
through postal ballot wherein the votes cast by the shareholders other than the Promoters in favour of the 
proposal amount to at least two times the number of votes cast by shareholders other than Promoter shareholders 
against the proposal and for which the Company has obtained in-principal approval from the main board), we shall 
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have to apply to BSE for listing our shares on its main board subject to the fulfillment of the eligibility criteria for 
listing of specified securities laid down by the main board. 
 

OR 
 
b) If the Paid up Capital of the company is more than 10 crores but below Rs. 25 crores, we may still apply for 
migration to the main board if the same has been approved by a special resolution through postal ballot wherein 
the votes cast by the shareholders other than the promoters in favour of the proposal amount to at least two 
times the number of votes cast by shareholders other than promoter shareholders against the proposal. 
 
MARKET MAKING 
 
The shares offered though this Issue are proposed to be listed on the SME Platform of BSE, wherein the Lead 
Manager to this Issue shall ensure compulsory Market Making through the registered Market Makers of the SME 
platform for a minimum period of three years from the date of listing of shares offered though this Prospectus. 
For further details of the agreement entered into between the Company, the Lead Manager and the Market Maker 
please refer to “General Information – Details of the Market Making Arrangements for this Issue” on page 31 of 
this Prospectus. 
 
NEW FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
The Issuer Company is not issuing any new financial instruments through this Issue. 
 
WITHDRAWAL OF THE ISSUE 
 
The Company, in consultation with the LM, reserves the right not to proceed with the Issue at any time before the 
Issue Opening Date, without assigning any reason thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issue is also subject 
to obtaining the following: 
 
(i) The final listing and trading approvals of BSE for listing of Equity Shares offered through this issue on its 

SME Platform, which the Company shall apply for after Allotment and 
 
(ii) The final RoC approval of the Prospectus after it is filed with the RoC. In case, the Company wishes to 

withdraw the Issue after Issue Opening but before allotment, the Company will give public notice giving 
reasons for withdrawal of Issue. The public notice will appear in two widely circulated national 
newspapers (One each in English and Hindi) and one in regional newspaper. 

 
JURISDICTION 
 
Exclusive jurisdiction for the purpose of this Issue is with the competent courts / authorities in Mumbai, India.  
 
The Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or any state securities laws in 
the United States, and may not be offered or sold within the United States, except pursuant to an exemption from 
or in a transaction not subject to, registration requirements of the Securities Act. Accordingly, the Equity Shares 
are only being offered or sold outside the United States in compliance with Regulations under the Securities Act 
and the applicable laws of the jurisdictions where those offers and sales occur.  
 
The Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered, listed or otherwise qualified in any other jurisdiction 
outside India and may not be offered or sold, and applications may not be made by persons in any such 
jurisdiction, except in compliance with the applicable laws of such jurisdiction. 
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ISSUE STRUCTURE 
 
This Issue is being made in terms of Regulation 106(M)(1) of Chapter X-B of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009, as 
amended from time to time, whereby, An issuer whose post-issue face value capital do not exceed ten crores 
rupees shall issue shares to the public and propose to list the same on the Small and Medium Enterprise Exchange 
(“SME Exchange”, in this case being the SME Platform of BSE). For further details regarding the salient features 
and terms of such an Issue please refer the section titled “Terms of the Issue” and “Issue Procedure” on page 138 
and 144 of this Prospectus. 
 
Following is the Issue structure: 
 
Public Issue of 3,04,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each (the “Equity Shares”) for cash at a price of Rs. 80/- per 
Equity Share aggregating to Rs. 243.20 Lacs (“the Issue”) by Tejnaksh Healthcare Limited (“THL” or the 
“Company” or the “Issuer”). 
 
The Issue comprises reservation of 16,000 Equity Shares for subscription by the designated Market Maker (“the 
Market Maker Reservation Portion”) and Net Issue to Public of 2,88,000 Equity Shares (“the Net Issue”).  
 

Particulars of the Issue Net Issue to Public* Market Maker Reservation 
Portion 

Number of Equity Shares 
available for allocation 

2,88,000 Equity Shares 16,000 Equity Shares 

Percentage of Issue Size 
available for allocation 

94.74% of the Issue size  5.26% of the Issue size  

Basis of Allotment Proportionate subject to minimum 
allotment of 1,600 Equity Shares 
and further allotment in multiples 
of 1,600 Equity Shares each. 
 
For further details please refer to 
the section titled “Issue Procedure 
– Basis of Allotment” on page 151 
of this Prospectus. 

Firm Allotment 
 

Mode of Application For QIB and NII Applicants the 
application must be made 
compulsorily through the ASBA 
Process. The Retail Individual 
Applicant may apply through the 
ASBA or the Physical Form. 

Through ASBA Process Only 
 

Minimum Application 
Size 
 

For QIB and NII: 
Such number of Equity Shares in 
multiples of 1,600 Equity Shares 
such that the Application Value 
exceeds Rs.  2,00,000/- 
 
For Retail Individuals: 
1,600 Equity Shares 

16,000 Equity Shares 

Maximum Application 
Size 
 

For QIB and NII: 
Such number of equity shares in 
multiples of 1,600 Equity Shares 
such that the Application Size 
does not exceed 2,88,000 
 Shares. 
For Retail Individuals: 

16,000 Equity Shares 
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Particulars of the Issue Net Issue to Public* Market Maker Reservation 
Portion 

Such number of Equity Shares in 
multiples of 1,600 Equity Shares 
such that the Application Value 
does not exceed Rs.  2,00,000/-. 

Mode of Allotment 
 

Dematerialized Form only Dematerialized Form Only 
 

Trading Lot 
 

1,600 Equity Shares 
 

1,600 Equity Shares, 
However the Market 
Makers may accept odd 
lots if any in the market as 
required under the SEBI 
(ICDR) Regulations, 2009. 

Terms of Payment 
 

The entire Application Amount will be payable at the time of 
submission of the Application Form. 

 
*50 % of the shares offered are reserved for applications below Rs. 2 Lacs and the balance for higher amount 
applications. 
 
WITHDRAWAL OF THE ISSUE 
 
The Company, in consultation with the LM, reserves the right not to proceed with the Issue at any time before the 
Issue Opening Date, without assigning any reason thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issue is also subject 
to obtaining the following: 
 

1. The final listing and trading approvals of BSE for listing of Equity Shares offered through this issue on its 
SME Platform, which the Company shall apply for after Allotment and 

 
2. The final RoC approval of the Prospectus after it is filed with the RoC. In case, the Company wishes to 

withdraw the Issue after Issue Opening but before allotment, the Company will give public notice giving 
reasons for withdrawal of Issue. The public notice will appear in two widely circulated national 
newspapers (One each in English and Hindi) and one in regional newspaper. 

 
The LM, through the Registrar to the Issue, will instruct the SCSBs to unblock the ASBA Accounts within one 
Working Day from the day of receipt of such instruction. The notice of withdrawal will be issued in the same 
newspapers where the pre-Issue advertisements have appeared and the Stock Exchange will also be informed 
promptly.  
 
If our Company withdraws the Issue after the Issue Closing Date and subsequently decides to undertake a public 
offering of Equity Shares, our Company will file a fresh offer document with the stock exchange where the Equity 
Shares may be proposed to be listed. 
 
ISSUE OPENING DATE 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2015 
ISSUE CLOSING DATE 12TH OCTOBER, 2015 
 
Applications and any revisions to the same will be accepted only between 10.00 a.m. and 5.00 p.m. (Indian 
Standard Time) during the Issue Period at the Application Centers mentioned in the Application Form, or in the 
case of ASBA Applicants, at the Designated Bank Branches except that on the Issue Closing Date applications will 
be accepted only between 10.00 a.m. and 3.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time). Applications will be accepted only on 
Working Days, i.e., Monday to Friday (excluding any public holiday).  
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ISSUE PROCEDURE 
FIXED PRICE ISSUE PROCEDURE 
 
The Issue is being made under Regulation 106(M) (1) of Chapter XB of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 via Fixed Price Process. 
 
Applicants are required to submit their Applications to the Selected Branches / Offices of the Escrow Bankers to 
the Issue who shall duly submit to them the Registrar of the Issue. In case of QIB Applicants, the Company in 
consultation with the Lead Manager may reject Applications at the time of acceptance of Application Form 
provided that the reasons for such rejection shall be provided to such Applicant in writing. 
 
In case of Non Institutional Applicants and Retail Individual Applicants, our Company would have a right to reject 
the Applications only on technical grounds. 
 
As per Section 29(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, allotment of Equity Shares will be made only in 
dematerialization form. As per SEBI‘s circular RMB (compendium) series circular no. 2 (1999-2000) dated February 
16, 2000, it has been decided by the SEBI that trading in securities of companies making an initial public offer 
shall be in dematerialization form only. The Equity Shares on allotment will be traded only on the 
dematerialization segment of the SME Platform of BSE.     
 
APPLICATION FORM 
 
Applicants shall only use the specified Application Form for the purpose of making an Application in terms of this 
Prospectus. Upon completing and submitting the Application Form to the Bankers, the Applicant is deemed to 
have authorized our Company to make the necessary changes in the Prospectus and the Application Form as would 
be required for filing the Prospectus with the RoC and as would be required by RoC after such filing, without prior 
or subsequent notice of such changes to the Applicant. 
 
ASBA Applicants shall submit an Application Form either in physical or electronic form to the SCSB’s authorizing 
blocking funds that are available in the bank account specified in the Application Form used by ASBA applicants. 
Upon completing and submitting the Application Form for ASBA Applicants to the SCSB, the ASBA Applicant is 
deemed to have authorized our Company to make the necessary changes in the Prospectus and the ASBA as would 
be required for filing the Prospectus with the RoC and as would be required by RoC after such filing, without prior 
or subsequent notice of such changes to the ASBA Applicant. 
 
The prescribed color of the Application Form for various categories is as follows: 
 
Category Color 

of Application Form 
Resident Indians and Eligible NRIs applying on a non-repatriation basis  White 
Non-Residents and Eligible NRIs applying on a repatriation basis  Blue 
 
In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009 in public issues w.e.f. May 1, 2010 all the investors can apply 
through ASBA process and w.e.f. May 02, 2011, the Non-Institutional applicants and the QIB Applicants have to 
compulsorily apply through the ASBA Process. 
 
WHO CAN APPLY? 
 
Persons eligible to invest under all applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines; 
 
Indian nationals resident in India who are not incompetent to contract in single or joint names (not more than 
three) or in the names of minors as natural/legal guardian; 
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Hindu Undivided Families or HUFs, in the individual name of the Karta. The applicant should specify that the 
application is being made in the name of the HUF in the Application Form as follows: “Name of Sole or First 
applicant: XYZ Hindu Undivided Family applying through XYZ, where XYZ is the name of the Karta”. Applications 
by HUFs would be considered at par with those from individuals; 
 
Companies, corporate bodies and societies registered under the applicable laws in India and authorized to invest 
in the Equity Shares under their respective constitutional and charter documents; 
 
Mutual Funds registered with SEBI; 
 
Eligible NRIs on a repatriation basis or on a non-repatriation basis, subject to applicable laws. NRIs other than 
Eligible NRIs are not eligible to participate in this Issue; 
 
Indian Financial Institutions, scheduled commercial banks, regional rural banks, co-operative banks (subject to RBI 
permission, and the SEBI Regulations and other laws, as applicable); 
 
FIIs and sub-accounts registered with SEBI, other than a sub-account which is a foreign corporate or a foreign 
individual under the QIB Portion; 
 
Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) registered in India and authorized to invest in equity shares; 
 
Sub-accounts of FIIs registered with SEBI, which are foreign corporate or foreign individuals only under the Non-
Institutional applicant’s category; 
 
Venture Capital Funds registered with SEBI; 
 
Foreign Venture Capital Investors registered with SEBI; 
 
State Industrial Development Corporations; 
 
Trusts/societies registered under the Societies Registration Act, 1860, as amended, or under any other law 
relating to Trusts and who are authorized under their constitution to hold and invest in equity shares; 
 
Scientific and/or Industrial Research Organizations authorized to invest in equity shares; 
 
Insurance Companies registered with Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority, India; 
 
Provident Funds with minimum corpus of Rs. 25 Crores and who are authorized under their constitution to hold 
and invest in equity shares; 
 
Pension Funds with minimum corpus of Rs. 25 Crores and who are authorized under their constitution to hold and 
invest in equity shares; 
 
Multilateral and Bilateral Development Financial Institutions;  
 
National Investment Fund set up by resolution no. F. No. 2/3/2005-DDII dated November 23, 2005 of Government 
of India published in the Gazette of India;  
 
Insurance funds set up and managed by army, navy or air force of the Union of India 
 
As per the existing regulations, OCBs cannot participate in this Issue. 
 
The information below is given for the benefit of the applicants. Our Company and the Lead Manager do not 
accept responsibility for the completeness and accuracy of the information stated. Our Company and the Lead 



 
TEJNAKSH HEALTHCARE LIMITED 

 

146 
 

Manager is not liable for any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may 
occur after the date of the Prospectus. Applicants are advised to make their independent investigations and 
ensure that the number of Equity Shares applied for does not exceed the limits prescribed under laws or 
regulations. 
 
PARTICIPATION BY ASSOCIATES OF LM  
 
The LM shall not be entitled to subscribe to this Issue in any manner except towards fulfilling their underwriting 
obligations. However, associates and affiliates of the LM may subscribe for Equity Shares in the Issue, either in the 
QIB Portion and Non-Institutional Portion where the allotment is on a proportionate basis.  
 
AVAILABILITY OF PROSPECTUS AND APPLICATION FORMS 
 
The Memorandum Form 2A containing the salient features of the Prospectus together with the Application Forms 
and copies of the Prospectus may be obtained from the Registered Office of our Company, Lead Manager to the 
Issue, Registrar to the Issue and the collection Centers of the Bankers to the Issue, as mentioned in the 
Application Form. The application forms may also be downloaded from the website of BSE Limited i.e. 
www.bseindia.com     
 
OPTION TO SUBSCRIBE IN THE ISSUE 
 

a. Investors will have the only option of getting the allotment of specified securities in dematerialization form. 
b. The equity shares, on allotment, shall be traded on Stock Exchange in demat segment only. 
c. A single application from any investor shall not exceed the investment limit/minimum number of specified 

securities that can be held by him/her/it under the relevant regulations/statutory guidelines. 
 
APPLICATION BY MUTUAL FUNDS 
 
As per the current regulations, the following restrictions are applicable for investments by mutual funds: 
 
No mutual fund scheme shall invest more than 10% of its net asset value in the Equity Shares or equity related 
instruments of any Company provided that the limit of 10% shall not be applicable for investments in index funds 
or sector or industry specific funds. No mutual fund under all its schemes should own more than 10% of any 
Company’s paid up share capital carrying voting rights. 
 
In case of a Mutual Fund, a separate Application can be made in respect of each scheme of the Mutual Fund 
registered with SEBI and such Applications in respect of more than one scheme of the Mutual Fund will not be 
treated as multiple Applications provided that the Applications clearly indicate the scheme concerned for which 
the Application has been made. 
 
APPLICATIONS BY ELIGIBLE NRIS/FII’S ON REPATRIATION BASIS- 
 
Application Forms have been made available for Eligible NRIs at our registered Office. 
 
 Eligible NRI applicants may please note that only such applications as are accompanied by payment in free 
foreign exchange shall be considered for Allotment. The Eligible NRIs who intend to make payment through Non 
Resident Ordinary (NRO) accounts shall use the form meant for Resident Indians. 
 
Under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) general permission is granted to the companies vide 
notification no. FEMA/20/2000 RB dated 03/05/2000 to issue securities to NRI's subject to the terms and 
conditions stipulated therein. The Companies are required to file the declaration in the prescribed form to the 
concerned Regional Office of RBI within 30 days from the date of issue of shares for allotment to NRI's on 
repatriation basis. 
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Allotment of Equity Shares to Non Resident Indians shall be subject to the prevailing Reserve Bank of India 
Guidelines. Sale proceeds of such investments in Equity Shares will be allowed to be repatriated along with the 
income thereon subject to permission of the RBI and subject to the Indian Tax Laws and regulations and any other 
applicable laws. 
 
The Company does not require approvals from FIPB or RBI for the Transfer of Equity Shares in the issue to eligible 
NRI’s, FII’s, Foreign Venture Capital Investors registered with SEBI and multilateral and bilateral development 
financial institutions. 
 
AS PER THE CURRENT REGULATIONS, THE FOLLOWING RESTRICTIONS ARE APPLICABLE FOR INVESTMENTS BY 
FIIS: 
 

• The issue of Equity Shares to a single FII should not exceed 10% of our post-Issue paid- up capital. In 
respect of an FII investing in the Equity Shares on behalf of its sub-accounts, the investment on behalf of 
each sub-account shall not exceed 10% of our total issued capital of the Company or 5% of the total issued 
capital, in case such sub-account is a foreign corporate or an individual. In accordance with the foreign 
investment limits applicable to our Company, such investment must be made out of funds raised or 
collected or brought from outside India through normal banking channels and the investment must not 
exceed the overall ceiling specified for FIIs. Under the portfolio investment scheme, the aggregate issue 
of equity shares to FIIs and their sub-accounts should not exceed 24% of post-issue paid-up equity capital 
of a company. However, this limit can be increased to the permitted sectoral cap/statutory limit, as 
applicable to our Company after obtaining approval of its Board of Directors followed by a special 
resolution to that effect by its shareholders in their general meeting. As of the date of the Prospectus, no 
such resolution has been recommended to the shareholders of our Company for adoption. 
 

• Subject to compliance with all applicable Indian laws, rules, regulations guidelines and approvals in terms 
of Regulation 15A(1) of the SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investors) Regulations 1995, as amended, by the 
SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investors)(Amendment) Regulations, 2008 (“SEBI FII Regulations”), an FII, as 
defined in the SEBI FII Regulations, or its sub account may issue, deal or hold, off shore derivative 
instruments (defined under the SEBI FII Regulations, as any instrument, by whatever name called, which is 
issued overseas by a foreign institutional investor against securities held by it that are listed or proposed 
to be listed on any recognized stock exchange in India, as its underlying) directly or indirectly, only in the 
event (i) such offshore derivative instruments are issued only to persons who are regulated by an 
appropriate foreign regulatory authority; and (ii) such offshore derivative instruments are issued after 
compliance with ‘know your client’ norms. The FII or sub-account is also required to ensure that no 
further issue or transfer of any offshore derivative instrument issued by it is made to any persons that are 
not regulated by an appropriate foreign regulatory authority as defined under the SEBI FII Regulations. 
Associates and affiliates of the underwriters including the LM that are FIIs may issue offshore derivative 
instruments against Equity Shares Allotted to them in the Issue. 

 
APPLICATIONS BY SEBI REGISTERED VENTURE CAPITAL FUNDS AND FOREIGN VENTURE CAPITAL INVESTORS 
 
As per the current regulations, the following restrictions are applicable for SEBI registered venture capital funds 
and foreign venture capital investors: 
 

• The SEBI (Venture Capital) Regulations, 1996 and the SEBI (Foreign Venture Capital Investor) Regulations, 
2000 prescribe investment restrictions on venture capital funds and foreign venture capital investors 
registered with SEBI. Accordingly, the holding by any individual venture capital fund registered with SEBI 
in one company should not exceed 25% of the corpus of the venture capital fund; a Foreign Venture 
Capital Investor can invest its entire funds committed for investments into India in one company. Further, 
Venture Capital Funds and Foreign Venture Capital Investor can invest only up to 33.33% of the funds 
available for investment by way of subscription to an Initial Public Offer. 
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APPLICATIONS BY LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIPS 
 
In case of applications made by limited liability partnerships registered under the Limited Liability Partnership 
Act, 2008, a certified copy of certificate of registration issued under the Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008, 
must be attached to the Application Form. Failing this, our Company reserves the right to reject any application, 
without assigning any reason thereof. 
 
APPLICATIONS BY INSURANCE COMPANIES 
 
In case of applications made by insurance companies registered with the IRDA, a certified copy of certificate of 
registration issued by IRDA must be attached to the Application Form. Failing this, our Company reserves the right 
to reject any application, without assigning any reason thereof. 
 
The exposure norms for insurers, prescribed under the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority 
(Investment) Regulations, 2000, as amended (the "IRDA Investment Regulations"), are broadly set forth below: 
 
(a) equity shares of a company: the least of 10% of the investee company‘s subscribed capital (face value) or 10% 
of the respective fund in case of life insurer or 10% of investment assets in case of general insurer or reinsurer; 
 
(b) the entire group of the investee company: the least of 10% of the respective fund in case of a life insurer or 
10% of investment assets in case of a general insurer or reinsurer (25% in case of ULIPS); and 
 
(c) The industry sector in which the investee company operates: 10% of the insurer‘s total investment exposure to 
the industry sector (25% in case of ULIPS). 
 
In addition, the IRDA partially amended the exposure limits applicable to investments in public limited companies 
in the infrastructure and housing sectors, i.e. 26th December, 2008, providing, among other things, that the 
exposure of an insurer to an infrastructure company may be increased to not more than 20%, provided that in case 
of equity investment, a dividend of not less than 4% including bonus should have been declared for at least five 
preceding years. This limit of 20% would be combined for debt and equity taken together, without sub ceilings. 
 
Further, investments in equity including preference shares and the convertible part of debentures shall not 
exceed 50% of the exposure norms specified under the IRDA Investment Regulations. 
 
APPLICATION BY PROVIDENT FUNDS/ PENSION FUNDS 
 
In case of applications made by provident funds/pension funds, subject to applicable laws, with minimum corpus 
of Rs. 2,500 Lacs, a certified copy of certificate from a chartered accountant certifying the corpus of the 
provident fund/ pension fund must be attached to the Application Form. Failing this, our Company reserves the 
right to reject any application, without assigning any reason thereof. 
 
APPLICATION UNDER POWER OF ATTORNEY 
 
In case of applications made pursuant to a power of attorney by limited companies, corporate bodies, registered 
societies, Mutual Funds, insurance companies and provident funds with minimum corpus of Rs. 25 Crores (subject 
to applicable law) and pension funds with a minimum corpus of Rs. 25 Crores a certified copy of the power of 
attorney or the relevant resolution or authority, as the case may be, along with a certified copy of the 
memorandum of association and articles of association and/or bye laws must be lodged with the Application Form. 
Failing this, our Company reserves the right to accept or reject any application in whole or in part, in either case, 
without assigning any reason therefore.  
 
In addition to the above, certain additional documents are required to be submitted by the following entities: 
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(a). With respect to applications by Mutual Funds, a certified copy of their SEBI registration certificate must be 
lodged along with the Application Form. Failing this, our Company reserves the right to accept or reject any 
application, in whole or in part, in either case without assigning any reasons thereof. 
 
(b). With respect to applications by insurance companies registered with the Insurance Regulatory and 
Development Authority, in addition to the above, a certified copy of the certificate of registration issued by the 
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority must be lodged with the Application Form as applicable. Failing 
this, our Company reserves the right to accept or reject any application, in whole or in part, in either case 
without assigning any reasons thereof. 
 
(c). With respect to applications made by provident funds with minimum corpus of Rs. 25 Crores (subject to 
applicable law) and pension funds with a minimum corpus of Rs. 25 Crores, a certified copy of a certificate from a 
chartered accountant certifying the corpus of the provident fund/pension fund must be lodged along with the 
Application Form . Failing this, our Company reserves the right to accept or reject such application, in whole or in 
part, in either case without assigning any reasons thereof. 
 
Our Company in its absolute discretion, reserves the right to relax the above condition of simultaneous lodging of 
the power of attorney along with the Application Form , subject to such terms and conditions that our Company , 
the lead manager may deem fit.  
 
Our Company, in its absolute discretion, reserves the right to permit the holder of the power of attorney to 
request the Registrar to the Issue that, for the purpose of printing particulars on the refund order and mailing of 
the Allotment Advice / CANs / refund orders / letters notifying the unblocking of the bank accounts of ASBA 
applicants, the Demographic Details given on the Application Form should be used (and not those obtained from 
the Depository of the application). In such cases, the Registrar to the Issue shall use Demographic Details as given 
on the Application Form instead of those obtained from the Depositories. 
 
The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants. The Company and the LM are not liable for any 
amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of this 
Prospectus. Applicants are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure that the number of Equity 
Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under laws or regulations. 
 
MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM APPLICATION SIZE 
 
(a) For Retail Individual Applicants 
 
The Application must be for a minimum of 1,600 Equity Shares and in multiples of 1,600 Equity Share thereafter, 
so as to ensure that the Application Price payable by the Applicant does not exceed Rs.  2,00,000. In case of 
revision of Applications, the Retail Individual Applicants have to ensure that the Application Price does not exceed 
Rs. 2,00,000. 
 
(b) For Other Applicants (Non Institutional Applicants and QIBs): 
 
The Application must be for a minimum of such number of Equity Shares such that the Application Amount 
exceeds Rs. 200,000 and in multiples of 1,600 Equity Shares thereafter. An Application cannot be submitted for 
more than the Issue Size. However, the maximum Application by a QIB investor should not exceed the investment 
limits prescribed for them by applicable laws. Under existing SEBI Regulations, a QIB Applicant cannot withdraw 
its Application after the Issue Closing Date and is required to pay 100% QIB Margin upon submission of Application. 
 
In case of revision in Applications, the Non Institutional Applicants, who are individuals, have to ensure that the 
Application Amount is greater than Rs. 2,00,000 for being considered for allocation in the Non Institutional 
Portion. 
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Applicants are advised to ensure that any single Application from them does not exceed the investment limits 
or maximum number of Equity Shares that can be held by them under applicable law or regulation or as 
specified in this Prospectus. 
 
INFORMATION FOR THE APPLICANTS: 
 

a) Our Company will file the Prospectus with the RoC at least 3 (three) days before the Issue Opening Date. 
b) The LM will circulate copies of the Prospectus along with the Application Form to potential investors. 
c) Any investor (who is eligible to invest in our Equity Shares) who would like to obtain the Prospectus and/ 

or the Application Form can obtain the same from our Registered Office or from the registered office of 
the LM. 

d) Applicants who are interested in subscribing for the Equity Shares should approach the LM or their 
authorized agent(s) to register their Applications. 

e) Applications made in the Name of Minors and/or their nominees shall not be accepted. 
f) Applicants are requested to mention the application form number on the reverse of the instrument to 

avoid misuse of instrument submitted along with the application for shares. Applicants are advised in their 
own interest, to indicate the name of the bank and the savings or current a/c no in the application form. 
In case of refund, the refund order will indicate these details after the name of the payee. The refund 
order will be sent directly to the payee's address. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE APPLICATION FORM 
 
The Applications should be submitted on the prescribed Application Form and in BLOCK LETTERS in ENGLISH only 
in accordance with the instructions contained herein and in the Application Form. Applications not so made are 
liable to be rejected. ASBA Application Forms should bear the stamp of the SCSB’s. ASBA Application Forms, which 
do not bear the stamp of the SCSB, will be rejected. 
 
Applicants residing at places where the designated branches of the Banker to the Issue are not located may 
submit/mail their applications at their sole risk along with Demand Draft payable at Mumbai. 
 
APPLICANT’S DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT AND BANK DETAILS 
 
Please note that, providing bank account details in the space provided in the application form is mandatory 
and applications that do not contain such details are liable to be rejected. 
 
Applicants should note that on the basis of name of the Applicants, Depository Participant’s name, Depository 
Participant Identification number and Beneficiary Account Number provided by them in the Application Form, the 
Registrar to the Issue will obtain from the Depository the demographic details including address, Applicants bank 
account details, MICR code and occupation (hereinafter referred to as ‘Demographic Details’). These Bank 
Account details would be used for giving refunds to the Applicants. Hence, Applicants are advised to immediately 
update their Bank Account details as appearing on the records of the depository participant. Please note that 
failure to do so could result in delays in dispatch/ credit of refunds to Applicants at the Applicants sole risk and 
neither the LM or the Registrar or the Escrow Collection Banks or the SCSB nor the Company shall have any 
responsibility and undertake any liability for the same. Hence, Applicants should carefully fill in their Depository 
Account details in the Application Form. These Demographic Details would be used for all correspondence with 
the Applicants including mailing of the CANs / Allocation Advice and printing of Bank particulars on the refund 
orders or for refunds through electronic transfer of funds, as applicable. The Demographic Details given by 
Applicants in the Application Form would not be used for any other purpose by the Registrar to the Issue. By 
signing the Application Form, the Applicant would be deemed to have authorized the depositories to provide, 
upon request, to the Registrar to the Issue, the required Demographic Details as available on its records. 
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BASIS OF ALLOTMENT 
 
Allotment will be made in consultation with BSE Limited (The Designated Stock Exchange). In the event of 
oversubscription, the allotment will be made on a proportionate basis in marketable lots as set forth here: 
 
1. The total number of Shares to be allocated to each category as a whole shall be arrived at on a proportionate 
basis i.e. the total number of Shares applied for in that category multiplied by the inverse of the over subscription 
ratio (number of applicants in the category x number of Shares applied for). 
 
2. The number of Shares to be allocated to the successful applicants will be arrived at on a proportionate basis in 
marketable lots (i.e. Total number of Shares applied for into the inverse of the over subscription ratio). 
 
3. For applications where the proportionate allotment works out to less than 1,600 equity shares the allotment 
will be made as follows: 
 
a) Each successful applicant shall be allotted 1,600 equity shares; and 
b) The successful applicants out of the total applicants for that category shall be determined by the drawal of lots 
in such a manner that the total number of Shares allotted in that category is equal to the number of Shares 
worked out as per (2) above. 
  
4. If the proportionate allotment to an applicant works out to a number that is not a multiple of 1,600 equity 
shares, the number in excess of the multiple of 1,600 would be rounded off to the higher multiple of 1,600 if that 
number is 800 or higher. If that number is lower than 800, it would be rounded off to the lower multiple of 1,600. 
All Applicant in such categories would be Allotted Equity Shares arrived at after such rounding off.  
 
5. If the Shares allotted on a proportionate basis to any category is more than the Shares allotted to the 
applicants in that category, the balance available Shares for allocation shall be first adjusted against any 
category, where the allotted Shares are not sufficient for proportionate allotment to the successful applicants in 
that category, the balance Shares, if any, remaining after such adjustment will be added to the category 
comprising of applicants applying for the minimum number of Shares. If as a result of the process of rounding off 
to the lower nearest multiple of 1,600 equity shares, results in the actual allotment being higher than the shares 
offered, the final allotment may be higher at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, up to 110% of the size 
of the offer specified under the Capital Structure mentioned in this Prospectus. 
 
6. The above proportionate allotment of shares in an Issue that is oversubscribed shall be subject to the 
reservation for small individual applicants as described below: 
  

a) A minimum of 50% of the net offer of shares to the Public shall initially be made available for allotment to 
retail individual investors as the case may be. 

b) The balance net offer of shares to the public shall be made available for allotment to a) individual 
applicants other than retails individual investors and b) other investors, including Corporate Bodies/ 
Institutions irrespective of number of shares applied for. 

c) The unsubscribed portion of the net offer to any one of the categories specified in (a) or (b) shall/may be 
made available for allocation to applicants in the other category, if so required. 

d) As per Regulation 43 (4) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009 as amended, if the retail individual investor 
category is entitled to more than fifty per cent on proportionate basis, the retail individual investors shall 
be allocated that higher percentage. 

 
'Retail Individual Investor' means an investor who applies for shares of value of not more than Rs. 2,00,000/- 
Investors may note that in case of over subscription allotment shall be on proportionate basis and will be finalized 
in consultation with BSE. 
 



 
TEJNAKSH HEALTHCARE LIMITED 

 

152 
 

The Executive Director / Managing Director of BSE - the Designated Stock Exchange in addition to Lead Manager 
and Registrar to the Public Issue shall be responsible to ensure that the basis of allotment is finalized in a fair and 
proper manner in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009. 
 
REFUNDS 
 
In case of Applicants receiving refunds through electronic transfer of funds, delivery of refund orders/ allocation 
advice/ CANs may get delayed if the same once sent to the address obtained from the depositories are returned 
undelivered. In such an event, the address and other details given by the Applicant in the Application Form would 
be used only to ensure dispatch of refund orders. Please note that any such delay shall be at the Applicants sole 
risk and neither the Company, the Registrar, Escrow Collection Bank(s) nor the LM shall be liable to compensate 
the Applicant for any losses caused to the Applicant due to any such delay or liable to pay any interest for such 
delay. 
 
In case no corresponding record is available with the Depositories, which matches three parameters, namely, 
names of the Applicants (including the order of names of joint holders), the Depository Participant’s identity (DP 
ID) and the beneficiary’s identity, then such Applications are liable to be rejected. 
 
The Company in its absolute discretion, reserves the right to permit the holder of the power of attorney to 
request the Registrar that for the purpose of printing particulars on the refund order and mailing of the refund 
order/ CANs/ allocation advice/ refunds through electronic transfer of funds, the Demographic Details given on 
the Application Form should be used (and not those obtained from the Depository of the Applicant). In such cases, 
the Registrar shall use Demographic Details as given in the Application Form instead of those obtained from the 
depositories. 
 
Refunds, dividends and other distributions, if any, will be payable in Indian Rupees only and net of bank charges 
and/ or commission. In case of Applicants who remit money through Indian Rupee drafts purchased abroad, such 
payments in Indian Rupees will be converted into US Dollars or any other freely convertible currency as may be 
permitted by the RBI at the rate of exchange prevailing at the time of remittance and will be dispatched by 
registered post or if the Applicants so desire, will be credited to their NRE accounts, details of which should be 
furnished in the space provided for this purpose in the Application Form. The Company will not be responsible for 
loss, if any, incurred by the Applicant on account of conversion of foreign currency. 
 
As per the RBI regulations, OCBs are not permitted to participate in the Issue. 
 
There is no reservation for Non Residents, NRIs, FIIs and foreign venture capital funds and all Non Residents, 
NRI, FII and Foreign Venture Capital Funds applicants will be treated on the same basis with other categories 
for the purpose of allocation. 
 
TERMS OF PAYMENT / PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS 
 
The entire Issue Price of Rs. 80/- per share is payable on application. In case of allotment of lesser number of 
Equity Shares than the number applied, The Company shall refund the excess amount paid on Application to the 
Applicants. 
 
Payments should be made by cheque, or demand draft drawn on any Bank (including a Co operative Bank), which 
is situated at, and is a member of or sub member of the bankers’ clearing house located at the centre where the 
Application Form is submitted. Outstation cheques/ bank drafts drawn on banks not participating in the clearing 
process will not be accepted and applications accompanied by such cheques or bank drafts are liable to be 
rejected. 
 
Cash/ Stockinvest/ Money Orders/ Postal orders will not be accepted. 
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A separate Cheque or Bank Draft should accompany each application form. Applicants should write the Share 
Application Number on the back of the Cheque /Draft. Outstation Cheques will not be accepted and applications 
accompanied by such cheques drawn on outstation banks are liable for rejection. Money Orders / Postal Notes will 
not be accepted. 
 
Each Applicant shall draw a cheque or demand draft for the amount payable on the Application and/ or on 
allocation/ Allotment as per the following terms: 
 
1. The payment instruments for payment into the Escrow Account should be drawn in favour of: 
• Indian Public including eligible NRIs applying on non repatriation basis: “THL –Public Issue - R”. 
• In case of Non Resident Retail Applicants applying on repatriation basis: “THL –Public Issue - NR” 
 
2. In case of Application by NRIs applying on repatriation basis, the payments must be made through Indian Rupee 
drafts purchased abroad or cheques or bank drafts, for the amount payable on application remitted through 
normal banking channels or out of funds held in Non Resident External (NRE) Accounts or Foreign Currency Non 
Resident (FCNR) Accounts, maintained with banks authorized to deal in foreign exchange in India, along with 
documentary evidence in support of the remittance. Payment will not be accepted out of Non Resident Ordinary 
(NRO) Account of Non Resident Applicant applying on a repatriation basis. Payment by drafts should be 
accompanied by bank certificate confirming that the draft has been issued by debiting to NRE Account or FCNR 
Account. 
 
3. Where an Applicant has been allocated a lesser number of Equity Shares than the Applicant has applied for, the 
excess amount, if any, paid on Application, after adjustment towards the balance amount payable by the Pay In 
Date on the Equity Shares allocated will be refunded to the Applicant from the Refund Account. 
 
4. On the Designated Date and no later than 12 working days from the Issue Closing Date, the Escrow Collection 
Bank shall also refund all amounts payable to unsuccessful Applicants and also the excess amount paid on 
Application, if any, after adjusting for allocation / Allotment to the Applicants. 
 
PAYMENT BY STOCK INVEST 
 
In terms of the Reserve Bank of India Circular No. DBOD No. FSC BC 42/ 24.47.00/ 2003 04 dated November 5, 
2003; the option to use the stock invest instrument in lieu of cheques or bank drafts for payment of Application 
money has been withdrawn. Hence, payment through stock invest would not be accepted in this Issue. 
 
GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS 
Do’s: 
• Check if you are eligible to apply; 
• Read all the instructions carefully and complete the applicable Application Form; 
• Ensure that the details about Depository Participant and Beneficiary Account are correct as Allotment of Equity 

Shares will be in the dematerialized form only; 
• Each of the Applicants should mention their Permanent Account Number (PAN) allotted under the Income Tax 

Act, 1961; 
• Ensure that the Demographic Details (as defined herein below) are updated, true and correct in all respects; 
• Ensure that the name(s) given in the Application Form is exactly the same as the name(s) in which the 

beneficiary account is held with the Depository Participant. 
 
Don’ts: 
• Do not apply for lower than the minimum Application size; 
• Do not apply at a Price Different from the Price Mentioned herein or in the Application Form 
• Do not apply on another Application Form after you have submitted an Application to the Bankers of the Issue. 
• Do not pay the Application Price in cash, by money order or by postal order or by stock invest; 
• Do not send Application Forms by post; instead submit the same to the Selected Branches / Offices of the 

Banker to the Issue. 
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• Do not fill up the Application Form such that the Equity Shares applied for exceeds the Issue Size and/ or 
investment limit or maximum number of Equity Shares that can be held under the applicable laws or 
regulations or maximum amount permissible under the applicable regulations; 

• Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the Application is liable to be rejected on this ground. 
 
OTHER INSTRUCTIONS 
 
Joint Applications in the case of Individuals 
 
Applications may be made in single or joint names (not more than three). In the case of joint Applications, all 
payments will be made out in favour of the Applicant whose name appears first in the Application Form or 
Revision Form. All communications will be addressed to the First Applicant and will be dispatched to his or her 
address as per the Demographic Details received from the Depository. 
 
Multiple Applications 
 
An Applicant should submit only one Application (and not more than one) for the total number of Equity Shares 
required. Two or more Applications will be deemed to be multiple Applications if the sole or First Applicant is one 
and the same. 
 
In this regard, the procedures which would be followed by the Registrar to the Issue to detect multiple 
applications are given below: 
 
i. All applications are electronically strung on first name, address (1st line) and applicant’s status. Further, these 
applications are electronically matched for common first name and address and if matched, these are checked 
manually for age, signature and father/ husband’s name to determine if they are multiple applications 
 
ii. Applications which do not qualify as multiple applications as per above procedure are further checked for 
common DP ID/ beneficiary ID. In case of applications with common DP ID/ beneficiary ID, are manually checked 
to eliminate possibility of data entry error to determine if they are multiple applications. 
 
iii. Applications which do not qualify as multiple applications as per above procedure are further checked for 
common PAN. All such matched applications with common PAN are manually checked to eliminate possibility of 
data capture error to determine if they are multiple applications. 
 
In case of a mutual fund, a separate Application can be made in respect of each scheme of the mutual fund 
registered with SEBI and such Applications in respect of more than one scheme of the mutual fund will not be 
treated as multiple Applications provided that the Applications clearly indicate the scheme concerned for which 
the Application has been made. 
 
In cases where there are more than 20 valid applications having a common address, such shares will be kept in 
abeyance, post allotment and released on confirmation of “know your client” norms by the depositories. The 
Company reserves the right to reject, in our absolute discretion, all or any multiple Applications in any or all 
categories. 
 
PERMANENT ACCOUNT NUMBER OR PAN 
 
Pursuant to the circular MRD/DoP/Circ 05/2007 dated April 27, 2007, SEBI has mandated Permanent Account 
Number (“PAN”) to be the sole identification number for all participants transacting in the securities market, 
irrespective of the amount of the transaction w.e.f. July 2, 2007. Each of the Applicants should mention his/her 
PAN allotted under the IT Act. Applications without this information will be considered incomplete and are 
liable to be rejected. It is to be specifically noted that Applicants should not submit the GIR number instead of 
the PAN, as the Application is liable to be rejected on this ground. 
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RIGHT TO REJECT APPLICATIONS 
 
In case of QIB Applicants, the Company in consultation with the LM may reject Applications provided that the 
reasons for rejecting the same shall be provided to such Applicant in writing. In case of Non Institutional 
Applicants, Retail Individual Applicants who applied, the Company has a right to reject Applications based on 
technical grounds. 
 
GROUNDS FOR REJECTIONS 
 
Applicants are advised to note that Applications are liable to be rejected inter alia on the following technical 
grounds: 
 
• Amount paid does not tally with the amount payable for the highest value of Equity Shares applied for; 
• In case of partnership firms, Equity Shares may be registered in the names of the individual partners and no firm 
as such shall be entitled to apply; 
• Application by persons not competent to contract under the Indian Contract Act, 1872 including minors, insane 
persons; 
• PAN not mentioned in the Application Form; 
• GIR number furnished instead of PAN; 
• Applications for lower number of Equity Shares than specified for that category of investors; 
• Applications at a price other than the Fixed Price of The Issue; 
• Applications for number of Equity Shares which are not in multiples of 1,600; 
• Category not ticked; 
• Multiple Applications as defined in this Prospectus; 
• In case of Application under power of attorney or by limited companies, corporate, trust etc., where relevant 
documents are not submitted; 
• Applications accompanied by Stock invest/ money order/ postal order/ cash; 
• Signature of sole Applicant is missing; 
• Application Forms are not delivered by the Applicant within the time prescribed as per the Application Forms, 
Issue Opening Date advertisement and the Prospectus and as per the instructions in the Prospectus and the 
Application Forms; 
• In case no corresponding record is available with the Depositories that matches three parameters namely, names 
of the Applicants (including the order of names of joint holders), the Depository Participant’s identity (DP ID) and 
the beneficiary’s account number; 
• Applications for amounts greater than the maximum permissible amounts prescribed by the regulations; 
• Applications where clear funds are not available in the Escrow Account as per the final certificate from the 
Escrow Collection Bank(s); 
• Applications by OCBs; 
• Applications by US persons other than in reliance on RegulationS or “qualified institutional buyers” as defined in 
Rule 144A under the Securities Act; 
• Applications not duly signed; 
• Applications by any persons outside India if not in compliance with applicable foreign and Indian laws; 
• Applications that do not comply with the securities laws of their respective jurisdictions are liable to be 
rejected; 
• Applications by persons prohibited from buying, selling or dealing in the shares directly or indirectly by SEBI or 
any other regulatory authority; 
• Applications by persons who are not eligible to acquire Equity Shares of the Company in terms of all applicable 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and approvals; 
• Applications or revisions thereof by QIB Applicants, Non Institutional Applicants where the Application Amount is 
in excess of Rs. 2,00,000, received after 5.00 pm on the Issue Closing Date; 
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IMPERSONATION 
 
Attention of the applicants is specifically drawn to the provisions of sub section (1) of Section 38 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 which is reproduced below: 
“Any person who: 

(a) Makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for acquiring, or 
subscribing for, its securities: or 

(b) makes or abets making of multiple applications to the company in different names or in different 
combinations of his name or surname for acquiring or subscribing for its securities; or  

(c) otherwise includes directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register any transfer of, securities to 
him, or to any other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action under section 447 of the 
companies Act, 2013. 

 
SIGNING OF UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT 
 
Vide an Underwriting agreement dated 20th March, 2015 this issue is 100% Underwritten. 
 
FILING OF THE PROSPECTUS WITH THE ROC 
 
The Company will file a copy of the Prospectus with the RoC in terms of Section 26 & 32 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 
 
PRE-ISSUE ADVERTISEMENT 
 
Subject to Section 30 of the Companies Act, the Company shall, after registering the Prospectus with the RoC, 
publish a pre-Issue advertisement, in the form prescribed by the SEBI Regulations, in one widely circulated English 
language national daily newspaper; one widely circulated Hindi language national daily newspaper and one 
regional newspaper with wide circulation. 
 
DESIGNATED DATE AND ALLOTMENT OF EQUITY SHARES 
 
The Company will issue and dispatch letters of allotment/ or letters of regret along with refund order or credit 
the allotted securities to the respective beneficiary accounts, if any within a period of 12 working days of the 
Issue Closing Date. 
 
After the funds are transferred from the Escrow Account to the Public Issue Account on the Designated Date, the 
Company would ensure the credit to the successful Applicants depository account. Allotment of the Equity Shares 
to the Allottees shall be within two working days of the date of Allotment Investors are advised to instruct their 
Depository Participant to accept the Equity Shares that may be allocated/ Allotted to them pursuant to this Issue. 
 
Applicants to whom refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds will be sent a letter intimating them 
about the mode of credit of refund within 12 working days of closure of Issue. 
 
The Company will provide adequate funds required for dispatch of refund orders or allotment advice to the 
Registrar to the Issue. 
 
Refunds will be made by cheques, pay orders or demand drafts drawn on a bank appointed by us, as Refund 
Banker and payable at par at places where applications are received. Bank charges, if any, for encashing such 
cheques, pay orders or demand drafts at other centers will be payable by the Applicants. 
 
PAYMENT OF REFUND 
 
Applicants must note that on the basis of name of the Applicants, Depository Participant’s name, DP ID, 
Beneficiary Account number provided by them in the Application Form, the Registrar will obtain, from the 
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Depositories, the Applicants’ bank account details, including the nine digit Magnetic Ink Character Recognition 
(“MICR”) code as appearing on a cheque leaf. Hence Applicants are advised to immediately update their bank 
account details as appearing on the records of the Depository Participant. Please note that failure to do so could 
result in delays in dispatch of refund order or refunds through electronic transfer of funds, as applicable, and any 
such delay shall be at the Applicants’ sole risk and neither the Company, the Registrar, Escrow Collection Bank(s), 
Bankers to the Issue nor the LM shall be liable to compensate the Applicants for any losses caused to the Applicant 
due to any such delay or liable to pay any interest for such delay. 
 
Mode of making refunds 
The payment of refund, if any, would be done through various modes as given hereunder: 
 

1) ECS (Electronic Clearing System) – Payment of refund would be done through ECS for applicants having an 
account at any of the centers where such facility has been made available. This mode of payment of 
refunds would be subject to availability of complete bank account details including the MICR code as 
appearing on a cheque leaf, from the Depositories. The payment of refunds is mandatory for applicants 
having a bank account at any of such centers, except where the applicant, being eligible, opts to receive 
refund through NEFT, direct credit or RTGS. 
 

2) Direct Credit – Applicants having bank accounts with the Refund Banker(s), as mentioned in the 
Application Form, shall be eligible to receive refunds through direct credit. Charges, if any, levied by the 
Refund Bank(s) for the same would be borne by the Company. 

 
3)  RTGS (Real Time Gross Settlement) – Applicants having a bank account at any of the centers where such 

facility has been made available and whose refund amount exceeds 10.00 Lacs, have the option to receive 
refund through RTGS. Such eligible applicants who indicate their preference to receive refund through 
RTGS are required to provide the IFSC code in the application Form. In the event the same is not 
provided, refund shall be made through ECS. Charges, if any, levied by the Refund Bank(s) for the same 
would be borne by the Company. Charges, if any, levied by the applicant’s bank receiving the credit 
would be borne by the applicant. 

 
4) NEFT (National Electronic Fund Transfer) – Payment of refund shall be undertaken through NEFT 

wherever the applicants’ bank has been assigned the Indian Financial System Code (IFSC), which can be 
linked to a Magnetic Ink Character Recognition (MICR), if any, available to that particular bank branch. 
IFSC Code will be obtained from the website of RBI as on a date immediately prior to the date of payment 
of refund, duly mapped with MICR numbers. Wherever the applicants have registered their nine digit MICR 
number and their bank account number while opening and operating the demat account, the same will be 
duly mapped with the IFSC Code of that particular bank branch and the payment of refund will be made to 
the applicants through this method. The process flow in respect of refunds by way of NEFT is at an 
evolving stage and hence use of NEFT is subject to operational feasibility, cost and process efficiency. 
 

5) For all other applicants, including those who have not updated their bank particulars with the MICR code, 
the refund orders will be through Speed Post/ Registered Post. Such refunds will be made by cheques, pay 
orders or demand drafts drawn on the Escrow Collection Banks and payable at par at places where 
Applications are received. Bank charges, if any, for cashing such cheques, pay orders or demand drafts at 
other centers will be payable by the Applicants. 

 
DISPOSAL OF APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATION MONEYS AND INTEREST IN CASE OF DELAY 
 
The Company shall ensure the dispatch of Allotment advice, refund orders (except for Applicants who receive 
refunds through electronic transfer of funds) and give benefit to the beneficiary account with Depository 
Participants and submit the documents pertaining to the Allotment to the Stock Exchange within two working days 
of date of Allotment of Equity Shares. 
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In case of applicants who receive refunds through ECS, direct credit or RTGS, the refund instructions will be given 
to the clearing system within 12 working days from the Issue Closing Date. A suitable communication shall be sent 
to the Applicants receiving refunds through this mode within 12 working days of Issue Closing Date, giving details 
of the bank where refunds shall be credited along with amount and expected date of electronic credit of refund. 
 
The Company shall use best efforts to ensure that all steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing 
and commencement of trading at SME Platform of BSE where the Equity Shares are proposed to be listed are taken 
within 12 working days of closure of the issue. 
 
In accordance with the Companies Act, the requirements of the Stock Exchange and the SEBI Regulations, the 
Company further undertakes that: 
1) Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made within 12 (twelve) working days of the Issue Closing Date; 
2) Dispatch of refund orders or in a case where the refund or portion thereof is made in electronic manner, the 
refund instructions are given to the clearing system within 12 (twelve) working days of the Issue Closing Date 
would be ensured; and 
3) The Company shall pay interest at 15% p.a. for any delay beyond the 12 (twelve) working days time period as 
mentioned above, if Allotment is not made and refund orders are not dispatched or if, in a case where the refund 
or portion thereof is made in electronic manner, the refund instructions have not been given to the clearing 
system in the disclosed manner and/ or demat credits are not made to investors within the 12 (twelve) working 
days time. 
 
UNDERTAKINGS BY OUR COMPANY 
 
The Company undertakes the following: 
 

1) That the complaints received in respect of this Issue shall be attended to by us expeditiously; 
 

2) That all steps will be taken for the completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement 
of trading at the Stock Exchange where the Equity Shares are proposed to be listed within 12 (twelve) 
working days of closure of the Issue; 

 
3) That funds required for making refunds to unsuccessful applicants as per the mode(s) disclosed shall be 

made available to the Registrar to the Issue by the Issuer; 
 

4) That where refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds, a suitable communication shall be sent 
to the applicant within 12 (twelve) working days of the Issue Closing Date, as the case may be, giving 
details of the bank where refunds shall be credited along with amount and expected date of electronic 
credit of refund; 

 
5) That the letter of allotment/ refund orders to the non resident Indians shall be dispatched within 

specified time; and 
 

6) That no further issue of Equity Shares shall be made till the Equity Shares offered through this Prospectus 
are listed or until the Application monies are refunded on account of non listing, under subscription etc. 

 
7) The Company shall not have recourse to the Issue proceeds until the approval for trading of the Equity 

Shares from the Stock Exchange where listing is sought has been received. 
 
UTILIZATION OF ISSUE PROCEEDS 
 
Our Board certifies that: 
 

1) All monies received out of the Issue shall be credited/ transferred to a separate bank account other than 
the bank account referred to in sub section (3) of Section 40 of the Companies Act, 2013; 
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2) Details of all monies utilized out of the Issue shall be disclosed under an appropriate head in our balance 

sheet indicating the purpose for which such monies have been utilized; 
 

3) Details of all unutilized monies out of the Issue, if any shall be disclosed under the appropriate head in 
the balance sheet indicating the form in which such unutilized monies have been invested and 

 
4) Our Company shall comply with the requirements of Clause 52 of the SME Listing Agreement in relation to 

the disclosure and monitoring of the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue. 
 
Our Company shall not have recourse to the Issue Proceeds until the approval for listing and trading of the Equity 
Shares from the Stock Exchange where listing is sought has been received. 
 
WITHDRAWAL OF THE ISSUE 
 
The Company, in consultation with the LM, reserves the right not to proceed with the Issue at any time before the 
Issue Opening Date, without assigning any reason thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issue is also subject 
to obtaining the following: 
 

1. The final listing and trading approvals of BSE for listing of Equity Shares offered through this issue on its 
SME Platform, which the Company shall apply for after Allotment and 

 
2. The final RoC approval of the Prospectus after it is filed with the RoC. In case, the Company wishes to 

withdraw the Issue after Issue Opening but before allotment, the Company will give public notice giving 
reasons for withdrawal of Issue. The public notice will appear in two widely circulated national 
newspapers (One each in English and Hindi) and one in regional newspaper. 

 
EQUITY SHARES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM WITH NSDL OR CDSL 
 
To enable all shareholders of the Company to have their shareholding in electronic form, the Company had signed 
the following tripartite agreements with the Depositories and the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent: 
(a) Agreement dated 26th June, 2015 between NSDL, the Company and the Registrar to the Issue; 
(b) Agreement dated 16th June, 2015 between CDSL, the Company and the Registrar to the Issue; 
The Company’s shares bear an ISIN No. INE030T01019 
• An Applicant applying for Equity Shares must have at least one beneficiary account with either of the Depository 
Participants of either NSDL or CDSL prior to making the Application. 
• The Applicant must necessarily fill in the details (including the Beneficiary Account Number and Depository 
Participant’s identification number) appearing in the Application Form or Revision Form. 
• Allotment to a successful Applicant will be credited in electronic form directly to the beneficiary account (with 
the Depository Participant) of the Applicant. 
• Names in the Application Form or Revision Form should be identical to those appearing in the account details in 
the Depository. In case of joint holders, the names should necessarily be in the same sequence as they appear in 
the account details in the Depository. 
• If incomplete or incorrect details are given under the heading ‘Applicants Depository Account Details’ in the 
Application Form or Revision Form, it is liable to be rejected. 
• The Applicant is responsible for the correctness of his or her Demographic Details given in the Application Form 
vis à vis those with his or her Depository Participant. 
• Equity Shares in electronic form can be traded only on the stock exchanges having electronic connectivity with 
NSDL and CDSL. The Stock Exchange where our Equity Shares are proposed to be listed have electronic 
connectivity with CDSL and NSDL. 
• The trading of the Equity Shares of the Company would be in dematerialized form only for all investors. 
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COMMUNICATIONS 
 
All future communications in connection with the Applications made in this Issue should be addressed to the 
Registrar to the Issue quoting the full name of the sole or First Applicant, Application Form number, Applicants 
Depository Account Details, number of Equity Shares applied for, date of Application form, name and address of 
the Banker to the Issue where the Application was submitted and cheque or draft number and issuing bank thereof 
and a copy of the acknowledgement slip. Investors can contact the Compliance Officer or the Registrar to the 
Issue in case of any pre Issue or post Issue related problems such as non receipt of letters of allotment, credit of 
allotted shares in the respective beneficiary accounts, refund orders etc. 
 
ISSUE PROCEDURE FOR ASBA (APPLICATION SUPPORTED BY BLOCKED ACCOUNT) APPLICANTS 
 
This section is for the information of investors proposing to subscribe to the Issue through the ASBA process. 
Our Company and the LM are not liable for any amendments, modifications, or changes in applicable laws or 
regulations, which may occur after the date of this Prospectus. ASBA Applicants are advised to make their 
independent investigations and to ensure that the ASBA Application Form is correctly filled up, as described 
in this section. 
 
The lists of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSB (Self Certified Syndicate Banks) for the ASBA 
Process are provided on http://www.sebi.gov.in. For details on designated branches of SCSB collecting the 
Application Form, please refer the above mentioned SEBI link. 
 
ASBA PROCESS 
 
A Resident Retail Individual Investor shall submit his Application through an Application Form, either in physical or 
electronic mode, to the SCSB with whom the bank account of the ASBA Applicant or bank account utilized by the 
ASBA Applicant (“ASBA Account”) is maintained. The SCSB shall block an amount equal to the Application Amount 
in the bank account specified in the ASBA Application Form, physical or electronic, on the basis of an 
authorization to this effect given by the account holder at the time of submitting the Application. The Application 
Amount shall remain blocked in the aforesaid ASBA Account until finalization of the Basis of Allotment in the Issue 
and consequent transfer of the Application Amount against the allocated shares to the ASBA Public Issue Account, 
or until withdrawal/failure of the Issue or until withdrawal/rejection of the ASBA Application, as the case may be. 
The ASBA data shall thereafter be uploaded by the SCSB in the electronic IPO system of the Stock Exchange. Once 
the Basis of Allotment is finalized, the Registrar to the Issue shall send an appropriate request to the Controlling 
Branch of the SCSB for unblocking the relevant bank accounts and for transferring the amount allocable to the 
successful ASBA Applicants to the ASBA Public Issue Account. In case of withdrawal/failure of the Issue, the 
blocked amount shall be unblocked on receipt of such information from the LM. ASBA Applicants are required to 
submit their Applications, either in physical or electronic mode. In case of application in physical mode, the ASBA 
Applicant shall submit the ASBA Application Form at the Designated Branch of the SCSB. In case of application in 
electronic form, the ASBA Applicant shall submit the Application Form either through the internet banking facility 
available with the SCSB, or such other electronically enabled mechanism for applying and blocking funds in the 
ASBA account held with SCSB, and accordingly registering such Applications. 
 
Who can apply? 
 
In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009 in public issues w.e.f. May 1, 2010 all the investors can apply 
through ASBA process and w.e.f May 02, 2011, the Non-Institutional applicants and the QIB Applicants have to 
compulsorily apply through the ASBA Process. 
 
Mode of Payment 
 
Upon submission of an Application Form with the SCSB, whether in physical or electronic mode, each ASBA 
Applicant shall be deemed to have agreed to block the entire Application Amount and authorized the Designated 
Branch of the SCSB to block the Application Amount, in the bank account maintained with the SCSB. Application 
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Amount paid in cash, by money order or by postal order or by stockinvest, or ASBA Application Form accompanied 
by cash, draft, money order, postal order or any mode of payment other than blocked amounts in the SCSB bank 
accounts, shall not be accepted. After verifying that sufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account, the SCSB 
shall block an amount equivalent to the Application Amount mentioned in the ASBA Application Form till the 
Designated Date. On the Designated Date, the SCSBs shall transfer the amounts allocable to the ASBA Applicants 
from the respective ASBA Account, in terms of the SEBI Regulations, into the ASBA Public Issue Account. The 
balance amount, if any against the said Application in the ASBA Accounts shall then be unblocked by the SCSBs on 
the basis of the instructions issued in this regard by the Registrar to the Issue. The entire Application Amount, as 
per the Application Form submitted by the respective ASBA Applicants, would be required to be blocked in the 
respective ASBA Accounts until finalization of the Basis of Allotment in the Issue and consequent transfer of the 
Application Amount against allocated shares to the ASBA Public Issue Account, or until withdrawal/failure of the 
Issue or until rejection of the ASBA Application, as the case may be. 
 
Unblocking of ASBA Account 
 
On the basis of instructions from the Registrar to the Issue, the SCSBs shall transfer the requisite amount against 
each successful ASBA Applicant to the ASBA Public Issue Account and shall unblock excess amount, if any in the 
ASBA Account. However, the Application Amount may be unblocked in the ASBA Account prior to receipt of 
intimation from the Registrar to the Issue by the Controlling Branch of the SCSB regarding finalization of the Basis 
of Allotment in the Issue, in the event of withdrawal/failure of the Issue or rejection of the ASBA Application, as 
the case may be. 
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SECTION VIII 
 

MAIN PROVISIONS OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 
 

              Share capital and variation of rights 
 

II. 1. Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Articles, the shares in the capital of the company shall be under 
the control of the Directors who may issue, allot or otherwise dispose of the same or any of them to such 
persons, in such proportion and on such terms and conditions and either at a premium or at par and at such 
time as they may from time to time think fit. 

 
2. (i) Every person whose name is entered as a member in the register of members shall be entitled to receive 

within two months after incorporation, in case of subscribers to the memorandum or after allotment or within 
one month after the application for the registration of transfer or transmission or within such other period as 
the conditions of issue shall be provided,— 

 
• one certificate for all his shares without payment of any charges; or  
 
• several certificates, each for one or more of his shares, upon payment of twenty rupees for each certificate 

after the first.  
 

(ii) Every certificate shall be under the seal and shall specify the shares to which it relates and the amount 
paid-up thereon.  

 
(iii) In respect of any share or shares held jointly by several persons, the company shall not be bound to issue 
more than one certificate, and delivery of a certificate for a share to one of several joint holders shall be 
sufficient delivery to all such holders.  

 
3. (i) If any share certificate be worn out, defaced, mutilated or torn or if there be no further space on the back 

for endorsement of transfer, then upon production and surrender thereof to the company, a new certificate 
may be issued in lieu thereof, and if any certificate is lost or destroyed then upon proof thereof to the 
satisfaction of the company and on execution of such indemnity as the company deem adequate, a new 
certificate in lieu thereof shall be given. Every certificate under this Article shall be issued on payment of 
twenty rupees for each certificate. 

 
(ii) The provisions of Articles (2) and (3) shall mutatis mutandis apply to debentures of the company. 

 
4. Except as required by law, no person shall be recognised by the company as holding any share upon any trust, 

and the company shall not be bound by, or be compelled in any way to recognise (even when having notice 
thereof) any equitable, contingent, future or partial interest in any share, or any interest in any fractional 
part of a share, or (except only as by these regulations or by law otherwise provided) any other rights in 
respect of any share except an absolute right to the entirety thereof in the registered holder.  

 
5. (i) If at any time the share capital is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to any class 

(unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class) may, subject to the provisions of 
section 48, and whether or not the company is being wound up, be varied with the consent in writing of the 
holders of three-fourths of the issued shares of that class, or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at 
a separate meeting of the holders of the shares of that class.  

 
(ii) To every such separate meeting, the provisions of these regulations relating to general meetings shall 
mutatis mutandis apply, but so that the necessary quorum shall be at least two persons holding at least one-
third of the issued shares of the class in question.  

 
6. The rights conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not, 
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unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied 
by the creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu therewith.  

 
7. Subject to the provisions of section 55, any preference shares may, with the sanction of an ordinary resolution, 

be issued on the terms that they are to be redeemed on such terms and in such manner as the company before 
the issue of the shares may, by special resolution, determine. 

 
                 Underwriting And Brokerage 

 
8. (i) The company may exercise the powers of paying commissions conferred by sub-section (6) of section 40, 

provided that the rate per cent. or the amount of the commission paid or agreed to be paid shall be disclosed 
in the manner required by that section and rules made there under.  

 
(ii) The commission may be satisfied by the payment of cash or the allotment of fully or partly paid shares or 
partly in the one way and partly in the other. 

 
(iii) The rate or amount of the commission shall not exceed in the case of shares, five per cent of the price at 
which the shares are issued and in the case of debentures, shall not exceed two and a half per cent of the 
price at which the debentures are issued. Such commission may be satisfied by payment of cash or by 
allotment of fully or partly paid shares or partly in one way and partly in the other. 

Lien 
 
9. (i) The company shall have a first and paramount lien—  
 

• on every share (not being a fully paid share), for all monies (whether presently payable or not) called, or 
payable at a fixed time, in respect of that share; and  

 
• on all shares (not being fully paid shares) standing registered in the name of a single person, for all 

monies presently payable by him or his estate to the company:  
 

Provided that the Board of directors may at any time declare any share to be wholly or in part exempt from 
the provisions of this clause. 

 
(ii) The company’s lien, if any, on a share shall extend to all dividends payable and bonuses declared from 
time to time in respect of such shares. 

 
10. The company may sell, in such manner as the Board thinks fit, any shares on which the company has a lien:  

Provided that no sale shall be made—  
 

• unless a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently payable; or  
 

• until the expiration of fourteen days after a notice in writing stating and demanding payment of such part 
of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable, has been given to the registered 
holder for the time being of the share or the person entitled thereto by reason of his death or insolvency.  

 
11. (i) To give effect to any such sale, the Board may authorise some person to transfer the shares sold to the 

purchaser thereof.  
 

(ii) The purchaser shall be registered as the holder of the shares comprised in any such ransfer. 
 

(iii) The purchaser shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money, nor shall his title to 
the shares be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the sale. 

 
12. (i) The proceeds of the sale shall be received by the company and applied in payment of such part of the 
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amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable.  
 
 

(ii) The residue, if any, shall, subject to a like lien for sums not presently payable as existed upon the shares 
before the sale, be paid to the person entitled to the shares at the date of the sale.  

 
 

                 Transfer of shares 
 
19. (i) The instrument of transfer of any share in the company shall be executed by or on behalf of both the 

transferor and transferee.  
 

(ii) A common form of for instruments of transfer which may from time to time be altered by the Directors 
 

(iii) The transferor shall be deemed to remain a holder of the share until the name of the transferee is 
entered in the register of members in respect thereof. 

 
(iv) The Board shall not refuse the registration of transfer on the ground of the transfer or being either alone 
or jointly with any other person or persons indebted to the Company on any account whatsoever. 

 
20. The Board may, subject to the right of appeal conferred by section 58 decline to register— 
 

(a) the transfer of a share, not being a fully paid share, to a person of whom they do not approve; or 
(b) any transfer of shares on which the company has a lien. 

 
21. The Board may decline to recognise any instrument of transfer unless—  
 

(a) the instrument of transfer is in the form as prescribed in rules made under sub-section (1) of section 56;  
 

(b) the instrument of transfer is accompanied by the certificate of the shares to which it relates, and such 
other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to show the right of the transferor to make the transfer; 
and  

 
•  the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one class of shares.  

 
22. On giving not less than seven days’ previous notice in accordance with section 91 and rules made there under, 

the registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods as the Board may from time 
to time determine:  

 
Provided that such registration shall not be suspended for more than thirty days at any one time or for more 
than forty-five days in the aggregate in any year. 

 
                     Transmission of shares 

 
24. (i) On the death of a member, the survivor or survivors where the member was a joint holder, and his nominee 

or nominees or legal representatives where he was a sole holder, shall be the only persons recognised by the 
company as having any title to his interest in the shares. 

 
(ii) Nothing in clause (i) shall release the estate of a deceased joint holder from any liability in respect of any 
share which had been jointly held by him with other persons. 

 
25. (i) Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or insolvency of a member may, upon 

such evidence being produced as may from time to time properly be required by the Board and subject as 
hereinafter provided, elect, either—  
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• to be registered himself as holder of the share; or  

 
• to make such transfer of the share as the deceased or insolvent member could have made.  

 
(ii) The Board shall, in either case, have the same right to decline or suspend registration as it would have 
had, if the deceased or insolvent member had transferred the share before his death or insolvency. 

 
26. (i) If the person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered as holder of the share himself, he shall 

deliver or send to the company a notice in writing signed by him stating that he so elects. 
 

(ii) If the person aforesaid shall elect to transfer the share, he shall testify his election by executing a transfer 
of the share. 

 
(iii) All the limitations, restrictions and provisions of these regulations relating to the right to transfer and the 
registration of transfers of shares shall be applicable to any such notice or transfer as aforesaid as if the death 
or insolvency of the member had not occurred and the notice or transfer were a transfer signed by that 
member. 

 
27. A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or insolvency of the holder shall be entitled to 

the same dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were the registered holder of 
the share, except that he shall not, before being registered as a member in respect of the share, be entitled 
in respect of it to exercise any right conferred by membership in relation to meetings of the company:  

 
Provided that the Board may, at any time, give notice requiring any such person to elect either to be 
registered himself or to transfer the share, and if the notice is not complied with within ninety days, the 
Board may thereafter withhold payment of all dividends, bonuses or other monies payable in respect of the 
share, until the requirements of the notice have been complied with.  

 
               Alteration of capital 

 
35. The company may, from time to time, by ordinary resolution increase the share capital by such sum, to be 

divided into shares of such amount, as may be specified in the resolution. 
 
36. Subject to the provisions of section 61, the company may, by ordinary resolution,—  
 

• consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amount than its existing shares;  
 

• convert all or any of its fully paid-up shares into stock, and reconvert that stock into fully paid-up shares 
of any denomination;  

 
• sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into shares of smaller amount than is fixed by the 

memorandum;  
 

• cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken or agreed to be 
taken by any person.  

 
37. Where shares are converted into stock,—  
 

• the holders of stock may transfer the same or any part thereof in the same manner as, and subject to the 
same regulations under which, the shares from which the stock arose might before the conversion have been 
transferred, or as near thereto as circumstances admit:  

 
Provided that the Board may, from time to time, fix the minimum amount of stock transferable, so, however, 
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that such minimum shall not exceed the nominal amount of the shares from which the stock arose. 
 

• the holders of stock shall, according to the amount of stock held by them, have the same rights, privileges 
and advantages as regards dividends, voting at meetings of the company, and other matters, as if they held 
the shares from which the stock arose; but no such privilege or advantage (except participation in the 
dividends and profits of the company and in the assets on winding up) shall be conferred by an amount of 
stock which would not, if existing in shares, have conferred that privilege or advantage.  

 
• such of the regulations of the company as are applicable to paid-up shares shall apply to stock and the 
words “share” and “shareholder” in those regulations shall include “stock” and “stock-holder” respectively.  

 
38. The company may, by special resolution, reduce in any manner and with, and subject to, any incident 

authorised and consent required by law,—  
 

(a) its share capital;  
 

(b) any capital redemption reserve account; or (c) any share premium account. 
 

                  Capitalisation of profits 
 
39. (i) The company in general meeting may, upon the recommendation of the Board, resolve— 
 

• that it is desirable to capitalise any part of the amount for the time being standing to the credit of any of 
the company’s reserve accounts, or to the credit of the profit and loss account, or otherwise available for 
distribution; and  

 
• that such sum be accordingly set free for distribution in the manner specified in clause (ii) amongst the 
members who would have been entitled thereto, if distributed by way of dividend and in the same 
proportions.  

 
(ii) The sum aforesaid shall not be paid in cash but shall be applied, subject to the provision contained in 
clause (iii), either in or towards— 

 
• paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on any shares held by such members respectively;  
 
• paying up in full, unissued shares of the company to be allotted and distributed, credited as fully paid-up, to 

and amongst such members in the proportions aforesaid;  
 
• partly in the way specified in sub-clause (A) and partly in that specified in sub-clause (B);  
 
• A securities premium account and a capital redemption reserve account may, for the purposes of this 

regulation, be applied in the paying up of unissued shares to be issued to members of the company as fully 
paid bonus shares;  

 
• The Board shall give effect to the resolution passed by the company in pursuance of this regulation.  
 
40. (i) Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been passed, the Board shall—  
 

• make all appropriations and applications of the undivided profits resolved to be capitalised thereby, and 
all allotments and issues of fully paid shares if any; and  

 
• generally do all acts and things required to give effect thereto.  

 
(ii) The Board shall have power— 
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• to make such provisions, by the issue of fractional certificates or by payment in cash or otherwise as it 

thinks fit, for the case of shares becoming distributable in fractions; and  
 

• to authorise any person to enter, on behalf of all the members entitled thereto, into an agreement with 
the company providing for the allotment to them respectively, credited as fully paid-up, of any further 
shares to which they may be entitled upon such capitalisation, or as the case may require, for the 
payment by the company on their behalf, by the application thereto of their respective proportions of 
profits resolved to be capitalised, of the amount or any part of the amounts remaining unpaid on their 
existing shares;  

 
(iii) Any agreement made under such authority shall be effective and binding on such members. 

 
                Buy-back of shares 

 
41. Notwithstanding anything contained in these articles but subject to the provisions of sections 68 to 70 and any 

other applicable provision of the Act or any other law for the time being in force, the company may purchase 
its own shares or other specified securities. 

 
 

              General meetings 
 
42. All general meetings other than annual general meeting shall be called extraordinary general meeting.  
 
43. (i) The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call an extraordinary general meeting.  
 

(ii) If at any time directors capable of acting who are sufficient in number to form a quorum are not within 
India, any director or any two members of the company may call an extraordinary general meeting in the 
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which such a meeting may be called by the Board.  

 
                Proceedings at general meetings 

 
44. (i) No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of members is present at the time 

when the meeting proceeds to business.  
 

(ii) Save as otherwise provided herein, the quorum for the general meetings shall be as provided in section 
103. 

 
45. The chairperson, if any, of the Board shall preside as Chairperson at every general meeting of the company.  
 
 
46. If there is no such Chairperson, or if he is not present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for 

holding the meeting, or is unwilling to act as chairperson of the meeting, the directors present shall elect one 
of their members to be Chairperson of the meeting.  

 
47. If at any meeting no director is willing to act as Chairperson or if no director is present within fifteen minutes 

after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the members present shall choose one of their members to 
be Chairperson of the meeting.  

 
            Voting rights 

 
49. Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class or classes of shares,— 
 

(a) on a show of hands, every member present in person shall have one vote; and 
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(b) on a poll, the voting rights of members shall be in proportion to his share in the paid-up equity share 
capital of the company. 

 
50. A member may exercise his vote at a meeting by electronic means in accordance with section 108 and shall 

vote only once.  
 
51. In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be 

accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders.  
 

For this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the register of 
members. 

 
52. A member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by any court having jurisdiction in 

lunacy, may vote, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, by his  
 

committee or other legal guardian, and any such committee or guardian may, on a poll, vote by proxy. 
 
53. Any business other than that upon which a poll has been demanded may be proceeded with, pending the 

taking of the poll.  
 
54. No member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless all calls or other sums presently payable 

by him in respect of shares in the company have been paid.  
 
55. (i) No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the meeting or adjourned meeting 

at which the vote objected to is given or tendered, and every vote not disallowed at such meeting shall be 
valid for all purposes.  

 
(ii) Any such objection made in due time shall be referred to the Chairperson of the meeting, whose decision 
shall be final and conclusive.  

          Proxy 
 
56. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power-of-attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is 

signed or a notarised copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the registered office of the 
company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the 
person named in the instrument proposes to vote, or, in the case of a poll, not less than 24 hours before the 
time appointed for the taking of the poll; and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.  

 
 
57. An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the form as prescribed in the rules made under section 105.  
 
58. A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid, notwithstanding the 

previous death or insanity of the principal or the revocation of the proxy or of the authority under which the 
proxy was executed, or the transfer of the shares in respect of which the proxy is given:  

 
Provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity, revocation or transfer shall have been received 
by the company at its office before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the 
proxy is used.  

 
             Proceedings of the Board 

 
66. (i) The Board of Directors may meet for the conduct of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate its meetings, 

as it thinks fit.  
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(ii) A director may, and the manager or secretary on the requisition of a director shall, at any time, summon a 
meeting of the Board.  

 
67. (i) Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, questions arising at any meeting of the Board shall be 

decided by a majority of votes.  
 

(ii) In case of an equality of votes, the Chairperson of the Board, if any, shall have a second or casting vote.  
 
68. The continuing directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in the Board; but, if and so long as their 

number is reduced below the quorum fixed by the Act for a meeting of the Board, the continuing directors or 
director may act for the purpose of increasing the   

 
 
number of directors to that fixed for the quorum, or of summoning a general meeting of the company, but for 
no other purpose. 

 
69. (i) The Board may elect a Chairperson of its meetings and determine the period for which he is to hold office.  
 

(ii) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the Chairperson is not present within five minutes 
after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the directors present may choose one of their number to be 
Chairperson of the meeting.  

 
70. (i) The Board may, subject to the provisions of the Act, delegate any of its powers to committees consisting 

of such member or members of its body as it thinks fit.  
 

(ii) Any committee so formed shall, in the exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to any regulations 
that may be imposed on it by the Board. 

 
71. (i) A committee may elect a Chairperson of its meetings.  
 

(ii) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the Chairperson is not present within five minutes 
after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the members present may choose one of their members to 
be Chairperson of the meeting.  

 
72. (i) A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks fit.  
 

(ii) Questions arising at any meeting of a committee shall be determined by a majority of votes of the 
members present, and in case of an equality of votes, the Chairperson shall have a second or casting vote.  

 
73. All acts done in any meeting of the Board or of a committee thereof or by any person acting as a director, 

shall, notwithstanding that it may be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of 
any one or more of such directors or of any person acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were 
disqualified, be as valid as if every such director or such person had been duly appointed and was qualified to 
be a director.  

 
74. Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, a resolution in writing, signed by all the members of the 

Board or of a committee thereof, for the time being entitled to receive notice of a meeting of the Board or 
committee, shall be valid and effective as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Board or committee, duly 
convened and held.  

 
75. In case of a One Person Company—  
 

(i) where the company is having only one director, all the businesses to be transacted at the meeting of the 
Board shall be entered into minutes book maintained under section 118;  
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(ii) such minutes book shall be signed and dated by the director;  

 
(iii) the resolution shall become effective from the date of signing such minutes by the director. 

           
   Dividends and Reserve 

 
79. The company in general meeting may declare dividends, but no dividend shall exceed the amount 

recommended by the Board.  
 
80. Subject to the provisions of section 123, the Board may from time to time pay to the members such interim 

dividends as appear to it to be justified by the profits of the company.  
 
81. (i) The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of the profits of the company such sums 

as it thinks fit as a reserve or reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be applicable for any 
purpose to which the profits of the company may be properly applied, including provision for meeting 
contingencies or for equalizing dividends; and pending such application, may, at the like discretion, either be 
employed in the business of the company or be invested in such investments (other than shares of the 
company) as the Board may, from time to time, thinks fit.  

 
(ii) The Board may also carry forward any profits which it may consider necessary not to divide, without 
setting them aside as a reserve.  

 
82. (i) Subject to the rights of persons, if any, entitled to shares with special rights as to dividends, all dividends 

shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares in respect whereof 
the dividend is paid, but if and so long as nothing is paid upon any of the shares in the company, dividends 
may be declared and paid according to the amounts of the shares. 

 
(ii) No amount paid or credited as paid on a share in advance of calls shall be treated for the purposes of this 
regulation as paid on the share. 

 
(iii) All dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid or credited as paid on 
the shares during any portion or portions of the period in respect of which the dividend is paid; but if any 
share is issued on terms providing that it shall rank for dividend as from a particular date such share shall rank 
for dividend accordingly. 

 
83. The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to any member all sums of money, if any, presently payable 

by him to the company on account of calls or otherwise in relation to the shares of the company.  
 
84. (i) Any dividend, interest or other monies payable in cash in respect of shares may be paid by cheque or 

warrant sent through the post directed to the registered address of the holder or, in the case of joint holders, 
to the registered address of that one of the joint holders who is first named on the register of members, or to 
such person and to such address as the holder or joint holders may in writing direct.  

 
(ii) Every such cheque or warrant shall be made payable to the order of the person to whom it is sent. 

 
85. Any one of two or more joint holders of a share may give effective receipts for any dividends, bonuses or 

other monies payable in respect of such share.  
 
86. Notice of any dividend that may have been declared shall be given to the persons entitled to share therein in 

the manner mentioned in the Act.  
 
87. No dividend shall bear interest against the company.  
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88. The Company shall not forfeit any unpaid or unclaimed dividend and such dividends shall be dealt with 
according to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013..  

 
             Accounts 

 
89. (i) The Board shall from time to time determine whether and to what extent and at what times and places 

and under what conditions or regulations, the accounts and books of the company, or any of them, shall be 
open to the inspection of members not being directors.  

 
(ii) No member (not being a director) shall have any right of inspecting any account or book or document of 
the company except as conferred by law or authorised by the Board or by the company in general meeting.  

 
                    Dematerialisation Of Securities 

 
 
90. The provisions of this Article shall apply notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any other 

Articles.  
For the purpose of this Article:  

 
“Beneficial Owner” means a person or persons whose name is recorded as such with a depository, 

 
“SEBI” means the Securities & Exchange Board of India; established under Section 3 of the Securities & 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and 

 
“Depository” means a company formed and registered under the Companies Act, and which has been granted 
a certificate of registration to act as depository under Securities & Exchange Board of India Act, 1992; and 
wherein the securities of the Company are dealt with in accordance with the provisions of the Depositories 
Act, 1996. 

 
2. The Company shall be entitled to dematerialise its securities and to offer securities in a dematerialised 
form pursuant to the Depositories Act, 1996.  

 
3. Every holder of or subscriber to securities of the Company shall have the option to receive certificates for 
such securities or to hold the securities with a Depository. Such a person who is the beneficial owner of the 
securities can at’ any time opt out of a depository, if permitted by law, in respect of any securities in the 
manner provided by the Depositories Act, 1996 and the Company shall, in the manner and within the time 
prescribed, issue to the beneficial owner the required certificates for the Securities.  

 
If a person opts to hold his Securities with the depository, the Company shall intimate such depository the 
details of allotment of the Securities, and on receipt of the information, the depository shall enter in its 
record the name of the allottee as the beneficial owner of the Securities. 

 
4. All securities held by a depository shall be dematerialised and be in fungible form. Nothing contained in 
Sections 153, 153A, 153B, 187B, 187C and 372A of the Act shall apply to a depository in respect of the 
securities held by it on behalf of the beneficial owners. 

 
5.(a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Act or these Articles, a depository shall be 
deemed to be the registered owner for the purposes of effecting transfer of ownership of securities of the 
Company on behalf of the beneficial owner. 

 
(b)Save as otherwise provided in (a) above, the depository as the registered owner of the securities shall not 
have any voting rights or any other rights in respect of the securities held by it. 

 
(c)Every person holding securities of the Company and whose name is entered as the beneficial owner of 
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securities in the record of the depository shall be entitled to all the rights and benefits and be subject to all 
the liabilities in respect of the securities which are held by a depository and shall be deemed to be a Member 
of the Company. 

 
 

6. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Act or these Articles to the contrary, where securities of the 
Company are held in a depository, the records of the beneficiary ownership may be served by such depository 
on the Company by means of electronic mode or by delivery of floppies or discs.  

 
7. Nothing contained in Section 108 of the Act or these Articles, shall apply to a transfer of securities 
effected by a transferor and transferee both of whom are entered as beneficial owners in the records of a 
depository.  

 
8. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Act or these Articles, where securities are dealt with by a 
depository, the Company shall intimate the details thereof to the depository immediately on allotment of 
such securities.  

 
9. Nothing contained in the Act or these Articles regarding the necessity of having distinctive numbers for 
securities issued by the Company shall apply to securities held with a depository.  

 
10. The Register and Index of beneficial owners maintained by a depository under the Depositories Act, 1996 
shall be deemed to be the Register and Index of Members and Security holders for the purposes of these 
Articles.  

 
        Audit 

 
 
91. Auditors shall be appointed and their rights and duties regulated in accordance with Sections 139 to 147 of 

the Act.  
 

The First Auditor or Auditors of the Company shall be appointed by the Board within 30 days of the date of 
registration of the Company and the Auditor or Auditors so appointed shall hold office until the conclusion of 
the Sixth Annual General Meeting provided that the Company may, at a General Meeting, remove any such 
Auditor or all of such Auditors and appoint in his or their place by Special Resolution.  

 
93       Documents And Notices 
 

• A document or notice may be served on a Company or any officer thereof by sending it to the Company or 
the Officer at the registered office of the Company sending it by registered post or by speed post or by 
courier service, or by leaving it at its registered office or by means of such electronic or other mode as may 
be prescribed.  

 
• A Document may be Served upon the Registrar or any member by sending it to his office or address by post 
or registered post or speed post or courier service or by delivering at his office or address or by means of such 
electronic or other mode as may be prescribed. Provided that a member may request for delivery of any 
documents through a particular mode Now the Documents will have to be sent to a member to his address, in 
India or abroad. 

 
 

• Documents or notices of every General Meeting shall be served or given in the same manner hereinbefore 
on or to (a) All the members, legal Representative of any deceased member or assignee of the insolvent 
member (b) Auditors and (c) the Directors of the Company, in writing or through Electronic mode.  

 
• Any document or notice to be served or given by the Company may be signed by the Directors, Key 
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Managerial Personnel or an Officer of the Company duly Authorised by the Board of Directors in this behalf 
and the signatures thereto may be written, printed or lithographed.  

 
                Borrowing Powers 

 
94. The Board may, from time to time, at its discretion subject to the provisions of Section 179 of the Act, raise 

or borrow, and secure the payment of any sum or sums of money for the purpose of the Company; provided 
that the Board shall not without the sanction of the Company in General Meeting borrow any sum of money 
which together with money borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained from the 
Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) exceed the aggregate for the time being of the paid 
up capital of the Company and its free reserves, that is to say, reserves not set aside for any specific 
purpose.  

 
95. The Board may raise or secure the repayment of such sum or sums in such manner and upon such terms and 

conditions in all respects as it thinks fit and in particular, by the issue of bonds, perpetual or redeemable, 
debentures or debenture-stock, or any mortgage, or other security on the undertaking of the whole or any 
part of the property of the Company (both present and future), including its uncalled capital for the time 
being.  
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SECTION IX: OTHER INFORMATION 
 

LIST OF MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION 
 
The following contracts and agreements referred to (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of 
business carried on or intended to be carried on by the Company or contracts entered into more than two years 
before this Prospectus), which are or may be deemed to be material have been entered into by or on behalf of the 
Company. Copies of these contracts together with copies of documents referred under material documents below 
all of which have been attached to the copy of this Prospectus and have been delivered to the SME platform of 
BSE Limited and may be inspected at the Registered and Corporate Office of the Company between 11:30 am to 
5:30 pm on any working day from the date of this Prospectus until the date of closure of the subscription List. 
 
MATERIAL CONTRACTS 
 

1. Memorandum of Understanding dated 20th March, 2015 between our Company and the Lead Manager to the 
Issue.  
 

2. Memorandum of Understanding dated 20th March, 2015 entered into with Cameo Corporate Services Limited to 
appointing them as the Registrar to the Issue. 
 

3. Copy of tripartite agreement dated 26th June, 2015 between NSDL, our Company and Cameo Corporate Services 
Limited. 
 

4. Copy of tripartite agreement dated 16th June, 2015 between CDSL, our Company and Cameo Corporate Services 
Limited.  
 

5. Escrow Agreement dated 21st July, 2015 between our Company, Lead Manager, Escrow Collection Bank and the 
Registrar to the issue. 
 

6. Market Making Agreement dated 20th March, 2015 between our Company, Lead Manager and Market Maker. 
 

7. Underwriting Agreement dated 20th March, 2015 between our Company and Underwriters. 
 

DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION 
 

8. Memorandum and Articles of Association of our Company as amended from time to time. 
 

9. Copy of the resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 15th March, 2015 approving the 
issue. 
 

10. Copy of the resolution passed by the shareholders of our Company under Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 19th March, 2015.  
 

11. Copy of Shareholders resolution dated 19th March, 2015 appointing Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale as the 
Managing Director of our Company for a period of Five (5) years w.e.f. 19th March, 2015 and approving their 
remuneration and terms. 
 

12. Consents of the Directors, Company Secretary/Compliance Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Statutory / Peer 
Review Auditors, Lead Manager to the Issue, Underwriters, Market Makers, Bankers to the Issue, Legal Advisors 
to the Issue, and Registrars to the Issue, to include their names in the Prospectus to act their respective 
capacities. 
 

13. Copies of Audit Reports and Financial Statements of our Company for preceding five inancial years i.e. for the 
financial years viz  2010-2011, 2011-12, 2012-13, 2013-2014 and 2014-15. 
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14. Audit report and restated financial information issued by our Peer Review Auditors i.e. M/s. Randhir 

Jhunjhunwala & Co., Chartered Accountants, dated 10th September, 2015 included in the Prospectus. 
 

15. Letter dated 23rd March, 2015 from the statutory Auditors of our Company, M/s. P.D. Dalal & Co. Chartered 
Accountants, detailing the tax benefits. 
 

16. Copy of certificate from the statutory Auditors of our Company, M/s. P.D. Dalal & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
dated 23rd March, 2015, regarding the sources and deployment of funds as on 28th February, 2015. 
 

17. Board Resolution dated 18th September, 2015 for approval of Prospectus. 
 

18. Due Diligence Certificate dated 25th March, 2015 be submitted to SEBI from Lead Manager viz. First Overseas 
Capital Limited along with the filing of the Prospectus.  
 

19. Copy of approval from BSE vide letter dated 1st July, 2015 to use the name of BSE in this offer document for 
listing of Equity Shares on SME Platform of BSE.  

  
Any  of  the  contracts  or  documents  mentioned  in  this  Prospectus  may be  amended  or  modified  at any  
time,  if  so  required,  in  the  interest  of  our Company  or  if  required  by  the  other  parties,  without  
reference  to  the shareholders, subject to compliance of the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other 
relevant statutes.  
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DECLARATION 
 

All the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 / Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelines issued by the 
Government of India or the regulations issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India, established under 
Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 as the case may be, have been complied with 
and no statement made in this Prospectus is contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 / Companies 
Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made there under or regulations issued, 
as the case may be. We further certify that all statements in this Prospectus are true and correct. 
 
SIGNED BY ALL THE DIRECTORS 
 
 
 
Dr. Ashish Vishwas Rawandale 
(DIN- 02005733) 
 
 
 
Dr. Preeti Ashish Rawandale  
(DIN- 02021400) 
 
 
Mr. Kiran Madhavrao Pawar  
(DIN- 07078045) 
 
 
Mr. Vikramsingh Satish Khatal Patil  
(DIN- 01979626) 
 
SIGNED BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
 
Mrs. Ritika Agarwal 
 
SIGNED BY THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
Mr. Ramesh Daulat Kuwar 
 
 
Date:  18.09.2015 
 
Place: Mumbai 
 

 


